
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              September 17, 2019

          

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

  All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a 
card  from  the Board Clerk and  indicate each  item you would  like  to discuss.   Return  the completed card  to  the Board Clerk before  the Board 
considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it. 

Any member  of  the  public may  also make  comments  during  the  scheduled  “Public  Comment”  period  on  this  agenda  concerning  any  subject 
related to the Board of Supervisors or County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period.
Public Notices: (1)    In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,  if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 8780373.  (28 CFR 35.10235.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
County  to  make  reasonable  arrangements  to  ensure  accessibility  to  this  meeting.  Should  you  because  of  a  disability  require  appropriate 
alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda 
available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item 
for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors,  is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be 
available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).              
Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at 
the Board’s convenience.

September 17, 2019  8:30 AM
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

  2. CONFERENCE  WITH  LEGAL  COUNSEL  –  ANTICIPATED  LITIGATION  –  Initiation  of 
litigation  pursuant  to  paragraph  (4)  of  subdivision  (d)  of  Government  Code  §54956.9  (two 
cases).

 

  3. CONFERENCE  WITH  LEGAL  COUNSEL  –  ANTICIPATED  LITIGATION  –  Significant 
exposure  to  potential  litigation  pursuant  to  (2)  of  subdivision  (d)  of  Government  Code 
§54956.9 (one case). 

 

  4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – City of Los 
Angeles, Department of Water and Power of the City of Los Angeles v. Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors, et al. Inyo County Superior Court Case No. 12908.

 

  5. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson.

 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all opensession items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.)
 

10 A.M. 6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

  7. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              September 17, 2019

  8. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

  9. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)
 

  10. INTRODUCTIONS  The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Kelsey Ditty, Office Clerk III, Road Department; and Fabiola Isidro, Office Technician 
III, TreasurerTax Collector's Office.

 

  11. EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION  The Board will recognize Administrative 
Legal Secretary Debbie Gonzalez for 30 years of service to the County of Inyo. 

 

  12. PROCLAMATION  Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance  Request Board: A) receive 
brief presentation on local breast cancer awareness outreach efforts and activities; 
and B) approve a proclamation declaring October 18, 2019 Community Pink Day in 
Inyo County.

 

DEPARTMENTAL  PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
 

  13. Health & Human Services  Behavioral Health  
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review 
Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) APAR Health and Human Services 
Specialist I exists in the Behavioral Health budget, as certified by the HHS Director 
and concurred with by the County Administrator and AuditorController; B) where 
internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could 
possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more 
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one 
(1) APAR Health and Human Services Specialist I at Range 50PT ($15.60
$19.01/hr.). 

 

  14. Health & Human Services  Social Services  Request Board find that, consistent 
with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of Social 
Services and Mental Health funding (no General Funds) for one (1) Administrative 
Analyst III exists, as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and AuditorController; B) where internal candidates may meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal 
recruitment, but as a State Merit System position, an open recruitment would be 
more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of 
either an Administrative Analyst I at Range 68 ($4,444$5,400) or II at Range 70 
($4,660$5,668), dependent upon qualifications. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator)
 

  15. Clerk/Recorder  Request Board: A) declare CyberScout, LLC of Scottsdale, AZ a 
solesource provider of Establishing & Executing an Election Vulnerability 
Management  Process; B) approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and 
CyberScout, LLC of Scottsdale, AZ for the provision of Establishing & Executing an 
Election Vulnerability Management Process in an amount not to exceed $10,000 for 
the period of December 5, 2019 through December 5, 2020; and C) authorize the 
ClerkRecorder to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 

  16. County Administrator  Request Board approve Amendment No. 14 to the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates of Los Angeles, 
CA, extending the term of the contract through June 30, 2020, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              September 17, 2019

  17. County Administrator  Information Services  Request Board approve and award 
the contract for Information Technology Improvement Services to InfoTech 
Research Group of Las Vegas, NV in an amount not to exceed $24,120.90 for the 
period of October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2021, billed at $12,060.45 
annually, authorize payment for the first year's invoice, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign.

 

  18. County Administrator  Recycling & Waste Management  Request Board award 
a bid in the amount of $15,041.54 to McLaughlin Waste Equip, Inc. of Lockeford, CA 
for the purchase of two (2) recycling rolloff bins.

 

  19. Public Works  Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
Pestmaster Services of Reno, NV for the provision of  Insect and Pest Control 
Services for the period of October 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022 in the amount not 
to exceed $41,330.40, contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.

 

  20. Public Works  
Request Board: A) award the contract for the Bishop Airport Taxiway Rehabilitation 
Project (Project) to Qualcon Contractors Inc. of Minden, NV  as the successful 
bidder; B) approve the construction contract between the County of Inyo 
and  Qualcon Contractors Inc. of Minden, NV in the amount of $4,722,055, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon receipt of the forthcoming FAA 
grant for the Project and all appropriate signatures being obtained; and C) authorize 
the Public Works Director to execute all other project contract documents, including 
contract change orders, to the extent permitted by Public Contract Code Section 
20142 and other applicable laws. 

 

  21. Public Works  
Request Board: A) award the contract for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at the 
Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport to Granite Construction Inc. of Bakersfield, CA as the 
successful bidder; B) approve the construction contract between the County of Inyo 
and Granite Construction Inc. in the amount of $1,816,900, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon receipt of the forthcoming FAA grant for the 
Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Runway Rehabilitation Project and all appropriate 
signatures being obtained; and C) authorize the Public Works Director to execute all 
other project contract documents, including contract change orders, to the extent 
permitted by Public Contract Code Section 20142 and other applicable laws. 

 

  22. Public Works  Road Dept.  Request Board approve the closure of portions of Tu
Su Lane, Diaz Lane, and North Barlow Lane on Friday, September 27, 2019 between 
the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 12:30 p.m.

 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience)
 

  23. Clerk/Recorder  Request Board receive a presentation on the Changing Election 
Landscape.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              September 17, 2019

  24. County Administrator  Information Services  Request Board approve 
Amendment No. 4 to the Contract #CA2012.004 (“Master Agreement”) between the 
County of Inyo and Manatron, Inc. – a Thompson Reuters Business extending the 
term to November 30, 2019, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon 
all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 

  25. Health & Human Services  First 5  Request Board receive a presentation 
regarding the First 5 Commission's newly adopted 20192024 Strategic Plan.

 

  26. Public Works  Request Board:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 20192020 Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Pavement 
Budget (Budget 150504) as follows:  
     1. increase estimated revenue in State Grant (Revenue Code 4498) by $7,835;
     2. increase estimated revenue in Federal Grant (Revenue Code 4555) by 
$156,710;
     3. increase estimated revenue in Operating Transfer In (Revenue Code 4998) by 
$9,576;
     4. increase appropriation in Object Code Construction in Progress (Object Code 
5700) by $199,122;
     5. decrease appropriation in Object Code Professional Services (Object Code 
5265) by $25,001;

B) Amend the Fiscal Year 20192020 Auditor Controller – Geothermal (Budget 
010408) by increasing appropriation in Operating Transfer Out (Object Code 5801) 
by $9,576 (4/5 vote required); and

C) Approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and 
Wadell Engineering Corp. (WEC) of Burlingame, CA, to increase the contract to an 
amount not to exceed $126,465.00, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon receipt of the forthcoming FAA grant for the Lone Pine/Death Valley 
Airport Runway Rehabilitation Project and all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff)
 

  27. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS 
 



County of Inyo

Community Organization
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Proclamation Declaring October 18 Community Pink Day 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
PROCLAMATION - Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance - Request Board: A) receive brief presentation on local 
breast cancer awareness outreach efforts and activities; and B) approve a proclamation declaring October 18, 
2019 Community Pink Day in Inyo County.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance (ESCA) and its community partners, Northern Inyo Hospital, Southern Inyo 
Hospital, and Toiyabe Indian Healthcare Project, are again collaborating to sponsor and support activities and 
events in support of Breast Cancer Awareness Month in October.

ESCA is asking your Board to proclaim October 18, 2019 "Community Pink Day" in Inyo County in observance of 
Breast Cancer Awareness Month and National Mammography Day. 

NIH will additionally observe National Mammography Day on October 18 with programs at the hospital, and 
ESCA will be holding its annual Walk/Run the next day, October 19, at Bishop City Park.

Representatives from ESCA will be in attendance with representatives from NIH, SIH, and Toiyabe in a 
collaborative show of support to discuss these awareness and outreach efforts, and to formally request the Board 
approve a proclamation in support of Community Pink Day, when residents are encouraged to wear pink apparel 
and ribbons.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance is a grassroots non-profit organization founded in 2001, initially with the mission 
to support and provide resources to residents diagnosed with breast cancer. The organization has expanded 
over the past 19 years to serve residents diagnosed with all forms of cancer. 

ESCA works with other organizations, businesses, and agencies to provide financial and moral support for clients 
and families as they cope with their cancer diagnosis and costs of treatment. ESCA and its partners also work to 
educate the community about different forms of cancer in an effort to increase awareness of current practices 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

and positive outcomes in treating cancers.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the proclamation but this is not recommended.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance, Northern Inyo Hospital, Southern Inyo Hospital, Toiyabe Indian Healthcare 
Project
 
FINANCING:
There are no fiscal impacts associated with approving this proclamation.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Proclamation - Community Pink Day 2019
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/11/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 9/12/2019



PROCLAMATION 

OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 

COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DECLARING OCTOBER 18, 2019   

COMMUNITY PINK DAY IN INYO COUNTY 
 

WHEREAS, Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance is a grassroots organization founded in 2001, initially with the mission to 
support and provide resources to residents diagnosed with breast cancer; and 
 

WHEREAS, the non-profit organization has expanded in both size and scope over the past 19 years to serve residents of 
Inyo and Mono counties diagnosed with all forms of cancer; and  
 

WHEREAS, for almost two decades ESCA Board members have coordinated their efforts with countless compassionate 
volunteers and community organizations in service to those with cancer diagnoses – friends, family members, neighbors; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, this service includes educating the community in an effort to increase community awareness of current 
practices and positive outcomes in treating cancers today and the resources ESCA and other organizations offer; and 
most importantly, providing financial and moral support for clients and families as they cope with their cancer diagnosis 
and costs of treatment; and 
 

WHEREAS, ESCA continues to work diligently to maintain a respectful relationship with its clients and the organizations 
and individuals with which it partners; and  
 

WHEREAS, gaining the trust and commitment of various Inyo and Mono organizations, businesses, and healthcare 
agencies has allowed ESCA to continue its mission, improve programs, and serve more than 300 clients since 2001 – 
many of whom have needed repeat assistance due to travel out of the area for oncology appointments and cancer 
treatments; and  
 

WHEREAS, October has always been a special month for ESCA and its partners, since it is Breast Cancer Awareness 
Month, and the organization was originally founded to bring awareness to the disease and support those diagnosed with 
it; and  
 

WHEREAS, breast cancer did not become part of the national and public conversation until the 1970s, and even then 
change was slow for women to receive the support they needed and for necessary medical research taking place in 
order to treat breast cancer with improved outcomes; and 
 

WHEREAS, today, the American Cancer Society urges women to speak with their doctors about their risk for breast 
cancer, and the ACS has updated breast screening mammogram recommendations based on age and family history; and 
 

WHEREAS, the color pink is now the universally recognized color of breast cancer awareness; and  
 

WHEREAS, ESCA continues to recognize the importance of both breast cancer awareness and mammography as a 
screening tool and hopes to inspire and invite the communities of Inyo and Mono counties to join in its mission, 
supporting and cheering for friends, neighbors and family members with cancer in a fun, positive way by participating in 
“Community Pink Day.” 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors does hereby join ESCA in its mission by unanimously 
proclaiming October 18, 2019 as Community Pink Day in observance of Breast Cancer Awareness and National 
Mammography Day. 
 

PASSED AND PROCLAIMED this 17th day of September 2019. 
                                                              
   
                                                                                                                        Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
Attest:   C L I N T  G .  Q U I L T E R  
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d  
 
        
  by:       _____________________________________ 
                  Assistant Clerk of the Board 

 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Lucy Vincent 
 
SUBJECT:  Request for authorization to hire one A-Par Health and Human Services (HHS) Specialist I in the 
HHS Behavioral Health Division. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for one (1) APAR Health and Human Services Specialist I exists in the Behavioral Health budget, as 
certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where 
internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an 
internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) 
approve the hiring of one (1) APAR Health and Human Services Specialist I at Range 50PT ($15.60-$19.01/hr.). 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
An A-Par HHS Specialist I position in the Behavioral Health Division is vacant as an employee in this this position 
moved out of the area. This position is an entry level position targeted especially towards persons who have lived 
experience with the behavioral health system. The Specialist will provide a range of services, both direct service 
provision as a Peer Specialist and as part of the team in support of the Wellness Center through welcoming, 
reception, and linkage to staff and other resources.

The Department respectfully requests your Board's authorization to hire a part-time HHS Specialist I to fill the 
vacancy.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose to not to allow Behavioral Health to hire this position. This would limit our ability to 
provide peer support services, a critical aspect of the recovery model and part of our MHSA Plan.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Behavioral Health is a division of Health and Human Services and works in partnership with multiple agencies 
such as probation, primary health, and law enforcement, in addition to most other HHS divisions. The Adult/Older 
Adult team works most closely with the primary healthcare providers, social security, landlords, and adult social 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

services.
 
FINANCING:
State MHSA funds, Medi-Cal reimbursement as allowed, and Mental Health Realignment funds. This position is 
budgeted 100% in Mental Health (045200) in the salaries and benefits object codes. No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 8/30/2019
Rhiannon Baker Approved - 8/30/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 8/30/2019
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 8/30/2019
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 9/4/2019
Lucy Vincent Approved - 9/4/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/6/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/9/2019
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 9/9/2019



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Social Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Rhiannon Baker 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to hire an Administrative Analyst I or II in Health and Human Services. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
Social Services and Mental Health funding (no General Funds) for one (1) Administrative Analyst I-II exists, as 
certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where 
internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an 
internal recruitment, but as a State Merit System position, an open recruitment would be more appropriate to 
ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of either an Administrative Analyst I at Range 68 
($4,444-$5,400) or II at Range 70 ($4,660-$5,668), dependent upon qualifications. 

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Administrative Analyst II position in HHS recently became vacant. The Administrative Analyst position 
collects, monitors, and analyzes data for quality assurance and quality improvement purposes, including meeting 
state mandated quality assurance requirements for child welfare and In Home Supportive Services (IHSS). The 
data includes areas such as access, timeliness of services, disparities, cultural competency, client satisfaction, 
federal program integrity, electronic billing and electronic health records. Data is monitored and analyzed to look 
for trends and outcomes. This position helps identify opportunities to expand data collection and data collection 
systems for continuous quality improvement. A primary focus is monitoring and analyzing both short term and 
long term outcomes for specialty populations such as inmates re-entering the community, to help ensure the 
Community Correction Partnership (CCP) leadership is making informed policy decisions. This position reports to 
our HHS Program Integrity and Quality Assurance (PIQA) Manager to ensure that analysis and improvements 
are within the bigger HHS and County “picture”. 

The Department is respectfully requesting authorization to recruit and hire an Administrative Analyst I or II in HHS 
dependent upon qualifications. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Your Board could choose not to authorize the hiring of the Administrative Analyst I or II position. This will limit our 
ability to develop our expertise in the area of evaluation and outcomes, as well as potentially impact our ability to 
meet state requirements. This is a critical area as we need to ensure that efficiency and effectiveness is achieved 
in our use of public funds.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
CA Department of Social Services, Probation, Community Corrections Partnership
 
FINANCING:
State, Federal, and Behavioral and Social Services Realignment funds. This position is currently budgeted 50% 
in the Social Services Budget (055800) and 50% in the Mental Health Budget (045200) in the Salary and Benefits 
object category. No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Rhiannon Baker Created/Initiated - 9/3/2019
Marilyn Mann Approved - 9/3/2019
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 9/4/2019
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 9/4/2019
Rhiannon Baker Approved - 9/5/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/6/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/6/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/9/2019
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 9/9/2019



County of Inyo

Clerk/Recorder
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare CyberScout, LLC of Scottsdale, AZ a sole-source provider of Establishing & 
Executing an Election Vulnerability Management  Process; B) approve the agreement between the County of 
Inyo and CyberScout, LLC of Scottsdale, AZ for the provision of Establishing & Executing an Election 
Vulnerability Management Process in an amount not to exceed $10,000 for the period of December 5, 2019 
through December 5, 2020; and C) authorize the Clerk-Recorder to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In 2018, in response to allegations of election meddling in the 2016 Presidential Election cycle, Congress 
allocated $380 million to help safeguard U.S. voting systems from cyber-attacks. 

As per Resolution 2006-33, the Inyo County Clerk-Recorder has been delegated the authority to negotiate, 
execute and submit all required documentation to apply for Grant Funding offered by the Help America Vote Act 
(HAVA). On April 19, 2019, we received an executed contract with the California Secretary of State in the amount 
of $10,000 to provide the County of Inyo with HAVA Federal funds provided by the U.S. Election Assistance 
Commission (EAC) for county efforts to improve cyber security and infrastructure related to VoteCal.

Since 2016, the Inyo County Elections office has taken several steps to further secure our election infrastructure 
including:

1. Purchased a new voting system that is wi-fi disabled, air-gapped and is not connected to the internet.

2. Joined the Multi-State Information Security & Analysis Center (MS-ISAC) and the Election Infrastructure 
Information Security & Analysis Center (EI-ISAC).

3. Contracted with the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) to receive their no-cost services which include: a 
Cyber-Hygiene Vulnerability Scan, a Risk and Vulnerability Assessment and a Phishing Campaign Assessment.
  
4. Initiated the process of purchasing “Albert”, which is a network monitoring solution that provides automated 
alerts on both traditional and advanced network threats. 

5. Upgraded our Elections Website from http to https 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

6. Completed cyber-security training courses

After an extensive evaluation of how best to spend the HAVA grant, it was determined that contracting with an 
independent Cyber-security firm to complete an internal forensic evaluation of network activity during the 2020 
election cycle, would be the best use of these funds to assure voters that not only is Inyo County taking every 
precaution to prevent election hacking or intrusion, but that we can evaluate all activity to analyze forensically 
whether any of our systems were breached and to what extent. 

To accomplish the forensic analysis, Cyber-scout will place a device in each of our local County networks that 
include voter data. Once the device is in place, CyberScout will perform these steps each quarter: 

1. Run technical scans on all relevant segments of the internal network, looking for evidence of adversary 
activity. 

2. Review the results and rank the findings in terms of severity of the risk and the likelihood that the detected 
activity may lead to a breach.
 
3. They may use manual and further automated techniques to determine what can be exploited using discovered 
vulnerabilities.

4. Collaborate with County to assign an individual or group to remediate the issue and report when it is 
complete. 

Objective 1: 
• A documented process for forensic analysis and incident response for the County. 
• A written plan for conducting the testing, including roles and responsibilities for the County personnel. 

Objective 2: 
• A listing of each technical issue or vulnerability discovered across Inyo County, along with recommendations for 
the remediation of each of them. 
• Quarterly reports itemizing the discovered activity, along with an indication of their severity and likelihood of 
consequence. 
• A tracking of any previous vulnerability assessment or penetration test as requested.

As County Administrator Clint Quilter said in the FY 19/20 Budget narrative “It is acknowledged that free elections 
are one of the cornerstones of our democracy and that maintaining the integrity of the systems that support them 
is of utmost importance. “  For this reason, we are asking that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors authorize the 
requested contract to ensure we are taking every necessary step to safeguard our elections during the 2020 
Presidential Primary election cycle. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could deny the request to award this Sole-Source contract and require the Clerk-Recorder to issue an 
RFP for services.

 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Information Services
 
FINANCING:
Funds to reimburse $10,000 will be forwarded from the Secretary of State under the provisions of HAVA Grant 
Agreement #18G27114, contingent on the adoption of the FY 2019-2020 Budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CyberScout Contract - 9.3.19
2. HAVA contract #18G27114
3. Resolution 2006-33
 
APPROVALS:
Kammi Foote Created/Initiated - 8/13/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/14/2019
Kammi Foote Approved - 8/27/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 8/28/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/4/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/5/2019
Scott Armstrong Approved - 9/6/2019
Aaron Holmberg Final Approval - 9/6/2019



M A S T E R  S E R V I C E S  A G R E E M E N T

This Master Services Agreement, including all attached 
exhibits and appendices (“Agreement”) is entered into 
between CyberScout, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company with its principal executive offices at 7580 N. 
Dobson Rd., Suite 201, Scottsdale, AZ 85256 (“CyberScout”), 
and the party indicated below (“Client”), effective as of the 
date indicated below (“Effective Date”).  CyberScout and 
Client each may be referred to as a “Party” and collectively as 
the “Parties.”

County of Inyo
Name of Client

P.O. Drawer F
Independence, CA  93526
Principal Office Address

9/3/2019
Effective Date

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which hereby is acknowledged, the 
Parties agree as follows:

1. PROVISION OF SERVICES

1.1 During the Term of this Agreement, CyberScout shall 
provide each service as described separately in each 
statement of work (“SOW”) mutually agreed to by the Parties 
(the “Services”).  Each executed SOW shall be attached 
hereto in sequential order as Appendix A-1, A-2, etc. and is 
deemed part of this Agreement.  The main body of this 
Agreement shall control over any conflicting provisions in an 
SOW, unless such SOW expressly states that the conflicting 
provision should prevail over the main body of this 
Agreement.

1.2. If Client has requested that CyberScout provide the 
Services on behalf of one of Client’s customers, insureds, or 
clients, Client shall require such customer, insured and/or 
client to enter into a written agreement with Client that is at 
least as protective of CyberScout as this Agreement and 
which shall include the disclaimer of warranties and 
limitations of liability set forth below for protection of 
CyberScout.  Client shall use best efforts to enforce the 
agreement on behalf of CyberScout as may be requested by 
CyberScout from time to time.

2. FEES; PAYMENT

The fees for the Services shall be as set forth in the applicable 
SOW and Client shall pay the fees in accordance with the 
payment provisions in the SOW.  Client agrees to pay a late 
charge at the rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per 
month, or the maximum lawful rate permitted by applicable 
law, whichever is less, for all amounts not paid when due.

3. TERM AND TERMINATION

3.1 Term.  This Agreement will begin on the Effective Date 
and will continue in effect until otherwise terminated in 

accordance with Section 3.2 below.  The term of each SOW 
shall be set forth in the SOW.

3.2 Termination.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, either 
Party may terminate this Agreement or any SOW (i) 
immediately in the event of a material breach of this 
Agreement or any such SOW by the other Party that is not 
cured within thirty (30) days of written notice from the other 
Party, or (ii) immediately if the other Party ceases doing 
business or is the subject of a voluntary or involuntary 
bankruptcy, insolvency or similar proceeding, that is not 
dismissed within sixty (60) days of filing.  In addition, 
CyberScout may terminate this Agreement or any SOW in its 
sole discretion, immediately upon written notice, if Client 
fails to timely pay any invoice.  Termination of an SOW shall 
not be deemed a termination of this Agreement.  Termination 
of this Agreement shall, however, terminate all outstanding 
SOWs.  Either Party may also terminate this Agreement upon 
no less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the other 
Party for any reason, if at such time there are no outstanding 
SOWs then currently in effect.  All rights and obligations of 
the Parties which by their nature are reasonably intended to 
survive such termination or expiration will survive 
termination or expiration of this Agreement and each SOW.  
Except as expressly provided herein, termination of this 
Agreement by either party will be a nonexclusive remedy for 
breach and will be without prejudice to any other right or 
remedy of such party.

4. INDEMNIFICATION

4.1 Indemnification Obligations. Each Party (the 
“Indemnifying Party”) will indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless the other Party, its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, 
directors, officers, employees, agents and sub-contractors 
(any such party seeking indemnification, the “Indemnified 
Party”) from and against any third party claims (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses and damages 
awarded by a court of competent jurisdiction or agreed to in 
settlement) alleging the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of the Indemnifying Party in connection with this 
Agreement.

4.2 Indemnification Procedures.  The Indemnified Party will 
promptly notify the Indemnifying Party of any Claim for which 
the Indemnified Party is seeking indemnification pursuant to 
this Section 4.  The Indemnifying Party may thereafter 
assume control of such Claim, provided that the Indemnified 
Party will have the right to participate in the defense or 
settlement at its own expense.  Neither the Indemnifying 
Party nor the Indemnified Party may unilaterally settle any 
such Claim or consent to any judgment with respect thereto.  
The Indemnified Party will provide the Indemnifying Party 
with a reasonable amount of assistance in connection with 
defending or settling any such Claim.

5. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

5.1 Consequential Damage Exclusion.  Neither Party 
(including CyberScout’s licensors and suppliers) will be liable 
to the other or any third party for loss of profits or for any 
special, indirect, incidental, consequential or exemplary 
damages (including without limitation, damages for loss of 



Page 2 of 7

business profits, loss of goodwill, business interruption, loss 
of business information and/or data) in connection with this 
Agreement, or the performance of any obligations under this 
Agreement, even if it is aware of the possibility of the 
occurrence of such damages, provided such consequential 
damages were not due to a Party’s grossly negligent acts 
and/or omissions or willful or intentional misconduct. 

5.2 Limitation of Liability.  Except for a Party’s breach of 
Section 6 or its willful misconduct, and excluding Client’s 
payment obligations under this Agreement, the total 
cumulative liability of each Party for any and all claims and 
damages under this Agreement, whether arising by statute, 
contract, tort or otherwise, will not exceed three (3) times 
the amount of the fees paid by Client to CyberScout 
hereunder during the twelve (12) month period immediately 
preceding the event giving rise to the claim.  The provisions of 
this Agreement allocate risks between the Parties.  The 
pricing set forth in each SOW reflects this allocation of risk 
and the limitation of liability specified herein.

6. CONFIDENTIALITY

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or with the 
consent of the other party hereto, the Parties agree that all 
information concerning CyberScout or Client, or any of their 
respective affiliates, and provided by or on behalf of any of 
them, including without limitation information regarding 
either Party’s marketing, strategies, processes and methods, 
information systems, business operations, and business 
systems, and information about Client’s Customers 
(“Confidential Information”), shall remain confidential and 
shall not be utilized or disclosed, directly or indirectly, by the 
Party receiving such information for its own business 
purposes or for any other purpose, except and solely to the 
extent that any such information is: (a) already known by, or 
in the possession of the non-disclosing Party, (b) thereafter 
rightly obtained by the non-disclosing Party from a source 
other than the disclosing Party that is rightfully in possession 
of such information and that has not imposed an obligation of 
confidentiality upon the recipient Party, (c) is independently 
developed by a Party without reference to the Confidential 
Information of the other Party, (d) is or becomes publicly 
known through no wrongful act of the non-disclosing Party, 
or (e) the disclosing Party consents to the disclosure.  Client 
agrees that CyberScout Materials and the substance and 
terms of this Agreement and the relationship between the 
Parties (including pricing, scope, and methodology), shall 
remain confidential. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each 
Party is hereby authorized to disclose any such information to 
the extent that it is required to be disclosed as a matter of 
law, provided that, to the extent permitted by law, the 
disclosing Party uses all reasonable efforts to provide the 
non-disclosing Party with at least ten (10) days’ prior written 
notice of any such required disclosure.

7. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS

7.1 As between CyberScout and Client, Client retains 
ownership of all right, title and interest in and to all 
information, data, and materials provided by Client to 
CyberScout in connection with this Agreement or the Services 
(excluding materials that are in the public domain).

7.2 As between CyberScout and Client, CyberScout retains 
all ownership and other intellectual property rights in and to 
the Services and everything developed, designed or created 
by CyberScout before or in the course of providing the 
Services hereunder, including processes, methods, know-
how, and works of authorship.  If applicable, all third party 
services, products, and applications provided or made 
available in connection with the CyberScout Services are and 
shall remain the property of the third party provider.

8. DISCLAIMERS OF WARRANTIES

8.1 CYBERSCOUT PROVIDES THE SERVICES WITHOUT 
WARRANTY.  MORE SPECIFICALLY, CYBERSCOUT EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED AND EXPRESS WARRANTIES, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, TITLE, MERCHANTABILITY AND 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND MAKES NO 
WARRANTY THAT (i) SERVICES PROVIDED REMOTELY OR 
OVER THE INTERNET WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, TIMELY, 
SECURE, OR ERROR-FREE, OR (II) BY RETAINING CYBERSCOUT 
FOR THE SERVICES OR IMPLEMENTING CYBERSCOUT’S 
RECOMMENDATIONS, CLIENT WILL AVOID, PREVENT OR 
RESOLVE A DATABASE COMPROMISE, UNAUTHORIZED 
DISCLOSURE OF PII OR PHI, OR SECURITY INCIDENT, OR WILL 
AVOID LEGAL ACTION BY IMPACTED INDIVIDUALS, 
GOVERNMENT AGENCIES, OR REGULATORY BODIES. 

8.2. THE RESULTS OF THE SERVICES ARE DEPENDENT ON 
THE INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE TO CYBERSCOUT.  THE 
ACCURACY AND RELIABLITY OF THE RESULTS OF THE 
SERVICES MAY BE COMPROMISED IF CLIENT FAILS TO MAKE 
INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO CYBERSCOUT OR PROVIDES 
INACCURATE OR UNRELIABLE INFORMATION, AND 
CYBERSCOUT SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY AS A RESULT 
THEREOF.

8.3. WHILE CYBERSCOUT WILL PROVIDE GUIDANCE 
REGARDING THE PROVISION OF SERVICES AND WILL MAKE 
SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATIONS AS PART OF THE SERVICES, 
CYBERSCOUT CANNOT AND WILL NOT RENDER LEGAL ADVICE 
OR BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CLIENT’S ACTIONS OR INACTION 
WITH RESPECT THERETO. FINAL RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY 
ACTIONS TAKEN BY CLIENT OR INACTION OF CLIENT 
REGARDING (I) FOLLOWING OR IMPLEMENTING 
CYBERSCOUT’S GUIDANCE AND RECOMMENDATIONS AND (II) 
HANDLING ANY ASPECTS, LEGAL OR OTHERWISE, OF A 
SECURITY INCIDENT, DATABASE COMPROMISE, OR 
UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE OF PII OR PHI WILL REST SOLELY 
WITH CLIENT, ITS MANAGEMENT, AND ITS LEGAL COUNSEL.

9. MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 No Assignment/Inurement.  Neither Party will assign 
this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written 
consent of the non-assigning Party; provided, however that 
CyberScout may assign this Agreement to its successor in a 
merger, acquisition or other consolidation, including without 
limitation the sale of all or substantially all of its assets, stock 
or business to which this Agreement relates.  This Agreement 
shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the 
Parties and their permitted assigns.  



Page 3 of 7

9.2 Subcontractors. CyberScout may perform certain 
aspects of the Services using subcontractors, in which case 
the subcontractors’ permitted expenses shall be reimbursable 
to the same extent as if they were incurred directly by 
CyberScout itself and, if the Parties have agreed that 
CyberScout’s fees shall be based on time spent on the 
engagement, the subcontractors’ time shall be billed at the 
same rate as CyberScout’s. CyberScout shall remain 
responsible at all times for the provision of the Services and 
shall be liable for acts or omissions of the subcontractors in 
the course of performing Services to the same extent as if 
they were acts or omissions of CyberScout itself.

9.3 Waiver.  No Party shall be deemed to have waived any 
of its rights, powers or remedies hereunder unless such 
waiver is embodied in writing executed by such Party.  The 
waiver by either Party of any breach or default by the other 
Party in the performance of any obligation hereunder shall 
not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default.

9.4. Governing Law and Dispute Resolution.  This Agreement 
shall be interpreted, construed, governed and enforced under 
the laws of the State of ArizonaCalifornia, excluding its 
conflicts of laws principles. For the purpose of resolving any 
dispute with respect to this Agreement, each Party agrees to 
non-exclusive personal jurisdiction and venue in any court of 
competent jurisdiction within InyoMaricopa County, 
CaliforniaArizona.  With respect to any litigation arising out 
of this Agreement, each Party expressly waives any right it 
may have to a jury trial.  Before resorting to litigation, the 
Parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by 
mediation administered by the American Arbitration 
Association under its Commercial Mediation Procedures, 
sharing the costs of the mediator and the American 
Arbitration Association equally.  If litigation shall be 
commenced to enforce, or relating to, any provision of this 
Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to an award 
of reasonable attorneys’ fees and of all such other costs and 
disbursements (without regard to whether they are statutory 
costs) as it reasonably incurs in prosecuting or defending such 
litigation, including appeals.

9.5. Notices.  Any notice provided for under this Agreement 
shall be in writing and shall be deemed given (i) when 
delivered on a business day if delivered personally during 
normal business hours at the place of receipt; (ii) on the next 
business day at the place of receipt after deposit with any 
overnight courier for next business day delivery; or (iii) the 
date of receipt if delivered by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid.  Any notice provided for under 
this Agreement shall be addressed to the recipient’s address 
set forth in this Agreement, but either party may change the 
address to which notice or payment is to be sent by giving 
written notice to the other in accordance with this Section 
9.5.

9.6. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be 
held illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall be 

enforced to the greatest extent permissible so as to effect the 
Parties’ intent, and the legality, validity and enforceability of 
the remaining provisions shall not be affected or impaired.

9.7. Force Majeure.  A Party shall be excused from 
performance to the extent such performance is prevented or 
delayed by an event beyond its reasonable control (“Event of 
Force Majeure”), including without limitation acts of God, 
fire, explosion, strikes, accident, floods, embargoes, 
epidemics, war, nuclear disaster, riot, change in applicable 
law, acts of a competent authority, disruption of 
telecommunications, power or other essential services, or 
interruption or termination of service by the Internet access 
provider being used by such Party for reasons outside of its 
control, including the actions of “hackers” or other hostile 
entities or persons, and infections by malicious code or any 
electronic disruptions, physical disruptions, or unauthorized 
access.  The affected Party shall promptly notify the other 
Party in writing of the Event of Force Majeure and will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to minimize the impact of 
the event.

9.8. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth the entire 
Agreement and understanding among the Parties as to the 
subject matter hereof, and merges and supersedes all prior 
discussions, agreements, proposals, and understandings 
among them involving the subject matter hereof, including 
any proposal previously provided by CyberScout describing a 
suggested scope or approach to any services.  This Agreement 
shall be effective only when signed by all the Parties and may 
be modified only by a written instrument signed by the 
Parties. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but 
all of which, together, shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  Signatures to this Agreement transmitted by 
facsimile, by electronic mail in “portable document format” 
(“.pdf”), or by any other electronic means which preserves 
the original graphic and pictorial appearance of the 
Agreement, shall have the same effect as physical delivery of 
the paper document bearing the original signature and shall 
for all purposes be treated as an original.

9.9 Survival.  Sections 4 through 9 shall survive any 
termination or expiration of this Agreement.

9.10 Headings.  Except as provided in the immediately 
preceding subparagraph, headings used in this Agreement are 
for reference only and in no way define or limit the scope or 
extent of any provision of this Agreement.  This Agreement 
will be construed in accordance with its fair meaning, with no 
inference drawn against the drafting Party.

9.11 Relationship of the Parties.  The Parties enter this 
Agreement as independent contractors.  This Agreement 
does not create a partnership, joint venture or employment 
relationship and neither Party will represent itself as an 
employee or agent of the other or enter into any Agreement 
on the other’s behalf.

(Signature Page Follows)



Page 4 of 7

Executed and delivered by the parties’ authorized representatives on the last date indicated below.

County of Inyo CyberScout, LLC

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

      
Print Name of Signer Print Name of Signer

      
Print Title of Signer Print Title of Signer

      
Date Signed Date Signed

CyberScout Use Only

  Contract No. 00003827



Page 5 of 7

A P P E N D I X  A - 1  -  S T A T E M E N T  O F  W O R K

THIS STATEMENT OF WORK FOR CONSULTING SERVICES (the 
“SOW”) is entered into between CyberScout, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company with its principal offices at 7580 N. 
Dobson Road, Suite 201, Scottsdale, AZ 85256 
(“CyberScout”); and the party indicated below (“Client”), 
effective as of the date indicated below (“Effective Date”).

County of Inyo
Name of Client

9/3/2019
Effective Date

This SOW is subject to the Master Services Agreement 
executed by the Parties herewith (the “Agreement”).  Defined 
terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 
accorded to such terms in the Agreement.  In the event of 
any conflict between the terms of this SOW and the 
Agreement, the terms of the Agreement shall control unless 
expressly otherwise agreed herein.

1. PERFORMANCE PERIOD

The performance period for this SOW shall begin on 
December 1, 2019 (services will not be performed and fees 
will not be incurred prior to that date).  The performance 
period will continue for a period of one year, with the SOW 
concluding as of December 1, 2020 unless the Agreement is 
terminated earlier as provided therein.

2. CYBERSCOUT OBLIGATIONS

2.1 Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, 
including payment of the applicable fees, CyberScout shall 
provide the consulting services specified in Exhibit A to this 
Appendix A-1 (the “Services”).  Exhibit A is incorporated by 
reference herein. 

2.2 Upon completion of the Services, CyberScout shall 
securely destroy all Client Materials (as defined below in 
Section 3.1) provided to CyberScout and in CyberScout's 
possession using secure destruction methods and processes, 
and shall, upon request, provide Client with written 
confirmation of such destruction.  Any copies of such Client 
Materials that may exist in CyberScout’s backup tapes or 
similar backup media shall be destroyed pursuant to 
CyberScout’s standard schedule.

3. CLIENT OBLIGATIONS

3.1 Client shall deliver or make available all information, 
computer software and hardware, and other related 
materials necessary for CyberScout to perform the Services 
(“Client Materials”) via a delivery method mutually agreed to 
by the parties, which may be by e-mail.  If the parties 

mutually agree to use a courier service such as Federal 
Express or UPS or other similar vendor, CyberScout shall have 
no responsibility for any delay in the performance of the 
services caused by the failure of the courier service to deliver 
the Client Materials.  If CyberScout provides a device to Client 
as part of the engagement for purposes of connecting to 
Client’s network or system, Client acknowledges that the 
device will need to be returned to CyberScout.

3.2 Client shall provide a single point of contact to 
coordinate requests for information, access to systems/data, 
and scheduling of meetings.

3.3 With respect to any electronic devices and/or any files, 
accounts, or data that Client provides to CyberScout or 
permits CyberScout to access hereunder, Client warrants that 
it owns such devices, files, accounts, and data or otherwise 
has the necessary permissions to give CyberScout or its 
subcontractors access to same, including where applicable 
and necessary any consent or authorization required to be 
obtained from an identifiable individual.

4. FEES; INVOICING; PAYMENT

4.1 Fees.  In consideration for the Services, Client shall pay 
CyberScout the following fees:

Objective 1 $2,000.00

Objective 2 $8,000.00

(“Objective 1” and “Objective 2” are defined in the service 
description attached as Exhibit A to this SOW.)  The fees shall 
be payable upfront upon execution of this SOW.

4.2 Travel Expenses.  Client shall also pay for CyberScout’s 
reasonable travel expenses, including commercial airfare 
(economy class), standard business-class hotel 
accommodations (no luxury or resort-type accommodations), 
and reasonable meal expenses.  CyberScout will keep meal 
costs moderate, reflecting rates typical of the area.  If it is 
necessary to use ground transportation, CyberScout will 
utilize the most cost-effective mode of transportation and 
will if renting a vehicle select a compact or mid-sized option.  
CyberScout will obtain Client’s advance written approval if it 
becomes necessary to deviate from these travel guidelines.

4.3 Invoicing; Payment.  Fees shall be billed monthly in 
arrears.  CyberScout shall invoice Client each month for the 
fees incurred during the preceding month and any 
documented reimbursable expenses.  Client shall pay all 
invoices within thirty (30) days of its receipt of CyberScout’s 
invoice.  Invoices are deemed undisputed unless Client 
provides a written notice explaining the grounds for dispute 
on or before the date payment would otherwise be due.

(Signatures Follow after Exhibit A)



Page 6 of 7

EXHIBIT A TO APPENDIX A-1
SERVICE DESCRIPTION – ELECTIONS SECURITY ASSESSMENT SERVICES

Background:  The goal of this engagement is to put into place a process for monitoring and improving the security 
and privacy of Inyo County’s election data, reducing the overall risk of a compromise of the election process.  

Scope:  The engagement will include the technology, processes, and organizational controls that the County 
employs to protect voter data and activities.  We will also consider the scope of current assistance the County 
receives from the Dept. of Homeland Security, as well as its processes for vulnerability management and threat 
detection.  It may also include the network components that house voter rolls, vote counts, or any infrastructure 
that could represent a risk to security and privacy of voter data.

Objective 1: Establish a Process to Monitor and Improve County Election Security 

We will work with the County Registrar of Voters and technical staff to place a device in each of the local County 
networks that may include voter data.  This will allow us to remotely conduct a quarterly forensic assessment 
without traveling to the County.  We will also configure the device to allow us to perform forensic investigation in 
the event of suspicious activity or a breach.

We will begin by developing a process in collaboration with the Registrar and election technology leadership that 
will define roles and responsibilities.  CyberScout will then develop educational material and a detailed technical 
process for managing the quarterly assessments. 

We will develop a reporting process that will be executed each quarter, and we will put the format into place to 
execute the reporting. We will also document roles and responsibilities for: 

 Execution of 
testing 

 Training 
 Support 
 Maintenance 

 Remediation 
 Re-testing 
 Incident response and forensics

We will establish a timeline for the implementation of the device, and we will establish a timeline for testing that 
covers the applicable County networks each quarter over the course of the year. 

Objective 2: Execute the Elections Vulnerability Management Process for Inyo County 

Once the device is in place, CyberScout will perform these steps each quarter: 

1. Run technical scans on all relevant segments of the internal network, looking for evidence of 
adversary activity. 

2. Review the results and rank the findings in terms of severity of the risk and the likelihood that the 
detected activity may lead to a breach. 

3. We may use manual and further automated techniques to determine what can be exploited using 
discovered vulnerabilities.

4. Collaborate with County to assign an individual or group to remediate the issue and report when it is 
complete. 

Results:  The ultimate result will be a reduced risk for privacy and security breaches before and during future 
elections.  Specific deliverables for each objective will include: 

Objective 1: 

• A documented process for forensic analysis and incident response for the County. 



Page 7 of 7

• A written plan for conducting the testing, including roles and responsibilities for the County 
personnel. 

Objective 2: 

• A listing of each technical issue or vulnerability discovered across Inyo County, along with 
recommendations for the remediation of each of them. 

• Quarterly reports itemizing the discovered activity, along with an indication of their severity and 
likelihood of consequence. 

• A tracking of Inyo County’s progress since its previous vulnerability assessment or penetration test. 

Executed and delivered by the parties’ authorized representatives on the last date indicated below.

County of Inyo CyberScout, LLC

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

      
Print Name of Signer Print Name of Signer

      
Print Title of Signer Print Title of Signer

      
Date Signed Date Signed



ALBx Paprlu, I secREraRy oF srATE I srATE oF .ALTF.RNTA
MANAGEMENT SERVICES I CONTRACT SERVICES
t5oo tre street, Room 46o I sacramento, cA 95814 | Tel 916.653 ,sgz+ lFaxg6.6ss.ggz4 | www.sos.ca.gov

April 19,2018

Inyo County
Attn: Kammi Foote, Registrar of Voters
PO Drawer F
lndependence CA 93526

Subject: Agreement #18G27 1 14

Gomplete the following item(s) and return to the address stated above within ten
(10) business days, if necessary:

STD. 213, Standard Agreement with attached exhibits. Please acquire the
appropriate signature on the first page of the STD. 213, and the additional three
single STD 213's and return to the address above. Fax and photocopies are not
acceptable. A fully executed copy will be returned to you.

X STD. 213A, Standard Agreement Amendment. Please acquire the appropriate
signature for the first page of the STD. 213A and the additional three single STD.
213A's and return to the address above. Fax and Photocopies are not acceptable
A fully executed copy will be returned to you.

STD. 210, Short Form Contract. Please acquire the appropriate signature for the
four single STD. 210's and return. Fax and Photocopies are not acceptable. A
fully executed copy will be returned to you.

n STD. 65, Contract / Delegation Purchase Order. Enclosed is an executed copy for
your records. You are now authorized to provide services.

The enclosed agreement is signed on behalf of the Secretary of State. Please
process and mail an executed copy of the agreement to the address above.

X Executed copy for your records.

n STD. 204 Payee Data Record (STD. 204) - Complete and return

n CCC 307 Contractor Certification Clause - Complete and return.

n Please submit a copy of your Seller's Permit.

Please submit a copy of the resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of your local
governing body, which by law has granted the authority to enter into the proposed
contract, authorizing execution of the agreement.



STATE OF,CALIFORNIA - DEPARTMENT OF GENEML SERVICES

.STANDARD AGREEMENT
STD 213 (Rev, 10/2018)

1. This Agreement is entered into between the Contracting Agency and the Contractor named below:
CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME

Secretary of State

AGREEMENT NUMBER

18G27114

PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (if applicable)

CONTRACTOR NA[/E

lnyo County

2. The term of this reement is:

January 2,2019 or upon approval by Dept. of General Services, if required, whichever is later

THROUGH END DATE

June 30, 2021

3. The maximum amount of this Agreement is:

$ 10,000.00
Ten thousand Dollars and Zero Cents
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following exhibits, which are by this reference made part of

the reement.
EXHIBITS

Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C *

Exhibit D
Exhibit E
Exhibit F
Exhibit G
Items shown with an are hereby incorporated by reference made paft of this agreement as if
These documents can be viewed at vvww.dgs.ca.gov/ols/resources/standardcontractlanguage.aspx

2
3

Grc 0412017
3
2

/N W/INESS THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.

PAGEITITLE

Scope of Work
Budget Detail and Payment Provisions
General Terms and Conditions

)aSpecial Terms and Conditions (Attached hereto as part of this Agreement)
Additional Provisions

JACounty Resolution
Contractor HAVA Activitv Report

CONTRACTOR
CONTRACTOR NAME (if other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.)

lnyo County

AUUKTbS

P.O. Drawer F

RINTED NAME OF

CITY

lndependence
STATE

CA
ztP

93526

(cr^o

z-tt eo rtl
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME

Secretary of State

1500 11 Street

NAME OF PERSON

Shannon Kauffman

CITY

Sacramento
STATE

CA

DA

I

95814

Business Operations Manager

IF

Gov Code S 14616

Page 1 of 1



lnyo Gounty
t8G27tt4

Pagel of2
EXHIBIT A

(Standard Agreement)

SCOPE OF WORK

A. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the County of lnyo (County) with Help
America Vote Act (HAVA) Federal funds provided by the U.S. Election Assistance
Commission (EAC) for county efforts to improve cyber security and infrastructure
related to VoteCal.

1. The program representatives during the term of this Agreement will be

County: Kammi Foote (760) 878-0224
SOS: Harjit Basi (916) 695-1627

B. APPROPRIATE USES OF HAVA FUNDS

HAVA funds received pursuant to this contract shall be used for reimbursement for
costs reasonably incurred for:

1. Conducting security assessments, such as: penetration testing, scanning, phishing

testing, red team exercises, social engineering, and wireless access discovery. An

assessment should, at a minimum, include a review of:

o Critical, high risk technology systems.
o User access controls and passwords.
o lnternet faiing systems to identify public facing vulnerabilities and

configuration errors.
o Applicable regulations and standards.
o Multiprotocol Label Switching network access points between VoteCal and

the county.
o Patch management strategY.
o All sensitive data that is maintained and its protection.
o lncident response plans.

2. Third party software and/or hardware in support of improving the county's cyber
secutity capabilities related to VoteCal. All hardware andior third-party software
must be in supporl of VoteCal infrastructure related to cyber security.

3. Software, hardware or consulting services and/or any associated lT installation

directly related to cyber security risks.
4. Privacy and security awareness training to all staff utilizing the county voter

registration and election information systems in accordance with State

Administrative Manual (SAM) Sections 5320 - 5320.2 and the lnformation

Practices Act of 1977 (California Civil Code SS1798 et seq). Training shall include

cyber security best practices, including how to recognize a phishing email, creating

and maintaining strong passwords, utilizing multi-factor authentication, and

avoiding dangerous applications.



lnyo County
18G27114

Page2 ol 2
EXHIBIT A

(Standard Agreement)

5. Physically securing servers hosting county voter registration and election
information systems including the county's Election Management System (EMS)
and county EMS databases as well as any Secretary of State property.

6. Properly updating and hardening servers hosting the county voter registration and
election information systems including the county's EMS and county EMS
databases as well as any Secretary of State property.

7. Establishing, maintaining and participating in the dedicated VoteCal County Test
Environment (CTE).

8. Services to improve security practices and documentation, including drafting and
documenting information security policies and procedures, an incident response
plan to handle a security or data breach, or other critical documents related to
security,

L Monitoring systems and applications to prevent and detect data breaches or fraud
including interconnected systems.

Items presumed to not be reimbursable

The following is a partial list of items presumed to not be reimbursable and not
inclusive of all items that are not reimbursable. The list is provided only for the
purpose of providing guidance. The Secretary of State shall be the sole determiner if
an expenditure is reimbursable.

1. Costs not directly related to VoteCal infrastructure security.
2. Overhead costs.
3. Computersilaptopsffablets.
4. Blackberries/Smarlphones (hand held computers).
5. Other office equipment, including but not limited to fax machines, copiers and

scanners, unless prior approval has been obtained from the granting agency.
6. Office supplies, including but not limited to paper, pens and post-it notes.
7 " Travel costs,

C. CONDITION FOR RECEIVING FUNDS

The County may seek reimbursement for the activities identified above, provided

that the County has done both of the following within the six months preceding the
claim for reimbursement:

L Conducted an assessment identified in B(1) above.
2. Conducted privacy and security awareness training for all staff utilizing the

county voter registration and election information systems including cyber
security best practices identified in B(4) above.

3. lnvoices must include itemized list of costs prior to reimbursement.



lnyo County
l8c27tt4

Page 1 of 3
EXHIBIT B

(Standard Agreement)

BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS

1. lnvoicing and Pavment

A. For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt and approval of the invoices submitted
with supporting documentation, the State agrees to compensate the Contractor for actual
expenditures incurred in accordance with the rates specified herein, which is attached hereto
and made a part of this Agreement.

B. lnvoices shall include the Agreement Number and shall be submitted in triplicate not more
freouently than monthly in arrears to:

Office of Secretary of State
Attention: Accounts Payable
P.O. Box 944260
Sacramento, CA 94244-2600

lnvoices may be submitted via email to AccountsPayable@sos.ca.qov. Please contact
Accounts Payable at (916) 653-9165 for any further questions regarding invoices.

C. VoteCal will reimburse County as specified in Exhibit A 'Scope of Work', Section B 'Appropriate

Uses of HAVA Funds'.

2. Budqet Continqencv Clause

A. lt is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act, or a HAVA Spending Plan or Spending Plan

amendment, of the current year and/or subsequent years covered under this Agreement does

not appropriate sufficient funds for the program, this Agreement shall be of no further force and

effect. ln this event, the State shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor

or to furnish any other considerations under this Agreement and Contractor shall not be

obligated to perform any provisions of this Agreement.

B. tf funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act, or by a HAVA Spending

Plan or Spending Plan amendment, for purposes of this program, the State shall have the

option to either cancel the Agreement with no liability occurring to the State, or offer an

agreement amendment to Contractor to reflect the reduced amount.

3. Federal Funds

A. lt is mutually understood between the parties that this contract may have been written for the

mutual benefit of both parties before ascertaining the availability of congressional appropriation

of funds, to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if the contract were executed

after that determination was made.

B This contract is valid and enforceable only if the United State Government for the fiscal year

ZO1Bl1g, for the purpose of this program, makes sufficient funds available to the state. ln
addition, this contract is subject to any additional restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted

by the Congress or to any statute enacted by the Congress that may affect the provisions,

terms, or funding of this contract in any manner.

The parties mutually agree that if the Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for the

program, this contract shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds.



lnyo County
t8G27tt{

Page 2 of 3
EXHIBIT B

(Standard Agreement)

D. The department has the option to invalidate the contract under the 30-day cancellation clause
or to amend the contract to reflect any reduction in funds.

4. Prompt Pavment Glause

Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in Government Code

Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927.

5. Maximum Amount of HAVA Funds to be Provided to Countv Under this Program

County shall not receive, pursuant to Agreement, more than $ 10,000.00.

6. Failure to Properlv Glaim Maximum Amount of HAVA Funds

Notwithstanding any provision of Agreement, County shall be entitled to receive only those

amounts for fully supported and appropriate claims which are properly submitted, pursuant to the

provisions of Agreement and all applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and procedures.

7. Basis of Claims

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph 9, below related to the applicability of OMB Circular A-87, all

claims for HAVA funds under this program must be based on invoices submitted by County. All

invoices or agreements that are tlre subject of any claims must relate directly to expenditures

authorized pursuant to Exhibit A 'Scope of Work', Section B 'Appropriate Uses of HAVA Funds'.

8. Processinq of Claims

The Secretary of State shall establish the criteria and processes for submitting claims under this

program. Such criteria shall include requirements that all claims:

A. Contain a face sheet that summarizes each expenditure made as set forth in Exhibit A 'Scope

of Work';

B. lnclude the total amount of the claim;

C. lnclude the agreement number on the face sheet;

D. ldentify whether additional claims are expected to be submitted;

E. lnclude the hourly charge of any county staff for which a claim is made for their time;

F. lnclude the hourly wage or monthly salary of any employee for which a claim is made for their

salaries,

G. lnclude signed County staff HAVA Activity Reports, please see sample which is Exhibit G, for

each empToyee and iounty's employee for whom reimbursement for time is being claimed.

(Vendors who receive payment from HAVA funds are required to submit timesheets for any

work paid for as time and materials); and

H. lnclude a copy of the contract if the County's invoice does not describe the activities

undertaken in such a manner that the State can determine whether the activities comply with

the provisions of this Agreement.



lnyo County
t8G27tt4

Page 3 of 3
EXHIBIT B

(Standard Agreement)

9. Application of OMB Circular A-87

OMB Circular A-87 ("Cost Principles for State, Local and lndian Tribal Governments"), incorporated
herein by reference, to the extent applicable, shall govern with respect to all aspects of this
program. The provisions of OMB Circular A-87 may be found at
http : //www.wh iteho use. q ov/om b/ci rcu lars.

10, Retroactive Pavments

Counties may claim reimbursement for expenses and activities permissible under the terms of this
Agreement that occur after April 1,2018 and before June 30, 2021.

11. Pavments of Glaims

Payments made by the State with respect to any claim shall be sent directly by the State
Controller's office to the County.

12. Deadline for Submittinq Claims

The deadline for submitting any claim under this program is September 30,2021, which is 60 days
after the expiration date of this agreement.

13. Multiple Claims

County can submit multiple claims for HAVA funds authorized above, within the aggregate limit
established for County.

14. Documentation to be Submitted

Each claim shall include a cover page that identifies the activity or service in Exhibit A and the
dollar amount associated with each activity or service for which funds are being sought. Each claim
shall also include originals or true copies of all invoices, agreements, or other documentation that
support the claim, including all documentation required by OMB Circular A-87. The provisions of
OMB Circular A-87 may be found at http://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars.

15. Order of Processinq

Claims shall be processed by the Secretary of State in order of receipt.



lnyo County
t8G27tt{

Page 1 of 3
EXHIBIT D

(Standard Agreement)

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. AUDITING

Receipt of HAVA funds by a county indicates agreement to establish a dedicated HAVA
account for these funds. Therefore, any payment received by County pursuant to this program
shall be deposited in a separate, segregated account and any payment made by County
related to this program shall be paid from that account whether or not the County has paid the
vendors for services rendered before submitiing invoices to the State.

2. Any recipient of federal funds to meet the Help America Vote Act requirements agrees to be
audited pursuant to federal and state law. Accordingly, all documents and electronic files must
be produced upon request by the auditors. CFDA Number for this contract is 39.011. The
audit may include a review of all books, papers, accounts, documents, or other records of
County as they relate to any HAVA funds. County shall also provide access to all employees
having knowledge of the HAVA funds program to assist the auditor. County shall provide a
copy of any document, paper, or electronic record requested by the auditor;

3. OMB Circular A-133 ("Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations"),
and OMB Circular A-87, incorporated herein by reference, shall govern with respect to all

aspects of this program. The provisions of these circulars may be found at
http ://www.wh iteho u se. gov/o m b/ci rcu Iars;

4. County shall maintain records in a manner that:

a. Accurately reflects fiscal transactions with necessary controls and safeguards;

b. Provides complete audit trails, based whenever possible on original documents
(purchase orders, receipts, progress payments, invoices, timesheets, cancelled
warrants, warrant numbers, etc.);

c. Provides accounting data so the costs can readily be determined throughout
Agreement period.

5. Records shall be maintained for three years after expiration of Agreement and for at least one
year following any audit or final disposition of any disputed audit finding;

6. lf the final disposition of any disputed audit finding is determined to be a disallowed cost that

the Secretary of State has paid the County, the County shall return to the Secretary of State an

amount equalto the disallowance.

7. County shall permit periodic site visits by the Secretary of State or the Secretary of State's

designee or designees to determine if any HAVA funds are being used or have been used in

compliance with Agreement and all applicable laws;

B. Upon request, county shall report to the Secretary of State at least once every 90 (ninety) days

until all funds received have been expended, on the status of HAVA funds received, in a

manner determined by the Secretary of State.



lnyo Gounty
t8G27tt4

Page 2 of 3
EXHIBIT D

(Standard Agreement)
B. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. The program is conditioned on State receiving reimbursement from the federal government
pursuant to HAVA Section 101 .

2. HAVA funds can only be used for the purposes for which the HAVA funds are made;

3. No portion of any HAVA funds shall be used for partisan political purposes. All contractors
providing services are required to sign an agreement, please see Exhibit E ltem 1, to abide by
the Secretary of States' policy to refrain from engaging in political activities that call into
question the impartiality of the Secretary of State's Office. County is to submit agreement
signed by each employee of contractor's firm who worked for County pursuant to this
Agreement with the County's first invoice.

4. The provisions of the federal Hatch Act shall apply to employees working for state and local
entities receiving HAVA funds. The Hatch Act may be reviewed at
http://www. osc. gov/documents/hatchacVha sta. pdf;

5. Any interest earned by County on money received pursuant to this Agreement must be
reported in writing to the Secretary of State within 30 days of expiration of this Agreement. All
interest must be used by the County for the purposes of implementing activities allowable
under this Agreement;

6. Failure by any eligible County to execute a contract within 90 days of the date on which this
contract is made available shall constitute an express desire to forego funds;

7. Funds not claimed by County within 90 days of the end date of this contract, or any funds
claimed by a county that are not approved for county use by the Secretary of State within 180

days of the end date of this contract, shall be reallocated and may only be used to meet
Section 101 of HAVA;

8. lf funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this
program, the State shall have the option to either cancel Agreement with no liability occurring
to the State, or offer an Agreement amendment to County to reflect any reduced amount;

9. Agreement is subject to any restrictions, limitations or conditions enacted or promulgated by

the United States Government, or any agency thereof, that may affect the provisions, terms or
funding of Agreement in any manner;

10. Pursuant to federal policy, Agreement may be terminated by the State with 30-day written

notice to County;

11. County warrants by execution of Agreement, that no person or selling agency has been
employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon agreement or understanding for a
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona

fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by County for the purpose of
securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall, in addition to other
remedies provided by law, have the right to annul this contract without liability, paying only for
the value of the work actually performed, or otherwise recover the full amount of such

commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee;



Inyo Gounty
18G27114

Page 3 of 3
EXHIBIT D

(Standard Agreement)

12. Nothing contained in Agreement or otherwise, shall create any contractual relation between the
State and any subcontractor or vendor, and no subcontractor shall relieve County of its
responsibilities and obligations hereunder. County agrees to be as fully responsible to State
for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly
employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by
County. County's obligation to pay its subcontractors is an independent obligation from the
State's obligation to make payments to County. As a result, State shall have no obligation to
pay or to enforce the payment of any moneys to any subcontractor or vendor of County;

'13. Pursuant to federal law, by signing this agreement or execution of this purchase order the
Contractor certifies under the penalty of perjury that the contracting entity is not excluded or
ineligible from federal assistance programs and thereby is not on the federal government's list
of suspended or debarred entities.

Pursuant to federal law, as a component of the procurement process, the Contractor must
review the federal government's list of debarred and suspended vendors and ensure no

contract award is provided to a vendor on this list. This list may be viewed at www.epls.qov

14. Upon request, county agrees to provide the Secretary of State with a summary report on its
activities under this agreement following each election for which funds are expended that
includes: the method used to determine the need for funding an eligible activity, including the

reliance on an advisory committee or advisory groups, surveys or any other methodology used

to assess the need for the eligible activity; the activity performed and funded; the amount of
funding expended; the category or categories-of need being met; and any performance metric
or assessment of the quality of the activity, including unsolicited public comment, advisory

committee or advisory group comment, public comment solicited through surveys and on-site
assessments conducted by the County, its agents or others.



Inyo County
t8G27tt4

Page I of 2
EXHIBIT E

(Standard Agreement)

ADDITIONAL PROV]SIONS

Secretarv of State Policv Reqarding Political Activitv in the Workplace

SECRETARY OF STATE POLICY REGARDING POLITICAL ACTIVITY IN THE WORKPLACE

The Secretary of State is the state's chief elections officer. lt is, therefore, imperative thai staff in the
Secretary of State's Office, and those who contract with the Secretary of State's Office, refrain from
engaging in any political activity that might call into question the office's impartiality with respect to
handling eleciion issues. Accordingly, the policy of the Secretary of State's Office with respect to political
activity in the workplace, a copy of which will be given to every employee in the Secretary of State's office
and incorporated as an atiachment to contracts with the Secretary of State's Office, is as follows:

1) No ernployee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office shall engage in political

campaign-related activities on state-compensated or federal-compensated time, except as
required by official duties, such as answering inquiries from the public. ln those cases where the
contractor with the Secretary of State's Office is a county, the term "contractor" shall apply only to
county elections office employees, county employees redirected to work temporarily for the
county elections office, or any person, firm, company or business that provides reimbursable
election-related services to a county elections office in furtherance of a contract. This prohibition

shall not apply while an employee is on approved vacation or approved annual leave. This
prohibition shall not apply to activities engaged in during the personal time of an employee.

2) No employee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office shall use any state property in

connection with political campaign activities. lt is strictly prohibited to schedule political

campaign-related meetings or to conduct political campaign-related meetings in state office
space, even if after normal working hours.

3) No ernployee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office shall use his or her official

status with the Secretary of State's Office to influence political campaign-related activities or to
confer support for or indicate opposition to a candidate or measure at any level of government.

4) No employee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office may be involved with political

campaign-related telephone calls, letters, meetings or other political campaign-related activities
on state-compensated or federal-compensated time. Requests by employees to switch to
alternative work schedules, such as 4-10-40 or 9-8-80 work weeks, or to take vacation in order to
accommodate political campaign-related activities or to attend political campaign functions, will be
judged in the same manner and on the same basis as any other requests of this nature (i.e.,

existing needs of the office and discretion of the division chiefs).

5) The receipt or delivery of political campaign contributions or photocopies thereof on state property

is strictly prohibited, as is the use of office time or state resources (e.9., intra-office mail or fax
machines) to solicit or transmit political campaign contributions

6) No employee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office may authorize any person to

use his or her affiliation with the Secretary of State's Office in an attempt to suggest that the

employee's or contractor's support or opposition to a nomination or an election for office or a
ballot measure is of an "official," as distinguished from private, character.

7) No ernployee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office may display political campaign-

related buttons, posters, or similar materials in areas visible to individuals who are in public areas

of the Secretary of State's Office; nor may an employee of or contractor with the Secretary of
State's Office display political campaign-related posters or other materials on windows facing out

of the state office building.



lnyo County
t8G27tt4

Page 2 of 2
EXHIBIT E

(Standard Agreement)

8) No employee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office may use official authority or
influence for the purpose of interfering with or attempting to affect the results of an election or a
nomination for any public office.

9) No employee of or contractor with the Secretary of State's Office may directly or indirectly coerce
or solicit contributions from subordinates in support of or in opposition to an election or
nomination for office or a ballot measure.

10) An employee who is paid either partially or fully with federal funds, including the Help America
Vote Act of 2002 (HAVA), is subject to the provisions of the federal Hatch Act, and is, therefore,
prohibited from being a candidate for public office in a partisan election, as defined in the federal
Hatch Act. However, any employee who is to be paid either partially or fully with funds pursuant

to HAVA, shall first be consulted about the proposed funding and be informed about the
prohibitions of the federal Hatch Act. The employee, whenever possible, shall be given the
opportunity to engage in employment that does not involve HAVA funding.

1 1) Provisions limiting participation in political campaign-related activities as provided for in this policy

statement shall be included in every contract with the Secretary of State's Office.

lf you have questions concerning these restrictions, please refer them to the Secretary of State Office

contact person listed on the contract in Exhibit A 'Scope of Work'.



Exhibit G

STATE OF CALIFORNIA. SECRETARY OF STATE

CONTRACTOR HAVA ACTIVITY REPORT

lnyo County
18G27114

Page 1 of 1

SIGNA I URL OFOON I RACTOR

19

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

6

3

2

HAVA AGTIVITY HOURS

Contract Number:

NAME

31 1 2 3 6 7 10 11 12 13 14 16 17 18 19 20

DATE

21

Location (Sacto/LA)

COMPANY NAME

22 24 25 26 27 29 3't

(Taken from proposal and contract)

DELIVERABLE NAME

PROGRAM TIME REPORTING

Month/Year HAVA Coordinator's Approval

MONTHLY
TOTAL

ORG

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

HOURS



Exhibit F

lnyo County
18G27114

t*., 
:.t:

R'esolu,tion,N6-: zafii6..3a,

!t tffs'e*s'
cai;S,tSF$rfth

,fuffi,for 
p,ur,Bo$6€.

irlt'the

'",."',: 'rffi;fht-4i,
',.".i ,'&,' Atlprove* ttre ex€{ritbil

lnyo ;efid thssecretery

. ---i'j .:.r1,r....

all
f$r'

dnd,fuff#sftalfu tn arder tb
,:'

for 'ftffils,CIr

pur.Gligses

qgabilitks

the
Offt'cer to entet into
Seor,etary of $tafeis

,HAY, {t$€qglurran
.!..'



lnyo County
18G27114

Page 2 of 2Exhibit F

FE.SS&l..ff; *$:* 'I

''i:

Hfl
..-: i::

:ili. r.

','.'l

-!

.fr,: ' .:i...i'



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Clint Quilter 
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment #14 to contract between the County of Inyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates for Real 
Estate Consulting Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 14 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Allan D. Kotin 
& Associates of Los Angeles, CA, extending the term of the contract through June 30, 2020, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Mr. Kotin and his firm, Allan D. Kotin & Associates (ADK&A), were retained by the County to advise and 
represent the County on two relatively complex real estate projects: (1) the Consolidated Office Building, for 
which your Board approved entering into a Build-to-Suit Lease Agreement with Wolverine/lnyo LLC in January 
2019; and, (2) the evaluation of options concerning the disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery through 
discussions with the Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, and Friends of Mount Whitney 
Fish Hatchery.

The recommended amendment to the ADK&A contract will allow for Mr. Kotin’s continued participation in the 
Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery project if and when it moves forward, and also provide consultation, if and as 
needed, as the Consolidated Office Building project gets off the ground. This current amendment extends the 
term of the contract to June 30, 2020. The contract “not to exceed” amount is not increasing at this time. If, 
however, more substantial consulting is necessary, additional and more detailed contract amendments may 
become necessary.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Your Board approved the original contract with ADK&A in December 2011.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Funding for this contract is provided through the CAO-Accumulated Capital Outlay Budget #010201, Professional 
Services Object Code #5265. Current funding was encumbered during the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year and was rolled 
into the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget. There are no changes in the contract amount at this time. However, if 
necessary, the Kotin contract may come back to your Board at a future date with the request to increase the 
contract amount.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Kotin Contract Amendment 14
2. Kotin Contract & Amendments 1-4, 6-13
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 9/10/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/10/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/10/2019
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 9/12/2019



AMENDMENT NUMBER     14        TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

ALLAN D. KOTIN & ASSOCIATES
FOR THE PROVISION OF REAL ESTATE CONSULTING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and 

         Allan D. Kotin & Associates                                         , of        Los Angeles, CA                                                  

(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Real Estate 
Consulting Services dated    December 20, 2011, on County of Inyo Standard Contract No.   156         , 
for the term of     November 1, 2011                       to    September 30, 2019 (extended by Amendment 
13);                                             

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.

NOW THEREFORE, County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

Section 2, titled, “TERM,” is amended to state the following:

“The term of this agreement shall be from November 1, 2011 to June 30, 2020, unless sooner 
terminated as provided below.”

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is    October 1, 2019

                                                 .

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156



Page 1

AMENDMENT NUMBER     14        TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

ALLAN D. KOTIN & ASSOCIATES
FOR THE PROVISION OF REAL ESTATE CONSULTING SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEROF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND 
SEALS THIS              DAY OF                                             ,                .

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By: _________________________________ By: ___________________________________
                                                                                                                         Signature        
Dated: ______________________________                          
                                                                                                  ___________________________________
                                                                                                                       Type or Print

                                                                                     Dated: _________________________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156

Page 2



In the Rooms of the Board of Supetuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 20'h day of Decembe4 2071 an order was

duly made and entered as follows:

CAO-Gen./Kotin &
Assoc. Contract

The County Administrator explained Mr. Kotin is a specialist in public private negotiations and
that this contract will provide important services to the County on several public private
partnerships that are being explored, i.e., the Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery, the consolidated office
building in Bishop, etc. Moved by Supervisor Arcularius and seconded by Supervisor Fortney to
ratify and approve the Contract between the County of lnyo and Allan E; Kofin & Assoeiates for
the provision of real estate consulting services for the period of November 1, 2011, through June
34,2012, in an amount not to exceed $30,000; and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent
upon the appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion unanimously passed and adopted.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 20th

nay of-pecember 2011

KEVIN D. CARUNCHIO
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

fu. dza-

Routing

Purchasing_
Personnel

AuditorcA{_
Other

DATE December 28, 2011

Byt
Patricia Gunsolley,Assistant 6/



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COI]NTY OF INYO

n Consent X Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n Scheduled Tlme for fl Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

lt
fl Puutic Hearing

f]lnformational

FROM: County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: DECEMbET 20,2OLI

SUBJEGT: Ratification and Approval of Contract Between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates for the
Provision of Real Estate Consulting Services

D E PARTM EN TAL RE C O MM ENDATI ON

Request your Board ratify and approve the Contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates for the

Provision of Real Estate Consulting Seruices for the period November 1",2OLL, through June 30, 2OL2in an amount not to
exceed 530,000 and authorize Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION

Allan D. Kotin and Associates (ADK&A) is a real estate consulting firm specializing in the development of public

private partnerships. Mr. Kotin and his firm have been retained by the County, through a letter of engagement signed

by the County Adminstrator in an amount not to exceed S10,000, to advise and represent the County on two
potential and relatively complex real estate projects. These projects are the possible development of a Consolidated

Office Building, for which the County has entered into an Exclusive Negotiation Agreement with Joseph Enterprises,

and the evaluation of options concerning the disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery through discussions

with the Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, and Friends of Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery.

Mr. Kotin assisted County staff in preparing recommendations to enter into exclusive negotiations with Joseph

Enterprises (one of the two respondents to the County's Request For Proposals for the Consolidated Office Building

Project) and drafted the resulting Exclusive Negotiation Agreement with Joseph Enterprises approved by your Board

on September 6,2OtI. Since that time, his services have been essential in representing the County in implementing

the first phase of the exclusive negotiating agreement which entails negotiating key terms of the option, lease and

land transaction documents for the project and summarizing these in a non-binding proposed term sheet which is to
be submitted to your Board for consideration and (non-binding) approval prior to proceeding with negotiations.

Mr. Kotin also served as a key participant with County staff in the last round of meetings with the Department of Fish

and Game and Sierra Nevada Conservancy in discussions regarding the disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish

Hatchery. Mr. Kotin was able to suggest several paths forward which seemed well-received by State agency staff.
Although the recent change in personnel for the Department of Fish and Game Director position has slowed these

discussions considerably, if and when they resume, Mr. Kotin's participation will be valuable in suggesting and

evaluating possible frameworks for the County's continued involvement.

ln providing these services, Mr. Kotin has relied on and expended the budget provided through the letter of
engagement and his continued ability to represent the County on these projects and, perhaps, other projects

requires a contract for his services approved by your Board. The recommended agreement will provide for these
services, as well as allow the County to call upon Mr. Kotin's expertise, if deemed desirable, to assist the County in

evaluating and pursuing other partnerships such as, for example, multiple public agency support for the operation of
the Tri-County Fair.



Agenda Request
Page 2

ALTERNATIWS

Your Board could choose not to approve the contract with ADK&A, however, this is not recommended. The County

has entered into an Exclusive Negotiation Agreement for Construction and Leasing of an lnyo County Consolidated

Office building with Joseph Enterprises. The Exclusive Negotiation Agreement was drafted almost entirely by Mr.

Kotin and, subsequently, Mr. Kotin has been instrumental in representing the County in negotiating the non-binding
proposed term sheet identified as the first phase of work in the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement. The ability to
complete negotiation of a non-binding term sheet and, if the non-binding term sheet is approved by your Board,

proceed with the design review process identified as the next phase of the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement, will be

highly dependent on Mr. Kotin's skills and expertise in representation of the County. Similarly, his services will be

valuable in assisting staff draft option, lease, and land transaction documents should your Board approve both the
non-binding term sheet and non-binding concept plans. Mr. Kotin's services will be similarly valuable should County

continue in discussions with State agencies and the Friends of Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery regarding options for the
long-term disposition of that facility.

OTHER AGENCY INVO LWMENT

County Counsel, Public Works and County Administration are working with Mr. Kotin relative to negotiations with
Joseph Enterprises for the Consolidated County Office Building Project. Discussion of options for the long-term
disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery involve County staff and Mr. Kotin working with the State

Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, Friends of Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery and, possibly, the
State Department of General Services and the County's legislative delegation.

FINANCING

$30,000 in funding for this agreement is identified in the County's Fiscal Year 2OL1,-2012 CAO Accumulated Capital
Outlay budget approved by your Board.

D EPARTM E NT H EAD S IG N ATU RE:

COUNfi COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
clerk.)

lr/

reviewed and approved by county counsel

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

^ 
(lrr{,.d':ffi*o

submission to the
AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved the auditor-controller pior to

-14-l

PERSONNEL DIREGTOR:

,Vh
PERSONNEL NTTREMTEd
submission to the board clerk.)

f$rlS lVtust ne rddew-eO and SppEved by the director of personnel services prior to

(l

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are /J-/L/- ) ott



ANP
FOR THE PROV]SION OF

AGREEMENT BTTWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
ATLAN D. KOTIN & ASSOCIATES

INTNCIDUEilON

TER{vlS AitF CoNDtTtot{s

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

Senriceg and work Br,gvtded !y ltre C*nsutsnt at lhe eounty,o reqse$t under this Agreement rryill begerforfi€d i$ s manner eonsi*lent u*lh th*-requirera€ni.s and;$dJrds established ly aplt*abte rederal$sq, 
.Tnd ?"y"F faws. o"dinfiEe$, regu|athni. afid re+ql#tisr,s. Suctr:ta*i,-"itf-*ctii*frruiior*, an*resolulions include- but are not iin:rited tq, those v&ich are referred to in itris Rgre+rneni.

2. TERIS.'

3. CONS{SERATION.

. , . ,.A' - - @:r*enE6:tign county shall pay consultant in acserdan*a with the $chedute of Fees
{set fotih as Aftashrn€nt B} ior tlr+ services aac wort described in AttJchme.nt,q wr,ici' +ie pe.riormeA fyConsultant at the County's request.

- .F: - TtW4le[rg,ffiSFl,r.t" C-Ourdystrallreimbu*eConsuitant forthetravelexpen$esandpe.
d?em which Cofisuliant incurs in pidvioing servibes and rurrrk regu*rled uy Coiu*ry Lna*i11i-#gre;m*n1
loputta11 shall reqvest approv{il b} thebounty prior to inirtrinii i*,y trarler or p*r, e*ffr €xpenses. Reguesisby consultanl f_or apprgvai to incur iravet an* p* bierr *ie*nieisr,ni li *uu*ittc roKevin D. Carunchio #llff-H-*?; ;trffS$,*
Diern- Paymefi iAttachtnsni c); Counly resenres tire r,igirl lo deny relr0b*rser$ent to Consulla*t for travsl orper diem expenses which are ejther in excess of the arisvnts i#i rn;t il F'aid under rhe ,ates s*ifo.th inAit-achntent C, or *.'hich atE incuned by the Corsi;ltant vrlthcut the priol apfrou* of the County. 

-- -

The term of lhis Agreeflle*t shatl be frcm l$ovpn&er 5, 2ctt ro Ju*e sS- 2011
unless s-ooner terpAlnated a$. prsvided befo*n % '- '' ' '" ' ;" ' , ,, ,'

Css{ty of hVD $ta{i4+{{! n riynet - Ns. ltB
{lndepencenl 6*}+**.rtta;lt - g€sp{n F{O{e€sianati

Page I

1

06j;",1



.! . .N.g"qdddional 
qon,s!$e1-atign. Except as expr*ssly provided in this Agreement, Consultant

shall not be entilled to, nor reqeive, fror* Counly, any addfional consideration, conrperisation, salary, waEe$,
or oihei $ine oi iemuneratisn for servicee rendercd und€r thf$ Agreern*rrt. $peeifiiglly. eonsultanl shal nol
be entitled' by virtue of this Agreemeni, to ccnsirjeration in the foim oi ovsrtime, he*lth'insu,rance ben*fiis,
reJirement hEneiils, disabilih/ retiremenl benefits, sick leave, mcatlon iime, paid holidays, orother piiO teaues
of ab$ence oJ any type or kiid whal$oever.

reteffed to as'tcpntr,+$t lifiit}.

The tctai tum oJ ail peyme*is made by the
travel an'S per dieffi
tlsfiaf€ {hereinafter

Sounly exBre+sly reseru9$ th* l+ deny any psymeJlt si reirlrburser:rext
rcguested by Ocnsultanl for
the contract liftit.

services nr rr,rark p*rf'onned, ineluding trayel ss per diern, wtrich is igr exce$g *f

q. " .qij,li.iFg Faq {,El{npfit, *onsu{tant sh€Il *ubrnit to the CCIilnty- fEr.e a rnonth. an iFsffdr€d
etetFment of all *ours epnt by Consuitant in perforrnir,4 serv.iees anflwetk descr.lueu irn attachnrant A, wtrich
were done al$e e*un{ys request" Thie slateft+nt rsttt ue submitted to the Csurdy 

"or'iatoinin 
the fifih

{51.ili day s{ {he rnotrtfl. The ststaftet}t to be subfi}itted will cover the period irom iG first {rut} }uV uf gru
qrgs€dtrrg {n?ne throqh and including the la$ day..of the pree+ding month. Thir statemsni',vuf *e,i'tity tae
data on which the hours were w.orked ir:d descrih* {he nakjre of lhebork which vves s-erforrned on each da1t.
Consufrant 's slatement to lhe Coufity wil! also i.r*l$Ss a* nernixalion of any travel or per dier* expgnges,tlhlch haye been appreved in advan*e by counlrr_" lneur*c uy Cddiant aJri-gi;;i'dfu,'-iiri iremisea

$tcle-rA*n{ jor trave{ sxpenses 1nd per diem wili inelude rerbps for: ladging" ireats.' ang att,er lneids;i,a-l
exfeo$ss in accordanos.*jlh t!9. Countyls a-ccolntrys .prcceoirres anc itei, Upon rimery *c+'pi';'th*
skte$rent by the tifth {Srhj day of the mgilh, eounty sliali r*atre paynent la Conculiant on ttri mt Aay of *rc
month,

F. Fqdsrqlgn{ gtatetaxes.

t1) Fxcept as prwided in subparagraph {2} belo,'a County wiu nol. witftholel. any
Heral or stat€ income taxes or,,sociar security from any paymefts made
by eo{inty te Coniir.r{tanl unOer tde tenn"in:O 

"i,"*tioos 
,lf ftrii Sgie**;nf

{2} Counly will wilhllold Caltfornia $tata incorne laxe: fior: payments n}ade
rinde{ this Agr*ement io non'c-aliforEria resident independi:ni consultant s.

xx**$*-$fi 's*#TJ:'ii#r;*lffi ffi JH-;;;:lFT#f Ti,,?ff
{s1,499.00}-

t 3) 
5f ;ffi:,i;?"'?ll, 

.HR 
Xl1 #-'tlfff-i1t-3;:#,,ii:ii'iil:,%::

.Agreernenl, Feyme.nt of all laxes end uther istessrnents on suclr $um$ is
tite $ofe responeibilig of Consultarrt Ccr:nty has no responsibiliiy or liabillt1i
for paymenilsiC"nild;rt t taxes cr asse$fi.|enis,

{4} The toJal am*un!$ paid by Ceung ts Con_$ultanl, and iaxes v,rilhheid f;om
ilayrnsnt$ io ien-califsrnie residents; if any, will be reporred arimalty io tlre
fnternsl Reyenue $ervice anel tie Catifomia gtate Franehise Tax'Board-
To facililste this 1sp46;[g, eon*ultafll slmil eorrrplete and submit to the
caung an lnternar Revenue $ervice {lR$} Fs'rm w-g, attactrea rrereil'is
Atiachment F, upon execuling thisAgreanenl

Carfiil st |rtyq StanCord Csn rsct - No_ ir5g
{lndepeEd6nl CansuliaH - Oesign prckssiorrat}

Fage 2

ffi1711



4. iiJCIRK SCHEPULE.

Csneullant s obligdiort is lo perfonn, in a timety mann€r. lhose services and r.rsrk identified in
Attaehmerrl A wh'ich are requested by the ecunly. [t is understod by Consultant that the perfarmance of
these services +nd !1/ark rvil! require a varied s*fredule. Ccnsuttani v;ilt arrange his,her o'urn scieduie, but wjll
coordfuete rdth County tc insur+ that al{ senrees and wotk reque+t*d by Coanly under this Agreemeni will be
perforr'':ed within the time franle set forth by Coung.

S. REGUJREO LIC€N€ES, CERTIFTCATE$, A.ND PERMTT$.

A" Atty'lieanse*, carl#ic*les, ar permits reo.uired by ttre federat. siat*, county, or municipat
gerd€rnmcfil$ for CaEsrJ}tafit t+ prorride the sefv?ee$ aild b{ork de.$cribed in atlsshmanl A rrrust be proeured by
Consultant and be valid at the tirne Ccnsultaat €niers ir?io this Agreement, Furth*r, during the temr +f th6
Agreement, Cansulta# rnust rnaintain such licenses, ssrtifica.tec, and permits in full force and efe$.
Lic€ncet, cerlifii*atee. and p-ennits may include, but ars ncrt iimitd to, ciriveft licenses, professionat lhenses
et certi*irai.es. and businegs licenses. $uch tri*ense+. cer?rficates, and per*rits will be pracured and
*naintaine-d in iorce by Conssltant # n+ expense to the Solnty" Oonsultan{ will pror.'ide Cormty, upon
execution of this Agreem*nt, wllh evklenc+ st eur.€$J a,r,ld v€lid lker'lses, certilicate$ and Fgfilit$ lvhqeh are
reguired ta perfnr,n {he seMcss identified in Attachrneflt A, Where there is € di$puie betw€en Sonsul{ant
and Ceunhl as ts wlut ticens*g. ce$ifieetee, snd penfiit+ are required io Fedorrn the $ervices identified in
Attachft€tt .q. County.reserves the rilht to mak* sueh d*terminations for purposes of this Agreeraenl-

B' C nsultant narrants that il is not presenlly debaffed, suspended, proposed for
debarmenf deelared ineli,fible, cr voluntarily excluded fronr partlcipalion in covered transactjons by any
{ederaf department sr agency" Consultant atso warrants t'hef it is- not suspended o.r deo*ared-fiom
recaiving federal funds a* li*ted in lhe.t-i$t sf Partie$ Exsluded from Fed*ral Prorurern€nt or Non-
procurernent Prograrne issueri by {he Sen+ral$enrices Administrstion availaa*le al h&}:{,ry4E.-{,ppls.pqv.

6. OFFICE$F&CE, SUFFLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

€stsulta.nt sl:afi provide suoh offipe ,space, rupplies, equipment, vehicles; r*fierence ntalerials, and
teieohdne *brvise as is n€assriary f(ir Csnsuliefit i+ piaviUe'ttri d**l"u" ideniified in Attachmeni A to this
Agreeme.nt. Qounty is noi obligeled to rpimburse g"r pay Consultan{ for any exp+nse or cos{ ineured by
Cone$ttant in prccuring or nraintaining such iteffis. Respansib;itily for lhS -c+$s bnU e:xpen$e,$ incuned by
Consultant in Brovidi'rg and maintaining suclr i,lems is the sole;es3sn$ihility and obligalion of Consultanl .

7, COI.'NTY PROPERTY.

. F€rsqat P.rgpeqy ol cpuniY. Any personal properiy such as, but not limrted to, protective
or safety devices, b.adges, ldentifiealion rards, keys. etc. provided lp Consultant by County pursuint ta this
Agr,eemenl ara and at the temination of thl* Agreornenl ier*ain, the sale and exclLrsive pioberty of County.
Consultarrt will use {ea$filable csr€ ta protect, safeguard and maintain sueh items wtrie ih+y are in
con$ultanl '+ pos**ssion. Consultant will be frnancially'responsible far any loss or damase to such iie.rns,
partial or tot6l, which is the resuft of Consultant 's negligence.

S- Product* ol O. rFqltgn!'g Work an . Any and all compositlons, publiualians,
plans, deslgns, 

"*=*e*, 
ptrctographs, $lidss, vides tapes.

computer Srograffst carnputer disks. cnmputer tapes, rnernory ghips, s+undtracks. audio recordings, fiims,
audi+visual presentations, exhibits, *pc'rts. studie$, work$ of art. inventions. patenls, traJemar*s,
copyrights, or intefleclual properties of any kindrghil:h are sreated" produced, assenrbled, co,TtpileC by,, or

Co.uniy of lnya Stardard ContrEcl - $tD. 156

firldePafid?ti Sgn#Jtafil - Sesign Flofcssio*al]
t:age 3

C€??I 1



are the r€sijli. prsduct. or rnsniiestalian of, con$ullant 's servjcr* ot work {nder ihis Agreernent are. arrtl at
the ternrilration of this Agreeillent remain. the sole and exclu$ive property of the Coun{. At the termination
of the Agreetnenl, Consuf ls,]t wlli conu,*j'po$ses+ien and litie to ail sucb properties ta 0bu6(y,

8. I'NI'SIJRANCEREQUIREMENTSFORPROFESSIO$IALSERYICES.
For the duration Of llris,{greefiAil1 Cm*fACtSf $hallFr*e$fe And mainlgin irrsuranee of the scope and

arnount speciiied in Atiaehrn*rtl E and witl'i the prcvisio.ns spesjt3ed in rhal *ttaehment.

9. STATU,S OF CONSULTANT.

Ail acts of co*sur€nt, fis ag*nts, oflicers, and smproyee$, rerating to tlre perfsrmance sJ this
*9::.:T.l!-sl?llf f*tt9!*ed as indeps{rdent c*nftiltant +. en+ na a* age},t*, ,ofiicers. or er*ployees cfcou{uy. c_ons$tlanl, by girluo gl ttris A$eernent, hag no authariti* t+ rair"rd *r incur any obligatbn on behalf oiCouniy. Fxcept as expr€sslf provided in Attacirnent A, Ceni.uitant haS m fiuthsfity or r,esponsibility toexercisa any: rlghls or pol'.'er vesi*ii in th€ caunty. Ng a*en! afficer, ot urnptoyee of trre eointy is to be
rynSidepd qn erxpfeye* of eortsuitanl . lt is *nder$laod nfb+dr gonsuttant *rio d"untv tn& $.'h ag,***e,tt
sna*, ryf und+r any ckcirrnsian+es be conslrued or considered ls create en enrployer.6mployee rehtioruhip
or a joint venture, As afi independant SmsutNant:

A' Ccnsuitant shall d+teryninP tfie rnelhod" detaits. actd rnear,s of perfonning lhe unrk and
serviees tp be provided by Consultant under lfris AgrernenL

A" Conc-irltsnt shalf be resgocslbie p lgunty ong ior the requireme*!* anrl esulis ryecified in{his Agreery}ent; afld €,xcepj ae expressly troviff in tiib ngreernent s}nu n"t rre flrnisct*d- tL county,s
controi witfi r€spect lo the physical aetian ir activitie* oi Cqnsuiiant in rrfnffmenf # ff- difi;;"i

C' Consl]ltatt, li's ageots, sffrce!'s, and enployeee are,, and at all times durhg tha term ef thisAgreement shell, represent snd conduct thernselves r* inai*enoeni Cun"urtant'" #ili*;'ilptoyees otCoun{y.

10. .DEFENSEAND }NDEMNIFICATION. 
4:

Consultant shal.defend, indernniff, and_hEJd ha1nrf991 Sou*ty, its sg€Bt$" offieer$, *nd emplayeesfrgrn and €gain$t all ciaime, dantages, {+!ses, judggenQ, fiaalnb*, 6xp*nsts, and other costs,, inctudinglitiga{isn ct'.st$ &fld atlomeyis fees, arising ott ol red:t$ng trorn,lor in cdn*g{ion wirn, tr.t* p*rlonmince of fhis
fqreemen! by contractor; or csnirectoi"$ agent+. ol*irs, oi enrpioy*"*o or the fal{ure of contr€clor, orConrrectofs agenrs. efiicer$, or err:phyEee *"*;'f wfltr any ot iti'o-d,fig,rrions eontajned in firis nsiri_i"iirrr
Td lhat arise o*[ sr. Dr pqrtai$ ito.-or rel*e ti ilr* n*g$ije"re-G?r*sne$s, or willful mlsconduct sf
tq|lsqlt*nl cr its ernployees-ar rygnts, in the perrorman& it sewG {rnd.er this coniraet consultantbobligation le defend, indemni&, and hold ltre Caunty, its agenti, ofririJ, anA er*ployees hannless aFpties !eany aelual or alteged sersonat injury, death, or Larnags-o, OesiirJ"i6'n b tangible ol"lnt*ngibfe-ifite-rli
iltll-u-<ling th6 lo$$ of irse. Colsuliani's cb,l€itiry und+ittris parasrapn'e"runJ" i" *nv 

"r"i*.'"6riege. 
toss,liability' expense' or other cost which is cau$ed in whole o. ir p*# uy iny n*gl1g+nae,ireekl*usnu*J;; *,i*,[;imisconductof the consunant, ts asents, emproyees. supprier, or oi any &;;j&ilfii ffiffi;ffip,;y*'ry

any of then, or atysne for whose negligence, ,*.tt*"sn*is oi *i[rur ,is;nauot ariy of ihem-mav'oe lialte,

cqflsultant's obligation ta defsnd, indemnify, and hold the coanty. iis agents. offlcers, andernployees hamrless under the provisions of this paragraph is noi rirnited to, ,or reckieled by, any requiremenlin this Agreenrenr far consiliisnt ro procure anc iraintin 
" 

g"Cui iuiu*n*u,

Courrty *J krfr ,Btand,6rd Contracl " Ne" .l t6
{lndeperrd€4i {;orL_qujt*nt - D+sig* F.:oJesr-ionaa

page 4

t6tTl 1



To the exlenl Bermitted by law, County shalldefend. indemnilv, and hold harmless Consuitanl. its
€gents, o*-ficers. and ernplcyces frorn and again$t all claims, cien'lages, losseg, judgments, liabililies,
sxpsn$es, and eiher cc'sts, inclilding litigation ecsl$ and attorneys fees, ansrng oui of, or resuliing frorn, the
aclive neglig,ance, er wrongful *cts of County, hs qffreers. or e*tployees.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Ree-orFF. Con*uttant shdl prepare and Fuinlairr all recotds required by the vanous
provisbns cl this Agreemenl. federd. $tate, and rnrunicipei !ar'. ordinances. rcgulalions, and dirrueti*ns
Consullant ehall rnaintein these resond$ f+r a minimum ol four (4) yaars frun the terrnr:mtion *r completion of
ihis Agreatent. Concu:lianl mey fulfl$ its ebllgation to r-nainlain- r€ca$,s ag requird b,y lhis paragraph ty
substituie phcto. graBhs, fflicrophatfigrap-hs, m other authentic reprcduclion of sueh reccrdg.

F. lt}spe$lio,ns and Auqil$. Any auihoriaed representaiive of Couniy shail have nccess ta any
ilooks, docufle.ni$, F€pers, recorde- includingf, but not lirnited te financiai rec.srds of Consullant, whiish
Ceunty dete,$ninfis kl be psftinent lq thic Agr+emenl, for the purpeses of making audit, evaluathn
cxeminq{ion, excarpls. and tmrucripts during the perio<l suctr recorCs are lo be rnalntained b3 *+nsut{a*t,
Fur{fier. ,Couruty has the ngh{ *t a}l reas.onable times" ta audit, inspect, sr ethar'.r.'rse ,ev:lirtala the wprh
perforrxed or heing per{ormed under lhis Agreernstt.

12. NONU$CRrM-INATION.

lluring ths per{orrfrgnceaf tfris- Agreem*nt" Sonsultant, its agents, eifhers, and employees- shall not
unlalviully diecriminaie in violalion of €rt}' f€deria!, $late, $r loe+l la.r,, agatnsl any ernploy+-a or applic*nl ior
emptoyrnent,,orFer$on reeeivlag Eervices underthb Agreement, bsGause of rae+, religiofi, sslor, nationrl
oigin, aneslry. phys-ical handicap, medical condition, marital +latus" age, o,r sex- Coneultant and its agents,.
offieers, and empl+yees shalf eornp$ wiih the provisiens oJ ihe Faii. Ernployrnent and Flousing A*i
{Governrnerrt Code section 1?9m, d $eq.}, and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
CalifomiaCodp of Regutalione. Con*uhanl *hall als* abide by ths Federat eilil Right$Act oi 1gE4 (p.t-- SA"
3$2) and allarnendmenls ther€to, and ollqdrninl+trative,ruf*s pnd regulation+issued pursuanttasaid aet.

'13. CASI.s"gLI-i\TtOtiL,

This Agrecment may be cancaied by County vrithout cause, and ai will, for arry reffion by gjrring .to
Csnsultant thir'-ry {3S} dare ru*bn nolice of such inlent to cancel, Consultsrti rnay canrrel this Agieernent
Hilhoutsause. and at w.tll, for any reas*n whats{}ever by giving thirty {301 days trritten notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

t4 A$StGf'lMEl\lI.

This is an agreement for the services of Consu.ltanl. County has relied upon the s*ills, kno',vledge,
experience, and trainlng of Consultefrt as an inducernent to eilter into U'ti.s Agreement. Co*sultant siatl noJ
s$$ign or subcstltffict thi$ Agree$enl *r sny pftrt sf il r,r,ithout lle express mritten cqn$ent of CotrRg,
Filtlher. Connujlant $hall aol a*sig* any mpnies due or to be+ome due under this Agreement withaut thE
priar writ€n consent of County-

15. PEfAULT,

lf the Cpnsr:ltan{ ai}andon$ the work, or fail+ to proo*ed with {he ',?-srk 
an{i servicgs requected by

County in a {iftely rnafiner, or f*ils in a*y way as required to conduet the wofx and services as reguired by

l)orrniiv *{ lry* $,larrdar$ frnlrEol - N0" 156

f.indetl€cderlt eoJ}Bi4an! - I}rsrgn FrafsssioF ti
Fage $

s$1 ?1i



Corinty, Cou$iy may dectare the Consuitant in defaull arxJ igrrninsle this Agreement upon fi're iSi days
wri$en noiice to Consultani . Upon such temination by default, Country wilt pay to Csrsr"rltanl allamo.rnis
ovring to Consullant for services and uro',i< $atisfsstorily perforned to ifre date sf terrl1inatbn.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT

Waiver of any defarrtl hy eith*r pa*y to llris Agreement strall nct be deemed to be waiver ot any
sutrsequent de+ault. Waiver or breach d e*y provision of ihis Agreement shail not be deemed ts be a waiver
o{ ar-ry other or subseq$ent breach, end rhell not be con$trued to be a modificalion cf the terrns oj thjs
B,gt+ment untess {t1is Agreem*nt ls rnodiiied as prcvided in pmragrraplt twenry"{our (24} belaw

77, C0ilF1D€HTIAHTY.

C{n&dtanl +.gress to eomp}y with th* vario*s previsiens ol ihe federal. state. and eoilnty lasvg.
rsgldatio*$, *nd ordinan+e$ provirding that inio+taiion and record5 kept, rn*intained, or acee+sibte by
Consu.ltant rl tht sonrte of providing sarvices and wsk under ihis Ag-reernent shall be pduiksged. restr.icted,
or eanfidentj'af" Consu&ani agress io keep eofifidefit|d sll eg*h i*femation and rscords. Diiclosure cf such
canfrdential. priviteged. or protected infomatiran sflglt he rnade by CBnculian! *nS with the *:pr*ss writtetr
csnsentsfthaCoun y.

'18. coNFt"lcTs.

Cgnwltar*t agrtrs lhai it ha€ nc Inlerest, and shall fl*l aequire any intere*i, direct sr indirect. ',vhichwou-ld conflict in any mannero.r degrse $ilh th* performence of tlre vEori< a*d services under this Agreemenl.

19. FO$TAGREfI!/IENTCOVENANT.

Csnsultant agre€6 ruot to use any confidertial. prete+ted, qr priyileg*d inlorrnation r'{hieh ie geined
frq|n the Cqunty in the co{rse of pr-ovjding selie'3s and work under this Agrdemeni" fsr any per$*nal b*nefit.
gain. or enhaneerfl,ent. Further. Consultant agr,Fes fnr a period of tllo leers sq*r the ienninalion ol this
Ageernent,,r-lot to- segk or ac€pt any employryent with any on!ify,, assocktion, eopsraliof1 o{ per$qn yrho,
duting the term af this Agmgrn€nl fias had arr adverse or con$icting inlerest:'rsith-the County;'*r whr hss
bsen:hn adverse par$r in litigation rruith the Caung., and aoneerniirg such, Consultent by-virtue oi this
Agreemeni fias gained as*ess {,o the C+unlys confd*nlial, pMlegd. pratected, or preprbtary information.

30. sErl€.H.ABn_tTY.

. - lf nny portion o{ thi* Agre*menl *r aBp{icgjicn thereof t* any perso;} or cir,crrmstanee shail be
d€*lared' invelid by a coutt af +affpelent iuri,gdigticn, or" r-f il js *rfid in cintrevention of any federet, staie, or
qounty aiatute, ordiilens€, or" rogulaiion, {he r€rnaining prordsions ol thls.Agr€smenl, br the apptieatjon
ther*ef, shafi nol be invalidated th$reby, and slull rerna{ft in fsll foro€ and bftect to the exteni th6r the
provisions of ihis Agre.emenl ere sey€rable

?.1. .FUNAINGLIMITATIOH;

The aoility ol Ccuntyto enter this Agreerne.nt is b,a*ed upon aveilable funding fr+rn varicgs oilrce$,
ln lltg evenl thal $uch lunding fails, is r#uced, or is madified, irom on* or. mor€ ssurces, Oounty has the
optipn io cancel, reduce..or modify th.is Agreement, or any pf its terms within ten {10) days of id notiiying
Cottsultafll of the caRcellation, r€duction. nr rnodific.qtbn ci a'iailable funding. ,lny ieAucrion or rnodificatio:r
9{ thil A*reernent rnade prtrsuanl to this prcvision mu$l comply lvith the re{uirernents ol paragrapir tvrenty-
fourq?4) {tunendmsnt).

C.auliy ol lnlr $ta$dnrd OcrlJiect " No. 15S

{irtdep.err4€ni Coenutlil{ - ileSESa l?rste$$iaaat)

Fage {*

o0l?1 I



22. ATTORNEY'SFEES,

li either sf the partiss heteto btings en action or proceeding against ihe other, including, bilt not
|imiled to, an aetion 1o onforce or declare the cancetlation, termination, sr re.rision of the Agreeinent, the
p;'evailing Barty in such a.ctisn or prcceeding shall b+ entitled la' recehre from the oiher party all reasonable
ailprney's feeg and ccst$ ir}eurred in cqnnecticn therewith.

?3. AMENBMENT.

This Agrmme,nl may bs modi*eet, ernended, changed, added la, +r s'rbtraciets from, by thersliltual
co.nseilt gf the patties herelo. if. $ush arnendmefi or change is in lr:ritten forn *nd exe+ilte-d'.".'ith i-he same
foimalilies as this Agreernsnl, and at achsrj t6 ttle originaf Agreer*ent to maintain continuity

24 NOTleE.

. ely notio+, e9mrnunice-tica, amend{}renls, addilisns, or deletians to this Agraenrcnt. mcluding
change_of address of either Fsrtv dufiLu lhe terrns of this Agreement, r'rhich Consultant or County shgtt b.i
requjred, or may desire, lc lnaks. shalt.be irr vuriting and r*ay be pelsonally served, cr s+nt by prepai* nrsi
etass mail io, ll'ie r*specliv+ pariias as follolys:

County of lnyo;
Adr$inistration Narne

Sbeet
Cityand Slate

P.(L,Uf.A'.Vef
'

Csn*ultant;
Allan B. Kolin & Assoetates

ENT}RE AGREEMENT,

Na.me
Street
Clty and State

. Thi$ Agroement o+nieinslhe e*tFe agr€emenl of fie parties. and no representations, indutement$,
promlses' or a$reemenls o,thenvise between the parties nsi embodied harein or incorp+raied rh€rein by
reference, shall be of any farce or effect. Further, no teffn ci provieio* herer.f .nay b+'changed. waived,
discharged, or ten*inated, r:nless the same be in writi$g executeri hy the parties freieto,rlt {tft

Caurrt? oi lnyp $landard Csrur.1rl . No 150

{lB$epefiderii goftsutlarx - flBsigc Frst* rig:{eli
P?ge r

c617.t'1



AND
FORTHE PROVISION OF

T

Dated:

APP.ROVED

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
ALLAN D. KQTIN &A$SQCIATES

THE

TO FORI,dANS LEGALIIY;

,/{S TO ACOOUNTING FORM:

-AS TO REQUIRES:IENTS:

$eruices

REQUIRSMENTS:

So{nly +i laya $ta:dard *onlract . N6. ii6
ilfidepsr$enl Consil;tar?t * $eaign Flo{ersionali

lzage 0

SERVTCES

HERETO HAVE $FT THEIR F!qND$ AND $FALS THIS

e2#-
9qNSpLTAtllr

of
5

StJ'r7J 1



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INVO

ANO ALLAN D. KOTIN & ASSCCIATES

FOR THI PROVISION OF Real Estate Consnltine 5f RVICES

TSBM;

FROM: ltlPverltbef 1. ?0U TO: June 30. 2012

SCOFE OF WORK;

Allan O. Kctin and Asso{iates {AflK&A or ConsrJltant} will pr"ovicle r'ealestate consulting senrices to the
,Co.unty of tnyo, undef direction of the county Adrninistrative Officer,.related t0 the design afld
n€gotiatisn rsal estate transactions of a publi*private, public-non-profit and, possibly,,publig-public

nature. projerts for which ttre C+ns*ltant's servi{es wit} be engaged intl*de, but may not he {irnited te,
completion of the proposed build-to-suit and lease uansaction fcr a Consolidated County Offic* tsuildiag
pursuant to the €xcJuslve Negotiation Agreement for Constrrftisp frr'rd Leasing of an lnyo County

Cansoli<fatetl Offiee building Sefyr'.flen the Co-unty arid lgseph Enterprises, and rEeornmending and

designing a pbssible transacti+ii strudture lvitii tlre $tate of Califarnia and Friends of Mt. vllhitnay pi.s,h '

flatctlsry tbr the presen'ation and opEratisn of the prernises sncl bt$ldin,gs of tlle fvlount lVhitney Fith
Hatchery. The ConsuJtanf sse{vices that $Jill be prauiderl iR $rlBport of both of these p.ro}ec* are nlore
specifieally describerl in the "Scope of fffort and fstimated Eudgets for Con:rpletion of lnyo {ountv
Ccnsolidated Of{ica Build Ta Suit Transaclion' and "Seope gf Effort afld f,5thnated Sudgets for Design af
a Po*sib,le Transadion Structure T€ preserue the Fi$lr Hatfhery" preparcd by AD{&A and inccrporated as

Exhitrits A end B. respectively, to this Scope sf lVork,

The Consultant fi?ay also provide r€al estate consulting rerviEes sf a s:imilar na{une to the County for
other pr:o,jects at the request of the Coun{, and upon ac{eptanc€ i:y the County of similar scopes of
effort ancl e$timitcd budgets prepanacl by the ecnsultant.

{6urty €f lnyo liindird Ccnlraci - 156

{lrdeFcndent ig0rull:r*t - $erlgri Rrofolrio;i:;rl}

Fage 9



EXHIBIT A

Rlll(all ? I .1.6-r.i"j E.{ I
(:cli ? I 3.i69.3 84 I

l;a:,< 8d6.685-t31;.i

akat in #? l1*fr ttll Ai! ?

ut+W,:td*ditt.zvnt

Allan D, Kotin & AssociateF
Iteattsiale {onatffing tar Publit Priva&' jariri l/ertalrej
I'19 s'c.$th Hopc Strset, Los &geres, 01 90S15

M,ernorantlnm

'1-o:

c{::
F'ti,{}.1t:

$Er

K{:vin Lhrun+hiri. l*y* Corarty Adn:ini{rufive iliT:c*l n.,r'lr: S*pi:lrrber ?-1. ?#} t
Randy Kcll+r, {rrrrnty (-'*urrlei
vlllisr D. Ko.tirr
Se*rU OIr GfFOR'r. Airt$ H$T!H.\TDI) llrjF6l:1--g $roR e0il{i'r.lllrsN or rirl'o (r0tifiTy
t"'{}rYlif}l .l l}i\'l'lil) OS-IrtCti ,Jt-ltlD "t'rf, $UJt ? lL{n*$;1C?'{0N

At .vour r*que$l, r\ilan ll. K*tin & A"s.roe-iales (AIlIt&A) has prep*rcd rt s+{rp* of uio* antl
cstinrstcd budget ftrr tl're completi*a of tlre prope$ed build-to-suit std l;flsr tffiRsirction lor a

Consolidated Co*nt3' Offise Building in Rishop, Catifsrulia. This reprcsents ths conplclion of an

sftsft ln'r+'hich i\DK&A h*s aErd eantinues ta pr+ride supportto Co*n{y staflf" Lt is nlanilbst thnt thc
curfet* budget alloeatiofi is insuffi*isnt 1$ aucrlmn:nderie ccntinuhrg ADI{&A partieipali+n i}rrough
Ihe *tmplellrrn oi the rlsgrltintiotr and dooumenfartirm proecss,

ADK&rt has itlentified irvn {rLler$ative aprpr-*aclr*s tire Couety rnighl wa*t to r:onsider for
authoriaafion of atlditismul fundx a $ilatt-teft* limited au$hcrirst'ion tt$t lvouhi cary thc pft)ress
thro*gh tlte c*a:pleticrn aud appr+v*l CIf the temr sheet fa be tbll*-lved, by a sub.se<1u*nt larger
authoriza.tio!; sr* &rll s*op* Ef rvqrk auiholieed in a *ingle l*rger *tr,:ourrt

L F,on approximately $5,(lH), in additiorr.trff th+feilt ininslbud&et, rr:hich a.t illi$ p+int is ab*ur'
$?0Q0, ADK&A shorlld b+ alde to eo:rrplete the ter,nr sheet and assist in its pr*senfetion to
the Ss.arcl of Slp*rv'isors.

2. The total fo*dget fbr cornplction of lhe ifull lran**l:ion inch*ding the tenn sheei is
approxin:rately $ I 6,{J00.

:l'lle c.aleul*tions supporting both thcs* *stirnates flre shorr,n on ths sehc*iule ert the *r:d nf this ne! 10.

Please be arvare that the budge{s pn:'videcl a.ssiltr}e a gen+raily conrinusus ilrocess *'ith rw major
intcnuptions or majcrr clranges in direeiion. AnronS tlre iteirr,s that w,oulql sigtificar:tly incrcasc the
buclgct anrl for r*.hjch nc ailtlwance is rrrade arc:

' Carr).or.cr of sche<lulerl 13(}!i ;lre,sentations requliirrg exrra trips
. A redcsign oF ilr* builcting so suh.$tanlial 3s to requir,e nrajcrr re-biddfr:g and a nrodifir.lti$n oi'

fl1B dE:rrcl*pcr's {lnanc.iai plcpcrsal
r Inll.rotlucliun af any complex ar,Jtlitjc*ra! frtralcial fan$lderntic)nsr e,g. r4reiati,rin:ri si:vings nr

aherwtive costs. ilrl<) ftre A DK&A ossignmcnt. 
t

A{ter y+l have had a cha*ce to revi*r,ry t}ris :ncrno and tlre attaehed ,burlgcr phase lbel fi'cc to ce}l anrJ

tlisEuss tlrc aptiuns 1:r+viiler! or sn-y *tlicr op{ions you ',vould lihr ta corisi<ler.

I ADK&A rryiit of r+t*r: pro';idt conparison t$ ..ip.a*c reftts cumi*tly paid by rht C{,',ipty



lllll{*fl
Rc:

Il{emorandum

scolrE or gt+sRT,.{i{l) E.sTlil.{ATs.I} It$rrf;gls l,t}ll COf\rPLrl loN ot" {N1'o collt*'t'r''
{QS,$gi-I:t},{TliD {}lrrcr,; r31}l l"n'r{} $lJt'I"filii$s$c'I'tol\

EOffPI-EAO$ OF INY€ COT'I$IY CCIN$OLIDATf;D OTFJCE SUILD}NO TRAN$ACTICIN

EST $tt AT ED COfiS ffi T|l'C BUOS€r f OR, ATTAH D. *<OTIN &ASSOC'AIES

scori4qderitlgisl$iskt-sJ0iFsrr: &rp- -..." - *=--
Allitn -D. K+tin & As$ociates !)agc 2

!1$ tFa+tE

ilixxffils *roul daB6 [n6{titTIESKilS.l ;As.lttlE$erutRol{

9498 $? $t
1 3*€a s4&r }}

s1.E$l F.J

EsHnfH6&$T AT{"OW^NCE FQn rqOlTIgllAL TtSltS AT

TASIT

TAE{ 1 CQ[IP.LE,N}$TIJETER';ISH,EFT
1.1 €**lilBg}$t'.l& eEESn rlid dr?fti.r!.{

t,3 Fi,8ribl4 nilat$ r ;+*js+na
1^3 lrip aod appear-a.nce at ONE$Bslinf ol eOS

iA$fi r :FlrlrEilrdtnfiP .TlaNifi t€ilqNAilb€osTpl+sf.
2,1 nfviev srblgiislqns b.y fp!t+ Flntr{t$ti Ie+df {^"t${$ln{th(
?.? .R6r/isv tevissdlfiaal iledgn aad cods
2.3 Gr$eral aDKft sFhrtlcr

4 fFE$e*rrlreil 0f ALTffirAflvE se€HA,*to.s
4,:t gonf r{lll0 bl{$Jt.*Fl€oriEctl F.t*rnlrder!
4,l AF.JE{tcprcpiaraltarr o.f frqg pr.tyf | fflr{
*.3 Ttip ird rpp.earrnos al OlllEfie:rlin* of 9O$

3 AS$rSTAtiSgJn€vlAv r.FlFrtIAL tE Ur\tElr{$
3.1 *qvlclrr rr.rd sonl|nefil rn s{{sntlsil df.ngs
3J Altb:s,rrca lsr re.ds4fi{ {h!.nlr,ttnbr.raxirh indv}hble.ctialpa+
r.l Par{icipalr in ctnferenc* ralla
3,4 Trlp $*d $Er{olrol {ptl+t}rh.E€ ct Bl{* rl3gnlla$on mFlur!

Af.K Ididrs/rtl$las.
80D &erlrs.afufdd

f,t:A F*PJ;Banklt

Sepr*r*ber ?3" ?$I I



EXHIBIT B

lllll(ell ? l 3.6?3 .384 J

Ccll?!3.-t{i9..itt4l
[at .fi{i"{i$5.13?7

ak*iht@adkotin"rcm
*vil*ixJkolin.tont

Allan D, Ko€n & Associntog
,{e.dfttafe Coaxlling far Publit Private }o,int y€nfi.J,rr^'

949 sq$th Hope Stre--t L$i Angetes. {A ?0013

rfO:

{:C:

Menroralrdunr

K*vin Ciurinchio, Lly+ C.$urrtv Atj,ntjuislrittiv+ O{Eser
Runr$ Keller. C+lmy C*uns*l
r\llan fJ- Koti*

l);\1'l:: $Stltg{Ubsl ?i, ?0i !

st.',$Pti {}P l':rf0H?d.\l} Esu$.rAT}:u Butrct'r:l F.ot []Iisfci\{ 0F..1 Pos$mrJr 'fR,rN$Afli0N
S"iltl:t:ItJttti 'r t] llnfriliny*: rltx: Ft$ll H*t'e:I{FlItr

IrR01{r

R.E:

Al 3-our n:quest. Allan D. Ketin & Ar:r:siales {ADK&i{) hns prcpared ft seoFe of nortt nnd
{$$limitcd budgct for a new c+nsul{ing assigunrenr whiclr would invelve rhe prcsepalion *nd
oFerilti€n for nonJratcher.\j usr:s r:f lhe prernises *nd buildin,g* erf rhe Morrit Whitn;), Fish Ftrtt*3rery
fbr wh,ish h*tcbei';,' operatirrls have be$n {cmrincted b3,lhe California State S*p*rtment of Fi.rtt *ni
Garnc.

fDK*+ worrltl participatc rvith County st;rffand o:her kcy shke}rutders ro expicrre the politieal and
ftnancial lbasibility rri'alrcrnative arreursernents fsr tlr* preservntion irntl furure non-;tate operation ol
{he propertl, a stafql goal of b*th sierra conserva*cy .lnd tho Frie*its af the, tr{t. 1v}iitncy Fislr
L'Iatchertl,-

Althouglt' I afi ncl al all arr cxpert in iislr hatcheri$*r, rnov visit to thr: propcrty ancl r*'1, rlisrx{ssipn$
with you suggest thar the very rlllra$tive phleical prdnrisis*-rvi*r w*tcr tbatu;es, atrractivc gnruntls
ttnd fuil*lings rvith aFparently signifierurl remaining u*Eful lives--ofl'er opparfimiiie* hr acl,aptii,* rc-
use {s lottrist thcili:ies, conferclrcc scnler, slo.

Tlrc list ofl fssks ant{ b-udget lhat I hevc preparad are oxplicirly geuer*l and preli1nirnry. f}nty rhe
first fr,vo tasks listcrl. r,ric{rnn:ris$anc.e anrl s{rategic as$*,ssmunt n*re.i U* *ulhor*d i*iti*fly.

Thc third task which involrres creatiot of a* irnBl*'rn{rntati$n p}an *ray not be rslcvant if the revie,r.r,
of ibt initial sr;oping itnd sirategic a$ssss$rsrrt srlggc-st* fhet tlir*e i$ no eourse of'e+tion rvith a reul
p'omise of being borh politically and financiall,r, fcasib!+.

I will of coursc b* rclying complelely en you aud otlrcr stqkchold*::s to identif:y the elgnents of
politieal apPrsv.tl anel fbasibility needecl L:ut i Lrcticlc thflt eombinirig that di,ieussiorr with the
linancial anal;rsis and prcscnting lhe enlire situatio!) a$ * $et of str$etured a:ller.r:atir,,es sSotill hulp
de{ermine fhe fi:lrirc ti:r (his snn:ervha{ preejous asset lr} l,orr conmuni{1r.

1he budget ott {l:e I'ollowing page requires approximately gJ,ggfi to oonipiete tbs iniii.l!
rer.onnaisratlce arrd stf8legig asscssrnsnt-

The 'l'ask 3 budget lbr implcntcntrillon pltu:nir:g should be *orrsiderert **ly as illus{rative af rhis
p$irrl. \!hat the st:opt will a+luritly eampri.,;e caluot be tJeterurirrcd prior lo cr:mplstion pl."l ask 2,



illfil&R
Iler

l\,Innrorandum

SCOT U Otr Bn,{}t{'t'Aivt} F.s.}'tiqA'f tD IiUOCITS ti0tt il1i.,;tt;r (]t.' ,r I'o-\Sriil,E l tl,l\t{:$\C1'f0il
strrtt'fr^ul{};'r't} PRgs{llvB Tl$ r:rsH tJnTfuaR}'

Itote that r,r'hilu A,FK&A tloss nat +bargs trarel u,ipens{e$ pcr $c if no ovcrnighl stay is requiyed, tlte
cliert $:ill *harg*d far one lvoy etriving time- rvhich is budgeted "rl fbur h*urs.

Note also that *rrly sns trip is provitled tbr in Tasks I and 2. lt may bc that ltc cffrl accotnnrodate
*<{cliti+nal tbce to face c$nlact *ith st*keholclcrs as 1:art ot- rny cther trips lor lhs corrsolid*led CIffree

projeet.

Scon*Iiudtut hr:l jishl li*clrerl.doex
Allar ll, Kclin & Als$fi$ss ltagc ?

Creating a Transac-tion $tructrrrs for Pres,Ervation of the Fish Hatchery
ESTTM,ATED COrltSLlL ftrr,G A#DGFI FOR oF AIIAN p. I{Ortt't 8 rssoclArgs

TII trI.

r!-.00D

s{?}
s6 3;:50s.r$8
tn itt6 :1,effi

'r3.300
.f$15 5&?f,
st?6 3C?€

39:d *t1(x1

t4-toD
.a$3 t?* 39iS

st as. :3t-EtE

{ !3"39! st"1$(

rrtx I FeFA*A?F|{ QS $COpS AiE nlftlAl ST6ATE6'g A$$E*arUf$T
?.! Oudlnc hef irsrctdf,d itrrrcil| r..EqoitrrtlquB
A? ptqFtl,t a{$iBe ?t ilrqrtrrtye lpFFricirF ie.rdultorr
2.1 rDHfl *trlcgis 

'{*-,:'llefitrnd 
Ss'gpd Sgsunrqnt

co$nNsE{BYi!&Lfi-rnNuE F+RU!'I$.XF€CTEO.A0C{nOH.a| TA$Ks Ar lOYr

TASI{ { il!'lTtAr RqCQt}tAlSs4NCEANp AAT.AAEflEIrl
1,1 tlqvicry djd+srmant5{fi*htcbgr.cun{ in !A offse
1.: 'ftlsflloFe dobrric{ng rrit} ttilrrl {*d€tl*r ldtorBed F€rlisr
1,t lilfitil nndh kirlrctt mc. cting vilh d.rkF.hqldr..4

t,? iturt:sig !t{l(+istd€r4il} rgEi4il firriflo$4 arhlf&frcl oFlin$E
3 3 .fjcfumont r€olinE.Rellt rdil !fld €st!-Bd {tdi{Sis &siqt$itl€{tt

to tKFFiglrr$ $r{iftc lilFl*n$.atali&r fLn

lAgK t PR€$E lT*'ngtlAllD +tlA$gu. fi"aTp$cFr NGXTFltfitE
S.i Sari# r.prn€{d Frirp&rt 9?etcr fdi{t4i&fid{ry

At(r'ir$qd i(b0,r.

Seycnrii*r 33,2$i I



ATTA{HMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWIEN CO{JNTYOF INYO

AND ALTAN D. KOTIN &

FOR TH.E PSOVISIO,N Of Fstata SERVICES

T€RMI

FROM; I'tove,rnh'er 1.?911 - T0: J{4nq 39,3043, "*

:

{sn$ul.tant':s seMcesrrrill be paid based on the f<*trawing rate schedule:

Allan Kotln $225 per: hou:r

Andr'*w fieplnn $1?o per hour

Faith Ea,chus $150 pe,r htur

Fsrvisit$ts 6 {+r.rnty-sporifled client site, {fte Coficutt*fltttifte wilX h€ peid based+n #ffii$&e-ffivelr
,tiffe,Ssltatsdat4leurswlrTo**hytelnyo eeuntV" il"accrydanen with thirra*e.*hed*le*

.eelntjf oi inire tt0ddn.d Co,lr$qt - I.lo. I$6
{lndepcndant {onsslibFt * D*dgr Prsf$ripnr{

rage ls



ATTAf}IMENT C

A€R.EfMEI\IT BFTWEEN COUNTY OF INYQ

AND ALLAN D, KOTIN & A9SOCIATES

FO-n THE PSOVI$lOlt Of fteal Estatc CoFsultirlg , SIRVICI$

TE*M;

fROM: . ilpv,er$bpr 1, 3011 TOI June 3O 2012

SSHEE.ULf; SF TAAV8! AND Pf* SI€M PAYMEIIIT:

FCIr visit$ to a Csuntrs-$pe{'iried client site, .the Cons.ultant's tirne wi}l be paid based *n cne half the travel
tim€. €stimat€d,at 4 hours !'rhen traveting to tnyo Counly; in accgrdance with the r.ate sctledule set fCIrth

in the Schedule of F.ses {Artachment E}.

Travel expenses will be paid based sn adtual cost-

MEals and inqid*ntai traw{ expen:ss incurr*d by the {on*ultar* sha}lbe reimbtrse*f et ih€ ratd allowed
undet tfie prevailing lnternal Bevs.$ue seruice rules and rcg-ulations pursuant tq the lnya f,ounty Trar,ref

& Expense Reirnbursern€,nt fl oliry,

Ceuntyof lnln{tandFrd {oi}ffict - $I4 l^g.E

tltdtpeodent Cotguhaat * ggsig* Freferciqr:a*]
pnsr lX



AfiACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWI EN COUNTY OF INYO

AND ALLAilID. KOTIN & ATE.q

FOR THE PROVISION OF Beal Estate Consulti4g.. SERVICES

TERM;

rRoM: ltlovembSf 1,?9.LL, ... TO:.".,Js.ue a,9J*?3 "".

FCRf,VTW*9

Aeq:u€st f:*r Taxpayer

ldentifisation N$.mber and Cer{ilicaticn
{flieiresubmlt $t-9farm uithsgntraet, reoilahle on-line or by eaunty}

{o'rnt'l ct hyaslatrdnr't Co$tqnct-N,o tr}g

{! rtdepe'1dar. rt Ci|lsil:lAirt - Deiigr Prof'*r$oaa f;
pi,6e iz



{TTACHMTNT T

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUf{TY OF INYO

ANF D. t(oTlN & ASSOCTATES

FORTHE P'ROVlSiOf\tCIF . .. *sal E$t#le,qpll$rlltine ".,-.- $,IRVICES

TfftM;

FROMI f:tqqqpbe,r'.!,.?9$** Tgr*Jme-$9.eg$_

srf A3TAffl f s r$l$trRA.N{E FRsvts,toN,$

'$

f,et$tq ff hV0 g1$t!S.gv4 eontr*rt - t',lp :,56

{iRde!:*rdenr Ccn$ut!$r.E * 0*sigr Prut**iisil4l}
P{ge 13



^Specifications ?
I$r$rpnec B$quirernenfti for fro&S$iollal .$erYices

Cousulti,-nt slrall proe.ure and n:..rintain ibr the duration of the co$trflct iusll'itrlcc against eiaims
fo.t' injnries to person$ or damage.s t$ prtlprr{} witich rnay arise trert or in connection rsith the
pcrfonnauce of th* u'nrk horeutle,r b-y the Cpnsuttant, itrs itgcnts, r$prcscul&ti\.'ts, +r cr:]p1*1,ecx,

h'IINII IUIII S'COPS ANII Llt\'trtr'f OIr: INSUT{;1'rICR

Coverage shallb+ st leas-t as broad as:

1. $ommer*ial Genera{ Liabifity iCGL}: lnsurance Services Offlce Fsrm CG 0C
01 eovering CGL on an "scsuffence" basis for bodily injury and Btoperiy damage,
ir+ctuding pr€ducis-eofllptet€d oper&tio*$, personal injury and advertising injury,
wjth lirnits no less than $1,0${},,000 per oecune*ce" lf a generai aggregate lim,it
applies, either the genaral aggregate limit shall apply eeparalely ta this
proieetdocation or tlte general aggregale limi:t shall be twice the required
cccurence lirnit.

?" Au,tomobite Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Nun'rber CA 0001
covering, Code t (any auto3, or if Consultant lras no owned,agto.s, Code $ {hiled}
and S {non-owned}, with limit no less than $5S0,000 per accident for bodil}. injury
and properly damage,

3. Workers' eompensation insurance as reqr:ired by the State of Califsrnia, yrith

Statutory Lirnits, and *mpfoyeris Liab-ilily l,nsurance with limit af ns less tl'lan
$1,00S,000 per acciden{ for bodily injury or disease.

{Nat r*quired if cqnsultant pravfdes {Fritten veritipation it has no
emPloirees)
l. Frof*sriortol J,ia.bility {l3rrors ar:tl'Onil.*rion,r} hrslu:ance apprcpriates ta tlre Corisultaltt's

pro-f,ussion, with lirnit ns }ess than $1,0001000 pcr occurrrlrtcr: or clairr:,

If the diqrnsuttant nraintah:s higher limi6 thau the rninimunrs xhoirin erbove, the bntity r:equires
ald shall be entitl*d to coverage fbr the higlrer lirnir* maintai:red b-v the cont{actor.

Other hpnrance Prorts:ions

The insmancc poJicies arc trl etrntain, or h* cntlorsed to contain, the following provisionr:

Addilio nal lnsured Stalas
The Entity" its offieers, offieials, employees, and volunteers are to be
cov+red as additional insureds on the auto policy witlr respecl to liabilit.y
arislng out of aulomobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by or on behall of
lhe Consultant;and on the CGL policy wilh respect to liability arising out oi work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the Consullanl including materials,
part$, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
Generalii*bility covsrage ean.be provided in the lor'm of an endorsement to the
Csnsultanfs insurance iat least as bload as l$O Form CG 20 10, 1 1 8$ or bolh
CG ?S 10 and CG 23 37 {orms if later revisions usedi.



Primary Coverage
For any claims relateci to this contfact, Ihe Gonsultant's insuranee coverage
shall be primary insurance as re$pects the Entily, its oificers, officials,
enrployees, and volunteers. Any insurance or sell.insuranee rnaintained by the
Enlity, its of{icers, olficials, employees, or volunteers shall be exces$ +{ the
Consuitant's insurance and shail nol coniribute vrith it-

iVoffce of Cancellatlon
Each insurance oolicy required ebsve shatl state tl"rat coverage shall not be
canceled, except wilfi noliee to tfie Enfity,

Wafverof Snbrog-etior
{jonsultant heretry grdnui tr: Entity it ,"vairrgr nf n*y right io s*brogatiort wltich a*y in*un:r of *aid
Consultant r$$"r' asg11i1s cgailrrt tlre Hnfiry iry vhtue of tlte pa.vment *f a*y l*ss u*der sueh

irrsuranco. C+rrsult*lrt {lgr$*s to oblain alry endorsetncnt that mny be $eLs5sar} to cffbc,t thit

'.+aiver 
ql'sulrnrgatirm, hut rhi* plovisi*n appties regardless of whethcr or not the 

-Entity 
hat

feeeir,erJ s rrr'airrsr of subrogali*n endnrtefteru fr*nr tbe jttsuter.

Seductihles and $el$trnsqred Betentioas
Any deductibles or self-insured relenlinns must be declared 1o and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require thsCe,nsultanl to prov'ide proof of abilily to pay
fosses and relaled investigations, olaim adr-ninislration, and defense expen$e€
within the reteRtion.

Acce pta b i I ity of lnsurers
lnsurance is 10 be placed wilh insurer$ with a $urre{llA,lvl. Best's rating o{ no less
than A;Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entily.

Clainrs Made Foli-ciss
lf ariy of the reguired polieies pr,ovide collers$e on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroaclive ilate rnusl be shown and musl be belsre the date ol the ccntract
or the beginning sf contract wsrk.

?. lnsurance rnust be rxaintained and evidence of insurance musl be pr.ovided for
af /,easf five (5) years after eanpletlon ol ttte conftaet af work.

3. lf coverage is caneelEd or non"renewed* and nel replaced wlth anotker claims-
made palicy tsrm with a ftetroacllve D,ale prior to tlre contract e{fective date,
the Consultant rnust purcfiase "exteflded reporli{lg" coverage for a m,inlmum of
five {5} yea}:$ after completion o{ conlract werk"

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall fur:nlsh the Entity witlr criginal certificates and amendalCIry
endorsemen{s or copies of the applicable policy language effecling coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received arid
approrred by tire Enlity before work cornrneness. H$wever, faih,;re to obtain the
required docurneilts prior ia the work beginning shall not waive lhe Consu,llanl's
obligation lo provide them, The Entity r€€erves the right to require conrpleie,
cerlified ctipies of all required insurance pollcies, including endorsements
required by these speci{ications, al any tirne.



'i.r-*-*
i

!

t,

"$?S.UElSUitvJJ{t

Fl3ad$ Jstgc lo 'efiereno* 'rslfl'$u1 -siuguadxe 
'IoVd '{sU dt{l to.&*lBu gt{l

us p+$sq fsllr,tlt fiupnpul 'sluaur€rlnbol €sot$rttpsilj t)ltqfiF €t|l BsAjsss.l di:tt{3
safi.ut$rfr7*t4,1r *.CI $,YlryN p4;lad.g

'rr rsJlrl ps$l* $1$rt$arrnba.r

erF lle ilugaaxr ?ilIrwnsul uttllulp-.ul til$ltlult$o:tln$ tl* ltt'tll ,{Jpt** puu qrgntier [Pqs lfis]tr{l$usil}
$r$ttBJ*ll$iqf}s

*,



a

CAO-Gen/Kotin &
Associates Contract
Amendment

)1
In the Rooms ol ute Board of Sapewisors t

County of Inyo, State of California

I' HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the l2th day of June,2012an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Routing

Personnel

Audfrutrffi
DATE: June20,2012

Moved by Supervisor Cash and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment #1 to the
Contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates for public private
partnership real estate consulting services, to (a) extend the term of the Contract one year to
June 30, 2013, (b) increase the amount by $30,000 for a total amount not to exceeO $OO,OOO;
and (c) amend Attachment B Schedule of Fees to include contractor/consultant work at a rate of
no more than $150 per hour, contingent upon the Board's adoption of a FY 2012-19 budget; and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon the appropriate signatures being obtained.
Motion carried unanimously with Supervisor Fortney absent.

I'I/ITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this I2th

oay of*_Ju4e _ 2012
,Affiw

KEVIN D. CARUNCHIO
Clerk ofthe Board ofsupervisors

-;.JBy:
P atri cia Guw o lley, As si s t ant



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

I Consent fi Departmental ElConespondence Action

E Scheduled Tlme for El Closed Session

For Clerk's llse Only:
NUMBER

4
*

E Puotic Hearing

D lnformational

FROM: County Administrator

FORTHE BOARD MEETTNG OF: June 12, 2Ot2

SUBJEGT: Amendment #1 to the contract between the co
Estate Consulting Services

D EPARTMENTAL REC OMMENDA TION

unty of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates for Real

Request Board approve Amendment #1 to the contract between the county of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates to:a) extend the term of the contract to June 3o,2oL3; b) increase the limit upon ,rornt payable by S3qooo for a totalcontract amount not to exceed S5O000; and c) amend Attachment B'Schedule of Fees,, to include contractor/consultantwork at a rate of no more than Slso/hr. , and authorize chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate signaturesbeing obtained and contingent upon approvar offuture budgets.

SUMMARY DISCASSION

Allan D' Kotin and Associates (ADK&A) is a real estate consulting firm specializing in the development of publicprivate partnerships' Mr. Kotin and his firm have been retained by the county tJadvise and represent the county ontwo potential and relatively complex.real estate projects: (1) the consolidated office Building, for which the county
has entered into an Exclusive Negotiation Agreement withJoseph Enterprises; and, (2) the evaluation of optionsconcerning the disposition of the Mount whitney Fish Hatchery through discussions with the Department of Fish andGame, sierra Nevada conservancy, and Friends of Mount whitney Fish Hatchery.

As your Board is aware, conversations between the california Department of Fish and Game and the sierra Nevada
Conservancy regarding the possible (interim) transfer of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery from the Department to
the conservancy have accelerated in recent months. A key factor in any transfer ofthe Hatchery proceeding to the
conservancy (or any other entity in which the county may have an interest in working with) will be a confidence
among the parties - including the County and Friends of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery - in a realistic strategy for:
developing a long-term plan for this iconic property. Mr. Kotin's services will be valuable in recommending a
framework for such a long-range ptan, and critical recommending and evaluating a range of sustainable uses and
partnerships that will be the bedrock of any long-range plan for the Hatchery. lt is necessary to amend the contract
to ensure ADK&A's ability and availability to participate in this process in an environment of quickening discussions
and decisions.

It is also necessary to amend the contract to provide for Mr. Kotin's continued participation in the evaluation and
negotiation of the Consolidated Office Building project. Mr. Kotin assisted County staff in preparing
recommendations to enter into exclusive negotiations with Joseph Enterprises (one of the two respondents to the
County's Request For Proposals for the Consolidated Office Building Project) and drafted the resulting Exclusive
Negotiation Agreement with Joseph Enterprises approved by your Board on September 6, 2011.. Since that time, his
services have been essential in representing the County in implementing the first phase of the Exclusive Negotiating
Agreement which entailed negotiating key terms of the option, tease and land transaction documents for the project
and summarizing these in the non-binding proposed Term Sheet presented to and approved by your Board in March.
The County and Developer are currently in the Design Review stage identified in phase 1- part B of the Exclusive
Negotiation Agreement and, as this process is completed, Mr. Kotin will be responsible for reconciling the refined



Agenda Request
Page 2

proposed building design with the non-binding Term Sheet as part of your Board's consideration of the non-binding
concept Plans for the project; including preparing and presenting a refined fiscalanalysis. tf your Board ultimately
approves the revised non-binding Term Sheet and non-binding Concept Plans, ADK&A's ruri.", will again be critical
as the county and staff proceed to implement Phase 2 of the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement which will entail thepreparation of Final Documents for the project transaction.

The recommended amendment to ADK&A contract will allow for Mr. Kotin's continued participation in both the
Mount whitney Fish Hatchery and consolidated office Building projects.

ALTERNATIVES

Your Board could choose not to approve the contract amendment with ADK&A, however, this is not recommended
because it will essentially limit the County's ability to meaningfully participate in discussions regarding the long-term
disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery or continue with its thorough analysis and negotiation of the
Consolidated Office Building project.

O THER AGENCY INVOLWMENT

County Counsel, Public Works and County Adrninistration are working with Mr. Kotin relative to negotiations with
Joseph Enterprises for the Consolidated County Office Building Project. Discussion of options for the long-term
disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery involve County staffand Mr. Kotin working with the Staie
Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, Friends of Mt. Whitney Fish Haichery and, possibly, the
State Department of General services and the county's legislative delegation.

FINANCING

s3O,OOO in funding for this agreement is identified in the county's Fiscal Year 2oLL-2012 cAo Accumulated capital
Outlay budget approved by your Board.

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

I
I
Ii

PERSONNEL ANP {ELATED ITEMS\$ust be reviewed and approved by the dhector of personnel services prior to
submission to the Sqgld clerk.)

DaloApproved:_

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

rVfr

AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor+ontrotler pior to

?-ltC4

boardto
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

6
clerk.)to boardtheto subrnissioncounsel pnorby countyapprovedandreviewed

(Must beRELATED ITEMSANDSESSIONORDINANCES ANDAND

Approved:

COUNTY COUNSEL:

APPROVALS

tL



AMENDMENTNUMBERI TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE GOUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotin & Associates
FOR THE PROVISION OF Real Estate Consultinq Seryices

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Allan D. Kotin &
Associates of Los Anqeles. California (hereinafter referred to as "Contracto/'), have entered into an
Agreement for the Provision of Personal Services dated December 20. 2011 on County of lnyo Standard
Contract No.156 for the term from November 1. 2011 to June 30. 2012.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set
forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from November 1. 201 1 to June 30. 2013 unless sooner
terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION

D. Limit upon amqunt oavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by
the County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per
diem expenses, if any, shall not exceed $60.000.00*********** Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract
limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by
Contractor for services or work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract
limit.

County of lnyo Standard Contracl -l!Q
(lndependent Consultant-Design Professional)

Page 1



"i '-

AMENDMENT NUMBER1TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotin & Assoc-iates
FOR THE PROVISION OF Real Estate Consultinq SERVICES

ATTACHMENT B

TERM:

FROM: November L,}OLL TO: June 30.2013

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Consultant's services will be paid based on the following rate schedule:

Allan Kotin $225 per hour

Andrew Kaplan 5120 per hour

Faith Backus $150 per hour

Other Contractor/Consultant No more than 5150 per hour

For visits to a County-specified client site, the Consultant's time will be paid based on one half the travel

time, estimated at 4 hours when traveling to lnyo County, in accordance with this rate schedule.

The effec{ive date of this Amendment to the Agreement

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract -156
(l ndependent Consultant-Design Professional)

Page 2



i

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotin & Associates
FOR THE PROVISION OF Real Estate Consultinq SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF,
SEALS THIS /AA DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO

By

Dated: a- 17-\L

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND
J20/ y

CONTRACTORmBy:

,42-

/6%
Signature

d
I Type or trint

Dated: [, l> Z /A a I J-
l/

hW-
County Counsel

APPROVE TO NTI FORM:

County

AP NEL REQUIREMENTS:

\
Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 56
(lndependent Consultant-Design Professional)

Page 3



AffiEt{BffiENT $rttififiBER A' TO
AGREETdFhTT BETHfEE}* T}EE COUHTY OF INYO AhTS

Allen D. Korj*-S.SSSpglqlqp
FoRrFtEpnoqirgibNoFae,6!-diriid-=ri}'*o..as{!!gsservices

WHEREAS, the Countlef lnyo ihereinafier refened to a-s "County') and Allan D. Kgtin &
Associatee gf Lps Anqeles. C?l'{omia {hereinafter referred to as "Contra"iofu, r'"o* entered into an
Agreement for the Provision of Personaf Services dated pe.g-e-qr.!er 2!, ?01:l on Gounty of lnyo Standard
Contract No.1S6 forthe term ftom i{pyember 1. 2011 ts, l

WHEREAS, County and Ccntractor do desire and'consent to amend such Agreement as set
fodh below;

WHEREA$, such Agreement provides that it may be rnodified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the nrutual csnsent of the parties theieto, if *uch arnenameni or *fting* is in written
fsrm' and executed wth the sarne formalities as such Agreement, and attacneJ to:ine o*ginalAgreement
to maintain continuity.

county and contractor hereby arnend such Agreement as follows:

2. THRM.

The term of this agpqryelt shall be from Novernber 1, 201 1. to December 31, 2013. untess
soonei' terminated as provided below"

- -.1

County oi lnyo Standard Contract-!gg
(lnciependent Csnsur,tent-Design professional)

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUitBERaTO
AGREEiIENT tsETWEEN THE COUilTY OF INYO AND

Alla-n D-. Kp-tin,& AssqclaFe
FOR THE PRovlsloN oF BealEs!ate_Qs.nsu!!!E sERvtcEs

IN WTNESS THEREOF , THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND
Y OF \..'..oSEALS THIS

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated: 06 -A8 '2a r)

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAI-IW:

By:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant-Desig n Professional)

Page2

frt LeAt /, 16r

".a-!a-b*

CONTRACTOR

Signature

Type or Printi

rll,M^-
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOIJNTING FORM:

APP AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager



^ 'In tlte Rrcms of the Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 1Oth day of December2013 an order was

duly made and entered as follows:

CAO-General/Kotin &
Associates Contract
Amendment

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve Amendment No.

3 to the Contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates, extending the
term of the Contractto June 30,2014, increasing the amountof the Contract by $10,000 to a
total amount not to exceed $70,000, amending the Schedule of Fees (Attachment B to the
Contract) to update contractor/consultant staff whom continue to work at a Board approved
rate of no more than $150/hour; and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon the
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this lTth

Day of-December 2013

KEVIN D. CARUNCHIO
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors

t alv) A*-:L1-

Routing

cc

Personnel
Auditor_
cAo x
Other

DATE: December 19, 2013

Patricia Gunsolley, Assistant A



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

X Consent n Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n Scneduted Time for E Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Qnly:
AGENDA NUMBER

n Puntic Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: County Administrator
By: Kelley Williams, Assistant to the CAO

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: December 10,2013

SUBJECT: Amendment #3 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates for Real
Estate Consulting Services

D E PARTME NTAL REC O MMENDATI ON

Request Board approve Amendment #3 to the Contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates to:
(a) extend the term of the contract to June 30,2Ot4; (b) increase total contract amount by $10,000 for an amount not to
exceed 520,000; and, (c) amend Attachment B "schedule of Fees" to update contractor/consultant staff whom continue
to work at a Board approved rate of no more than SfSO/hr. , and authorize Chairperson to sign, contingent upon
appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION

ln December of 201'!, your Board approved a contract with Allan D. Kotin and Associates (ADK&A), a real estate
consulting firm specializing in the development of public private partnerships. Mr. Kotin and his firm have been
retained by the County to advise and represent the County on two potential and relatively complex real estate
projects: (1) the Consolidated Office Building, for which the County has entered into an Exclusive Negotiation
Agreement with Joseph Enterprises; and, (2) the evaluation of options concerning the disposition of the Mount
Whitney Fish Hatchery through discussions with the Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, and
Friends of Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery.

On June 72,20!2 your Board approved Amendment #1to the Contract with ADK&A, extending the contract term to
June 30, 2013 and increasing the amount by SSO,OOO to provide for ADK&A continued participation in the evaluation
and negotiation of the Consolidated Office Building project. On June 26,2OL3, the County Administrator exercised
his authority to extend the contract with ADK&A for an additional 6 months, to Decembe r 3!,2O!3, while ADK&A
assisted County staff in representing the County in completing the first phase of the Exclusive Negotiating
Agreement. This process concluded with your Board granting non-binding approval of the Concept plan and Updated
Non-Binding Term Sheet on November t2,2OL3. ADK&A's services will continue to be required as the County and
Joseph Enterprises implement Phase 2 of the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement which will entail the preparation of
Final Documents for the project transaction.

As your Board is aware, discussions between the California Department of Fish and Game and the Sierra Nevada
Conservancy regarding the possible (interim) transfer of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery from the Department to
the Conservancy are ongoing. A key factor in any transfer of the Hatchery proceeding to the Conservancy (or any
other entity in which the County may have an interest in working with) will be a confidence among the parties -
including the County and Friends of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery - in a realistic strategy for developing a long-
term plan for this iconic property. Mr. Kotin's services are integral to recommending a framework for such a long-
range plan, and critical recommending and evaluating a range of sustainable uses and partnerships that will be the
bedrock of any long-range plan for the Hatchery. lt is necessary to amend the contract to ensure ADK&A's ability and
availability to participate in this process in an environment of likely quickening discussions and decisions.



Agenda Request
Page 2

The recommended amendment to ADK&A contract will allow for Mr. Kotin's continued participation in both the
Mount whitney Fish Hatchery and consolidated office Building projects.

ALTERNATIVES

Your Board could choose not to approve the contract amendment with ADK&A, however, this is not recommended
because it will essentially limit the County's ability to meaningfully participate in discussions regarding the long-term
disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery, or continue with its thorough analysis and negotiation of the
Consolidated Office Building project.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT

County Counsel, Public Works and County Administration are working with Mr. Kotin relative to negotiations with
Joseph Enterprises for the Consolidated County Office Building Project. Discussion of options for the long-term
disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery involve County staff and Mr. Kotin working with the State
Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, Friends of Mt. Whitney Fish Hatchery and, possibly, the
state Department of General Services and the county's legislative delegation.

FINANCING

Funding for this agreement is identified in'the Board approved Fiscal Year 2OL3-20t4 CAO Accumulated Capital
Outlay Budget #07O2OI, Professionalservices Object Code #5265.

D EPARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE,
(Not to be signed until all approvals are Ll

COUNry COUNSEL:

AUDITORYCONTROLLER: ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to

reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to

to the boad

Approved:_Date_

ACCOU

o

be

CONTRACTSAGREEMENTS, AND ORDINANCES DAN sEssroNCLOSED AND REI-A ITEMSTED be(Must
and counsel submr'ssrbnto thetopior boad cletu.)

Approved:

PERSONNEL AND RELATED
submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

AI'PROVALS



AMENDiTENT NUMBERSTO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotin & Associates
FOR THE PROVISION OF Real Estate Consultinq SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Al]an D. Kotin &
Associates of Los Anqeles. California (hereinafter referred to as "Contracto/'), have entered into an
Agreement for the Provision of Personal Services dated December 20. 2011 on County of lnyo Standard
Contract No.l56 for the term from November 1. 2011 (Extended to December 31 . 2013 by Amendment
f2)-

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set
forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from November 1. 2011 to June 30. 201{ unless sooner
terminated as provided below.

3. GONSIDERATION.

D. Limit,uoon amount pavable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by
the County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per
diem expenses, if any, shall not exceed $70.000.00**"***** Dollars (hereinafter referred to as'contract
limif'). Gounty expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by
Gontractor for services or work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract
limit.

County of lnyo Standard Contract-;!!Q
(lndependent Gonsultant-Design Professional)

Page 1



ATTACHMENT B

AMENDMENT NUMBERgTO
AGREEIT/IENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotin & Associates
FOR THE PROVISION OF Real Estate Consultinq SERVICES

SCHEDUTE OF FEES:

Consultant's services will be paid based on the following rate schedule:

Allan Kotin $225 per hour

Aaron Brumer $t20 per hour

Faith Backus 5150 per hour

Other No more than S1SO per hour

For visits to a County-specified client site, the Consultanfs time will be paid based on one half the travel

time, estimated at 4 hours when traveling to lnyo County, in accordance with this rate schedule.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No, 156

{lndependent Consultant * Design Profussional)

Page 2



IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND
SEALS TH\S /0m DAY OF /0] , , gA/3

AMENDMENT NUMBERSTO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotin & Associates
FOR THE PROVISION OF Real Estate Gonsultins SERVICES

AJr"4rer;;
By:

COUNW OF INYO

Dated: /J-tp -t 4

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

AP A5 TO REQUIREMENTS

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

Signature

Atz477
Type or Print

Dated: //* zA * / Z

'--141 ?=ol-n-4
County nisk tuJiager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant-Design Professional)

Page2



'"j rt iGlf\/A 
{_

AMENDMENT NUMBER 4 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotin & Associates
FOR THE PROVISION OF Reat Estate Consuttinq SERVTCES

WHEREAS, the. County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Allan D. Kotin &
Associates of Los Anqelqs. cqlifornia (hereinafter referred to as "Contraciol.l, naGGiiered into an
Agreement for the Provision of Personal services dated December 20. 2011'on county of lnyo standardContractNo.l56forthetermfromNovember1'2011tewbynmendhent#3).

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set
forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties theieto, if such amendmeni or chjnge is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the orij'inalAgreement
to maintain continuity.

county and contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from November 1. 201 1 to June 30. 2015 unless sooner
terminated as provided below.

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same

County of lnyo Standard Contract -f!6
(lndependent Consultant-Design professional)

page 
1



FOR THE

IN WTNESS THEREOF,
SEALS THIS . DAY OF

AMENDTEI{T HU;IBER4TO

AGREEIIEiIT BENTEEII THE COUNTY OF IT{YO ATTID

SERVTCES

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SETTHEIR }IANDSAND

COUNTY OF INYO

aarcdt d6-h - 20/?

/{STO FORM I-EGAIJTY:

County

REQUIREMENTS:

Dlrector of Fersonnel Seruices

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

Courfi

A'AA4il /N

CONTRACTOR

Shnlurc

Type or Prlnt

TO

TOAP

County of lnyo Stsndad Conhart- tS.llg
(ln*psldert Consubnltledg$ pr*slrqratt

pl{n 2



In the RNms of the batd of Stryewinrc
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisor of the County of Inyo, State of California'

he ld in their rooms at the County Administrativc Conter in Independenoe on the l6'h day of December2014 an order was duly

made and entcrsd as follows:

CAO/Kotin Gontract Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to approve Amendment #6
Amendment to the Conhact between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates to: (a) extend the term of

the Contract to June 30, 2015; (b) incrcase btal Contnct amount by $10,000 for an amount not to
exceed $80,000; and, authorize Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate signatures being

obtained. Motioncanied unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of sald Board this t6th

nayo1-Decembq 

-2014ffi
KEVIN D. CARUNCHIO

Clerk of tlu Board of Supemi$rs

Routing

oc-__-_
Purffing-
fursrpl

ao x
0dlBt

MfE:Jnuav8,2M6

By:
Patrlcta Asslstant



AGENDA BEQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COI.JNTY OF INYO

El Consent E Oapsrlmental EGorcspondence Aclion

fl ScneAufO Time for tl Closed Ssseion

For Cleil<'s Us Only:
AGETIDA NIIHBER

\a
E Puutic Hearing

E lnfomational

By:

FROM: County Admlnistrator
Kelley Williams, Assistant to the CAO

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: E}coembcr 16,2O14

SUBJECT: Amendment #5 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotln & Assoclates for Real

Estate Consulting Services

D E PA RTM E N TA L RE C O MM E NDA TI O N

Request Board approve Amendment #6 to the Contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates to:
(af extend the term of the contract to June 3O 2015; (b) increase total contract amount by SfO,Om for an amount not to
exceed 580,000; and, and authorize Chairperson to sign, contingent upon appropriate signatures being obtalned.

SUMI}ARY DISCASSION

ln December of 2011, your Board approved a contract wlth Allan D. Kotin and Associates (ADK&A), a real estate
consultlng flrm specializing ln the development of public prlvate partnerships. Mr. Kotin and his firm have been
retained by the County to advise and represent the County on two potential and relatively complex real estate
projects: (1) the Consolidated Office Building, for which the County has entered into an Exclusive Negotiation
Agreement with Joseph Enterprises; and, (2) the evaluation of options concerning the disposition of the Mount
Whltney Fish Hatchery through discussions with the Department of Flsh and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, and
Friends of Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery.

ADK&A's contract was last amended by your Board on December 10, 2013, after your Board provided non-bindlng
approval of the Concept Plan and Updated Non-Bindlng Term Sheet for the proposed Consolidated Office Building on
November 12,2013. This amendment extended the term of the contract to June 30,2014, and increased the amount
of the contract by STO,OOO; from $60,000 to 570,000. Slnce that tlme, ADK&A has been immersed in working with
staff and the developer to negotiate lease documents for the proposed proJect. This process became more prolonged
and complex than origlnally anticipated, and the County Adminlstrator exerclsed his authority to extend the contract
with ADK&A for an addltional 6 months, to December 3t,2OL4,ln addition to assisting in lease negotiations, in
recent months ADK&A has been asked to perform updated financial analyses of the proposed project in support of
lease negotiations. These activities have resulted in needlng to extend the term of the agreement, and add funding to
the contrad untll the status of lease negotaations are updated in public in early 2015.

Additionally, as your Board is aware, discussions between the California Department of Fish and Wlldlife regarding
the possible transfcr of the Mount Whhney Fish Hatchery from the Department to the Sierra Nevada Conservancy
and then to the County are ongoing and heating up. A key factor ln any transfer of the Hatchery proceeding to the
Conservancy (or any other entity in which the County may have an lnterest in working with) will be a confidence
among the parties - including the County and Friends of the Mount Whltney Fish Hatchery - in a reallstic strategy for
developing a long-term plan for this iconlc property. ADK&A's services are and will be integral to recommending a

framework for such a long-range plan, and critical recommending and evaluatlng a range of sustainable uses and
partnerships that will be the bedrock of any long-range plan for the Hatchery. lt is also necessary to amend the
contract to ensure ADK&A's ability and availability to participate in this process in an environment of likely
qulckening discussions and decislons.



Agrndr Rcqmrt
Prgr 2

Thc rrcommcndrd rmandmrnt to ADI(&A contnct wlll rllow fbr Mn Xotln'r contlnuod prrtlclprtlon ln both tln
Mount Whttnsy Flrh Hrtchory and Conrolldrttd Offla Dulldll; prolcctr. Drpcndlng on tho dloporltlon of clthcr of
thesc prclocts, fullowlng updrtcs b thr Borrd ln 2015, lt mry bt nrclrrary to mrltc furth.r rmendman$ to the

ADK&A contnct.

ATTENATTYETI

Your Borrd could choosc not to rpprorn tlrc contruct rmendmcnt wlth ADX&A, howotrur, thlr lr not ncommandcd
bccaucs tt wlll csgcnthlly llmlt thc County'r rblllty to mernlrgfully ptftldprto ln dFcurslons nSerdlnl thc long-tcrm

dloposltlon of thG Mount Whltnry Flrh Hrthcry or contlnuG wlth ltr thorough enolysls rnd ncgotlatlon of thc
Consolldated Officr Bulldltt8 proJcrt

onlan Aoe{cr INvoLwIEI{r

County Counrcl, Publlc Works rnd County Admlnlrtntlon rrc wo*lng wlth Mn Kotln rrlrtlvc to nqodrtlonr wlth
Jorcph Entcrprltc br thc Conrclldrud County Offlcc Bulldlry Pmlcct. Dbcuslon of optlonr lbr thc lory-tcrm
dlsposltlon of thc Mount Whlury Flrh Httchory lruolvc County rtrfr rnd Mr. Kotln worllry wlth tha Strte
D.p.rtmcnt of Fbh rnd Grmr, Slorrr Ncvrdr Conrcrvrncy, Frlrndr of ML Whltney Floh Hrtcicry thc Runl Dcrcrt
Southwcct Brownlhldr Codltloq U.S. EPAf rnd, poslbly, thc Strtc Dcplrtmcnt of Gcncnl Scrulccs and thc Countfs
lcahlrtlvr dclr3rtlon.

FWANCINC

Thc ddldon.! $10,0(10 ln Fundlng for thle r$rcmGnt lr rvrlbbb ln thc Borrd rpprornd FlscrlYcrr 201+2015 CAO

Aarmulrtsd CeplblOuday Budgct fl)10201, Proftgrlonrl ScM$s Objcct Codr S5265.

DEFARIilIEII7 HEAD 8EM IIfrE:

OOIJilTY@(iITEt: lOREEtrlEi{T8, Ooil'rnAgn0 AID ORdMilCES AND OIOAED SEttPt{ AtO REI TED ItEriS 0frd D.
Elrfftto |,d munO W il,try f'/m{r,t plot b ttj,tnffir b Up m Nq

M-Islilri*,,a' y' oae^$lft
AUDIIOR'COI{IROIJ-ER tr** rTA|8 ilflt b ,rrtw'd tfl Wo}ild by tn l/4,b'g,fr[''ptbtb

trtpadofl/r)
ATD

PE|REOiINEL I'IRESTOR|

/?/h
PERSOI{I{EL At{D REATEO llEi8 Gllc br ndxrd lnd rpplou.d !t h. ffidor 0? Filonnd r.nlarl Ddor h
r&mlrdon ls $r bo.d afdG)

Appnnd: _ Ddr-

\l'l'1.:ll\ \l\

(t{oi b b. *lr.d uill rl rpgudr at ,)-



AMENDMENT NUTBER 6 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

Allan D. Kotln & Atroclrter
FOR THE PROVISION OF Rcel Ertetc Contultlns SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Allan D. Kotin &
Associates of Los Anoeles. California (hcreinafter rcbned to ae "Contractor''), have entered into an
Agreement for thc Provision of Personal Serviccs dated December 20. 2011 on County of lnyo Standard
Contract No.l$!-for the term from November 1. 2011 (Reduccd to Dcccmber 31, 2014 by Amendment
#5).

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desirc and consent to amend such Agreement as set
forth below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement
to maintrain contin uity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement ae follows:

2. TERM.

The term of this {greement shall be from November 1. 2011 to June 30. 2015 unless sooner
terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

D. Limit uoon amount oavablc under Aoreemcnt. The total sum of all payments made by
the County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travcl and per
diem expenses, if any, shall not exceed $80.000.00**'****** Dollars (hereinafter refened to as "contract
limit'). County expressly reserves the right to deny any paymsnt or reimbursement requested by
Contractor for services or work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excesg of the contract
limit.

County of lnyo Stcndard Contract -ll0
(lndcpcndent Conruftant-Dcslgn Probsoionrl)

Pagc 1



AIIENDMENT NUIf,BER6 TO

AGR,EEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Alhn D. Kotln & Asoclrtcr

FOR THE PROVISION OF Retl Ertetc Gonrultlnq SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND
SEALS THIS DAY OF-, 

-.COUNW OF INYO CONTRACTOR

Si$ature

Dated
TVpe or Prlnt

Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Coumel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Audltor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNET REQUIREMENTS:

Dircctor of Penonnel Scrvlces

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County of lnyo St.ndJd Contnct- No. llie
(lndcpcndont Conrultrnt-Dorign Protuldon.l)

P.gc 2

County Rbk Manager































































In the Rmms of the Board of Supruisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the l8'h day of June 2019 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO - Allan D.
Kotin &
Assocrafes
Amendment No.
13

Moved by Supervisor Tillemans and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to approve Amendment
No. 13 to the contract between Allan D. Kotin & Associates and the County of lnyo, extending the
term of the contract to the period of July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019, contingent upon the
Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Kingsley absent.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this lSth

oay o7 June, 2019

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

cAo x
)ther:
DATE June 20, 2019

By: 
-



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

I Consent ! Departmental nCorrespondence Action

! Scheduled Time for E Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

1
n Public Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June L8,z0tg

SUBJECT: Amendment #13 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Allan D. Kotin & Associates for Real

Estate Consulting Services

D E PART M E NTA L REC O MM E NDAT I O N

Request your Board approve Amendment No. 13 to the contract between Allan D. Kotin & Associates and the County
of lnyo, extending the term of the contract to the period of July I,2OI9 through September 30,20L9, contingent upon

the Board's adoption of the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign contingent upon all

appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION

ln December of 20t1, your Board approved a contract with Allan D. Kotin and Associates (ADK&A), a real estate
consulting firm specializing in the development of public private partnerships. Mr. Kotin and his firm were retained
by the County to advise and represent the County on two relatively complex real estate projects: (1) the Consolidated
Office Building, for which your Board approved entering into a Build-to-Suit Lease Agreement with Wolverine/lnyo
LLC in January; and, (2) the evaluation of options concerning the disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery
through discussions with the Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, and Friends of Mount
Whitney Fish Hatchery.

The recommended amendment to the ADK&A contract will allow for Mr. Kotin's continued participation in the
Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery project if and when it moves forward, and also provide consultation, if and as needed,
as the Consolidated Office Building project gets off the ground. This current amendment extends the term of the
contract to September 30, 2019. The contract "not to exceed" amount is ncit increasing at this time. lf, however,
more substantial consulting is necessary, additional and more detailed contract amendments may become necessary.

ALTERNATIVES

Your Board could choose not to approve the contract amendment with ADK&A, however, this is not recommended
because it will essentially limit the County's ability to meaningfully participate in discussions regarding the long-term
disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT

Discussion of options for the long-term disposition of the Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery involve County staff and Mr.
Kotin working with the State Department of Fish and Game, Sierra Nevada Conservancy, Friends of Mt. Whitney Fish

Hatchery, the Rural Desert Southwest Brownfields Coalition, U.S. EPA, and, possibly, the State Department of General
Services and the County's legislative delegation.

FINANCING



Agenda Request
Page 2

Funding for this contract is provided through the CAO-Accumulated Capital Outlay Budget #}tozlt, Professional
Services Object Code #5265, and was included in the Board approved Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget, encumbered at
that time and will be rolled into the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget. There are no changes in the contract amount at
this time. However, if necessary, the Kotin contract may come back to your Board at a future date with the request
to increase the contract amount.

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIGNATU RE: 0b-t4-11(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to subrnisslon to the board clerk.)

ItcApproved

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTTNG/F/KAryCE AND
submission tf bTrd cterk.)

(/k/t / il*t/
be reviewed

Approved

and approved by the auditor-controller prior toRELATED ITEMS (Musf

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

NIA

peRSOruMl nruO ryEUfeO |TEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the bodrd clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS



AMENDMENTNUMBER 13 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE cou-rurv or rNyo AND

ALLAN D. KOTIN & ASSOCIATES
FOR THE PROVISION OF REAL ESTATE CONSULTING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and

Allan D. Kotin & Associates , of Los Angeles, CA

(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of (Blank)

Services dated December 20.2011 , on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 156

for the term of November 1 2011 to June 30, 2019 (extended bv Amendment 12)

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth

below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

NOW THEREFORE, County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

Section 2, titled, "TERM,' is amended to state the following:

"The term of this agreement shall be from November 1 , 2011 to September 30, 2019, unless
sooner terminated as provided below."

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is t4 2o tg

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156

Page 1



SEALS THIS

COUNTY OF

AHENDilENTNUHBER 13 TO
AcREEMENT BETwEET rne cou'ffir Nyo AND

ALLAN D. KOTIN & ASSOCIATES
FORfiE PROVISION OF REAL ESTATE CONSULTIiIG SERI'ICE8

, THE PARNES SETTHEIR HAI{DS AND
ot

CONTRACTOR

By:

6 - //-1 7

APPR,OVED AS TO FORMAND LEGALIW:

fu-

County CounEel

ACCOU

AS EL REQUIREMENTS:

Serulces

APPROVED AS RISK

Signatue

/
Type or Print

Dated: Ff a'r 24. A-On'
J 't

County of lnyo Standard Gontnact - No. 158

PagP 2



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Information Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Scott Armstrong 
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve and award the contract for Information Technology Improvement Services to Info-Tech 
Research Group of Las Vegas, NV in an amount not to exceed $24,120.90 for the period of October 1, 2019 
through September 30, 2021, billed at $12,060.45 annually, authorize payment for the first year's invoice, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Information Services (IS), a department of 11 people, is responsible for the purchase, implementation, 
installation, configuration and support of all County information technology infrastructure, equipment, systems, 
software applications and services. IS also provides end-user support for the more than 450 employees at more 
than 40 locations throughout the County.  We manage and support approximately 500 computer workstations, 
nearly 80 servers, more than 30 network switches, 20 point-to-point network links, nearly two dozen full-time VPN 
connections, approximately 50 networked copiers, more than 200 networked printers, and all County-owned desk 
phones and cell phones.

With responsibilities this broad, it is important for IS to continually look for opportunities to improve the delivery of 
our services and streamline our operational processes.  Info-Tech Research Group is an established IT 
consulting organization that will work with IS toward strategic, continuous improvement so that our team can 
provide better services and support for the County.  Info-Tech will also assist IS in developing necessary IT-
related policies, and will provide contemporary IT operations training.  Additional services as part of this 
agreement include technical advisory services, and an evaluation of the IS Director's performance and 
effectiveness based on input from other Inyo County Department Heads, followed by a measurable performance 
improvement plan.  This agreement will engage the entire IS department, and we are expecting to realize time 
savings in our daily operations as well as improved service delivery.

Respondents to the IT Improvement Services RFP:
- Client First Technology, $88,737
- Empire Consultants, $32,500
- Info-Tech Research Group, $24,120

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could choose to not approve and award this contract to Info-Tech Research Group, but this is not 
recommended, as this engagement should help us improve our internal operations and become more efficient in 
our delivery of services.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Funding is requested in the the Information Services FY2019-2020 budget (011801) in the Professional Services 
object code (5265).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. IT-Improvement-Services-Contract-w-InfoTechResearchGroup-Signed-ITRG-InyoDepts
 
APPROVALS:
Lavon Sargent Created/Initiated - 9/10/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/10/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/11/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/12/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/12/2019
Scott Armstrong Final Approval - 9/12/2019



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D207 -4ACB-834P'-A1 D53A8B8ADE

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnfo-Tech Group lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnformation T lmprovement SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

TERMS AND GONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, those services and work set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

be from October 1 2019 to September 30, 2021

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor the sum total of
hundred lars and ninetv cents

for performance of all of the services and
completion of all of the work described in Attachment A.

B. Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work under this Agreement.

C. No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit Upon Amount Pavable Under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for all services and work to be performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

r thousand one and ni cents
($ (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").

or reimbursement requested by Contractor for
limit.

County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment
services or work performed which is in excess of the contract

E. Billing and Payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, upon completion of all services
and work set forth in Attachment A, an itemized statement of all services and work performed by Contractor
pursuant to this Agreement. This statement will identify the date on which the services were performed and
describe the nature of the services and work which was performed on each day. Upon receipt of the

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 1 of9 Modified No. 113
09t04t2019

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') has the need for the
services of Info-Tech Research Group lnc., of

3960 Howard Hughes Parkwav, Las Vegas, NV hereinafter referred to as "Contractorl, anO in
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

The term of this Agreement shall
unless sooner terminated as provided below



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D2O7 -4ACA-BZ4B-A1 D53A8B8ADE

statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State Taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social securi$ from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is aniicipateO that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo)

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the Cilifornia
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, iontractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue service (lRS) Form w-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these services and work will require a
varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to ensure that
all services and work requested by county under this Agreement will be performed within thetime frame set
forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certiflcates, or permits required by the federal, state, coung, or municipal
governments for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A mustbe procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may Oe required.
Fu{her, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must mainlain such licenses, certificatei, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certiflcates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid iicenses, certificates and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B' Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transaciions by any federai
departm-ent or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred fiom ieceiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federai procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 2 of 9 Modified No. 113
09t04t2019



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D207-4AC8-834B-A1 DS3ABBBADE

Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY.

_ A. Persqnal Prope8 qf Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while iney are h
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to suih 1ems,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products. of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, speciflcations, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, p-hotographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, tradem-arks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or areihe result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and'at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the -County. nt ine termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County' C_ontractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind orincur'any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority 6r responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the County is to be
considered an employee of Contractor. lt is understood by botn Contractor and County that this Agreement
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considbred to create an employer-employee relationship
or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B' Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, s'hall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contraltor in fulfillment of this Agreement.C' Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times dJring the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not?s employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including'without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every natuie arising out ot or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply witn any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by thasole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
( I ndependent Contractor)

Page 3 of 9 Modified No. 113
09t04t2019



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263AB6-D207 -4AC}-8348-A1 D53ABBSADE

11, RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provjsions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the te[nination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain'records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or olher authentic reproduction of such records.B lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
looks, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial recbrds of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts.,. and transcripts during the period such recoids are to be mainta-ined by Contractor.
Further, Coun$ has the right, at all reasonlble iimes, to audit, inspect, or othenarise evatuate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

- During the perform.alce of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law,-against any emptoyee, or applicant for
employment, or person.receiving services under this Agreement, beciuse of rice, retgion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, mlrital status, age, or sex. ContrJctor and its agents,officers, and employeeg sn{l comply with the provisions of the Fair Emptoyment and Housin! nci(Government Code section 1290_0, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgateo ihereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federat Civit nign"ts Act of 1964 (p.L. s8-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules ind regulations issue| pursuant to said act.

13. ASSIGNMENT.

. This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into tnis Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the pri6r
wriften consent of County.

14, DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, q falls in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, Cgunty may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five(5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay [o Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date oi termination.

15. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

. Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiverof any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be constru6d to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty one (21) below.

16. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessi'ble by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such inforiration and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(lndependent Contractor)

page 4 of 9 Modified No. 113
09t04t2019



Docusign Envelope lD: A0263A86-DZO7 -4ACA-834E'_A1 D53ASBSADE

17. CONFLTCTS.

21. AMENDMENT

consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractoi in all respects.

. Notwithstanding. anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential.and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosuie in accordance with Tifle 45,Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 19g6,and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuantthereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, ano dita elements pertaining tobeneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, whichwould conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work an-d services under this Agreement.

18. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

C-ontractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the county in the course of providing services and work under this Agreiment, tor any personal benefit,gain, or enhancement.

19. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumslance shall be
declared. invalid by a court of competent jurisdiciion, or if it is found in coniravention of any federal, state, orcounty statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the ipplication
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shalf iemain in full force and effect to the extent that theprovisions of this Agreement are severable.

20. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to-enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modifieo, irom one or more sources, County has theoption to cancel, reduce-, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ien iiol J"vr of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. nny reouction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
one (21) (Amendment).

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutualconsent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the sameformalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAigreement io maintain continuity.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 5 of9 Modified No.113
09t04t2019



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D207-4ACB-8348-A1 D53A8B8ADE

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

22. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractoi or County shall b6
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
lnformation Services Department
168 N. Edwards St. Address
lndependence, CA 93526 City and State

Contractor:

lnfo-Tech Research Group lnc. Name
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwv S50CAddress
Las Vesas. NV 89169 City and State

This Agreement contains.the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incoipoiited herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be'changed, waived',
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

##

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 6 of g Modified No. 113
09tQ4t2019



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D207-4ACB-8348-A1 D53AgBSADE

9th IN WITNESS THEREOF
DAY September

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnfo-Tech Research Group lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnformation Technoloov SERVICES

, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
20L9

COUNTY OF INYO

Type or Print Name

Dated:

RM AND LEGALITY:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

Services

AS TO

County Risk Manager

KTw H-g*r
Ryan u9

Type or Print Name

O","0. 09 September 2019

CONTRACTOR
by:

AP

AP REQUIREMENTS

REMENTS:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 7 of 9 Modified No. 113
09t04t2019



DocuSign Envelope I D: A0263AB6-D 207 -4 ACB-8348-A1 DS3ASBSADE

ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnfo-Tech Research Group lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnformation T

TERM

FROM: October 1.2019 TO : Seotember 30.2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

SEE ATTACHED SCOPE OF WORK

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 8 of 9

ent

Modifled No. 113
09t04t2019



lD: 40263486-D207n DS3ABBSADE

IxFo-TECH
lll Si riqCll (iROt;p

APPROACH TO ACCOMPLISH THE SCOPE OF WORK

The RFP identified a list of services and tools required from the successful vendor to drive IT
improvement. The following sections provide an overview of our services available to align with these
business objectives and value-added services available throughout the term of the contract. All services
are available for a minimum one-year term. Access is availa6le for up to 10 members of your
Information Services staff.

RESEARCH, TOOLS, TEMPLATES, AND POLICIES

Info-Tech Research Group assists CIOs. IT leadership and orsanizations achieve what they want most:
measurable results while assisting in developing teams to meet tomorrow's challenges. Our experience
ensures the research and advisory supportdelivered is driven from best practices from industry peers.

We do lots of 'what' and 'why' research, but the bulk of our product focuses on 'how'. We have over 600
blueprints that you and your team use to actually improve a process or deliver on a project. Other vendors
frame a problem and provide case studies about how a few companies are tackling ihe problem and
provide forecasting and trends - it's primarily an executive education product and they do that very well.
But from there, you really are on your own to figure out how to get it done. By contrast, we build out the
project road map for you, the communications tools, planning documents, templates, etc. that you need to
actually do the project. That reduces the risk of project failure and delays dramatically, and gives the
project leader a huge head start in getting the project done. All of Info-Tech's research is based on a
COBIT 5, CMMI, TOGAF, ITIL, NIST,ISO, and DAMADMBOK2 framework(s).

Info-Tech uses a number of formats to effectively present our research including solution sets, project
blueprints, tools, templates, analyst calls, webinars, videos, on-site strategy serr-ions, events, and 

-

workshops. Our focus is to help your organization navigate critical technology projects through a guided
implementation. We move beyond reports with action-based research to drive sustainable IT
improvement through innovative research.

Our competencies include:

o Providing analyst advisory services that include both written and verbal consultationso Assisting with vendor and technology sourcing support and selection decisions
o Supporting critical IT projects and implementations throughout the year
o Providing IT governance and process support and improvement advice
o Assisting senior management with organizational planning and strategy
o Providing a self-serving 24 hour resource of written research
r Providing benchmarking reports that include business alignment assessments
. Building business cases forkey IT investments made throughout the year

The Blueprints and Resources published on Info-Tech's website are chosen based on market direction,
client demand, and IT trends; non-sponsored, independent research. We offer over 600 do-it-yourself
project and process Blueprints. In addition, we offer thousands of Trend Reports, Industry Notes,
Reference fuchitectures, Toolkits, Software Reviews, Benchmarking Reports, IT policy Templates,
Toolkits, Case Studies, and Mdeos developed by our industry experts to help our members save time and
money when it comes to tackling their most important IT initiatives.

All topics covered in the core Blueprints are organized under eight research silos:

o CIO

Page | 10

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904



lD: 40263486-D207 1 D53A8B8ADE

Ixr.o -TECH
f] I :l I /\ A O tl Ct I il (; p

o Infrastructure & Operations
. EnterpriseArchitecture
o Applications
o Project & Portfolio Management
o Data& Business Intelligence
o Securrty
. Vendor Management

The research is then categorized based on further clarified sub sections. All written materials are also
easily found via the search bar function based on extensive metadata and key words specific to topic,
author, or title. Research is available in an unlimited fashion to all users through the 24 17 web-portal -
www.infotech.com. Sample publications

Develop and Deolov IT Sec urity Policies
Standardize Service Desk
Raise Your Digital Maturitv
Combine Sec Risk Manasement Comnonenfs Into One Prosram

the Clo Action Plan
Position IT to Support and Be a Leader in Open Data Initiatives
Develop a Plan to Pilot Enterprise Service Management
Create a Customer-Centric Digital Strateqv
Ensure Meaningful Connections With Citizens Using New Interaction Channels
Redesisn IT to Drive Ootimal iness Results

Take Control of In frastructure Metrics
Use Application Metrics that Matter
Develop Meaningful Service Metrics to Ensure Business and User Satisfaction

o Optimize the IT Operations Center

The County of Inyo can contactthe authors of the research publications to discuss the research in more
detail and the applicability of the research to their business lontext at the County and their role. The
consultations are typically delivered via WebEx so the member can view each section of the research
through a screen-sharc.

Each named user will receive unlimited access to our website where they can browse through our
extensive catalog of IT research, download our ready-to-use tools and templates, book experiences, and
save their favorite content to their research library.

Members will have a unique user name and password to access the content. Weekly e-mails will be sent
to summarize new publications applicable to their role. Members can also customize their research feed
to easily find new research by category, role, date, popularity, resortrce type, and keyword search.

Online Features:

. Unique User Login Credentials
o Advanced Keyword Search
o Filter Content by fuea and Type
o Content Preview

Page I ll

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a



I xpo -TECH
F I :l I /i ;t a il {l it il tr ir

o Video Content player
o Content Downloading
o Personal Library for Saved Research
. Training Course Enrollment
r Book Experiences
o Share Content with peers
r Share Content on Social Media
r Customizable Account Settings

Research.is provided in a_step-by-step format with tools and templates to enable CIo,s and IT Leaders to
get to action. See example below - Build an IT Budget that Demonstrates Value Delivery

Start here - read the Ex€cutive Brief
Read i:ur ccncise Executive Srief to find out hor,v to l:llilrl a budget tl'tat demonstrales value delivery

[l BuitO an lT Budget That Demonstrates Value Delivery -
Executive Brief

[l euitO an lT Budget That Demonstrates Value Delivery -
Phases l-3 G'GD

1" Plan

Plen for success.

fl AuilO an lT Budgel That D€monstrates Value Delivery - phase
1: Plan

@ tt euOget lnterview Guide

2. Build
Build the budgei.

fl euilO an lT Budget That Demonstrates Value Delivery - phase
2:8uild

El lT Cost Forecasring Tool

3. Sell

Sell the budget

fl Build an lT Budget That Demonstrates Value Delivery - Fhase
3: Sell

fl tt nuOget Presentation

Page I 12

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

G}

G'

G'

G'

G'

G'

G'

The County of Inyo will have a team of IT staff members accessing content on the website. Info-Tech
enables users to save research on the web-portal and share with oth"er users within their organization.
This service increases teamwork and collaboration within the department. It also enables our members to



40263486-D207 1 D53A8B8ADE

IxFo-TncH
Bf:ltrlaCil (:tBiJltp

organze content' The home page also features key research applicable to your role and the ability to
directly schedule appointments to explore research in further O^"tult rrith the authors/analysts.

New research is published weekly on the web-portal. Each IT team member will receive an update when
research is published. This prompt ensures frequent usage of the subscription. Your dedicated Account
Director and Executive Advisors/Partners will also schedule times with each member to review new
research available so you receive consistent value from the subscription.

E-Mail preferences can be set to each user's preferences.

ADVISORY SERVICES

Info-Tech has over 300 Analysts available to guide IT Leaders through the research on the web-portal and
discuss IT topics in more detail to ensure best practices are in place. Members can initiate a call ihrough
the web-portal or by contacting their dedicated Account Management Team.

Please refer to the following link to review the experience of our analysts : Analvst Biographies. As the
fastest growing IT research firm in the world, we are regularly adding tul"nt to *Gilh und
consulting practice.

Info-Tech's analysts are not revenue driven but customer service driven and ultimately, customer focused-
The only goal of our analysts is to provide the right advice when our clients need it in-a tailored manner to
best suit the specifrc needs of our member's particular environment.

Analyst calls can be requested through your dedicated Account Manager or directly on the member,s
library/home page' We offer a 24-hour turnaround for ourAnalyst Inquiry Service. Multiple staff can be
on one call with Info-Tech's Expert Analysts and there are no limits tothe number of follow-up calls on
any given topic.

Our analysts are available to assist the IT Leaders and extended team members with the following:

r Information to validate or discuss the best direction for an IT project
o Assistance getting the buy-in from other members of your organizationo Provide an objective third-party to answer your IT/management questions
o Review of vendors being evaluated for a particular IT solution
o Guidance and direction for process improvements and program upgrades

' Guided Implementation assistance for your major IT projects from beginning to end

Calls are typically booked for one-hour timeslots but it is important to keep in mind that Info-Tech has a
focus on delivering value within our analyst interactions anddoes not determine a set limit on a particular
topic' There is a focus on getting the appropriate solution with a combination of both analyst expertise as
well as our written research thatare supplemented with tools and templates instead of measuring time
during a potentially critical advice related conversation with one of our analysts.

.! a major component of Info-Tech's written research, our World Class Operations Framework
Blueprints and Guided Implementations provide a detailed and step-by-step outline to optimize,
implement and manage the County of Inyo's core IT processes. Info-Tectr's World Clais operations
materials are based on a COBIT 5 and ITIL Framework and the processes outlined are extremely
important to any Senior Technology department head's job.

The published research is made up of process modules broken down into step-by-step plans to lead your
members from the opening phase of the process such as assessments, 

"u.r"nf 
state analysis and corporate

Page | 13

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-l9M



ID: A0263486-D207-4AC8-8348-A1 D53ASBBADE

IxFo-TECH
ll f !l J ri q C tl c !l O U p

goal identification, all the way to the final and ideal state with the assistance of a formalized strategy
roadmap, stakeholder buy-in strategy, a communication plan and final deliverables.

The most comprehensive aspect of Info-Tech's World Class Operations Frameworks and Guided
Implementations is access to our expert analyst team. Through Info-Tech's proposed subscription, you
will have the ability to book analyst calls to gain desired expertise on your most pressing technology
concerns. These calls are one hour long in duration and the best way for Info-Techto provide your
members with tailored and extensive advice and direction in a one-one-one fbrmat.

Having all of the steps, procedures and tools & templates to help you get the job done and your processes
optimized is one half of Info-Tech's focus. The second aspect is ensuring your members have access to
analyst expertise via conversational means which Info-Tech sees as paramount in terms of specific and
tailored advice to your organization's particular environment.

Through the Guided Implementation process, a series of calls willbe administered between Info-Tech's
subject matter expert of the particular topic of interest and the point of contact/project manager at the
County. The first call will be a general scoping of the particular IT topic of interest. During that call, a
tentative timetable will also be set for further calls as you move along the process of that particular
technology's implementation guidelines (as set out in our Guided Implementation Blueprints on the
website). The Guided Implementation process will be extremely advantageous for your members as the
Implementation Blueprints accompanied by the analyst's on-going support ensures optimum
proc es s/project exec ution.

For every project you start, we have an expert analyst waiting to help you execute best practices and stay
on schedule. It's on-demand project support when you need it the most. Each Guided Implementation
conducted with our analysts saves our members an average of $22,517 and 14 days of valuable IT
resources.

The following graphic is an example of how a Guided Implementation is organized and delivered:

I Understand best practices to grow my own ppM solution
::j::t:i,!l-::::i.:t,.-ji:,rtt:,at::ili,:rrl:ila:j.j,:,trt:jiri.,: lr.:...jja_:.,.:.

E Storyboard: Grou., Your irlvn PPl,,l Solution (E l@
E PPl,t Strategy Developrrrent Tool (@

2 lmplement the home-grqwn PPM solution
i:i.tir t, i: .::: :t:r,::jt: il ir:rar.::ii:,,r1.:; iir. j,r::,iri i

I Protect Poftfoiio \,/orkbook l@
3. Maintain and continue to grow my PPM selution

r.':i!.ir.-r.i ii....fl.-.-:tr::.a::: t,t:J ii.i !.r ja i:.F::,r::,i ir, Ii,,::l

E PPl"l Stanilard Operatrng proceciure @

Page | 14

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-19M

This guded implementation rs a lhree call advrsory process.

L Cal at: Deline your PPM straregy and goats

Thrs slep will help you determme your baseline PPM maturity, analyze ppM

cost dmers, validate you PPM berefits assumptions, and formalize poffolio
goals aDd metrics.

L Ca[ #2: Design and build the home-grown PPM sotution

This step will help you select, populate, customEe, and enend one of
lnfo-Tech's three PPM solution templates. This step will tnclude defining the
PPM engagement process lo detemtine requrements based on
organizatDnal and stakeholder needs.

! Cal AS: Conduct your annual PPM health-check

This step wll help you evaluate and rmprove the PPM solution to nraximize ils
adoption and value- Additionally, this step may include continuing to build
maturity toward implelmting a commerciallool.

$ coia*a r-plementetion

Schedule Your Frrst CaI



ID: -4AC8-8348-A1 D53A8B8ADE

Ixpo -TECH
lrf:;fA:?cil (jnat.P

Info-Tech's professional services practice is unique in that it blends the knowledge and experience of a
research frm, with the methodology and proven delivery capabilities of a large consultancy, while
maintaining the flexibility and effective pricing of a smaller organization. Additionally, because we are a
research organization, our ongoing coverage of the complete range of IT solutions means we have a view
to the future and can help your organization in understanding not only its current needs, but its future ones
as well. Info-Tech uses COBIT and ITIL as a standard IT framework.

Get support for your IT leadership team. Our Roadmaps help you build and manage core IT functions to
systematically improve performance. Each Roadmap includes a series of diagnostics to help you assess
strengths and weaknesses ofyour current state as well as help you envision your target. We provide you
with tools and training to help you succeed at key projects that are proven to enhanci your department's
capability and drive increased business satisfaction. Step-by-step initiatives ensure that your IT
leadership team has a plan in place for creating real improvement over the course of your membership.

The dedicated Executive Advisors and extended analyst team will work with your IT team to focus
attention on key projects and initiatives most important to Maryland Judiciary. See sample engagement
plans below for a IT Security function.

DATA-DRIVEN INSIGHT PROGRAM SECURITY
KEY INITIATIVE PLAN

Info-Tech also offers a program called Purchase Optimization. This service is very popular with our
clients as they are able to send our analysts their particular contracts and documents (Microsoft, SAN
Storage, Data Center Co-location, Enterprise Networks etc.) for us to review. This process includes an
initial review of the contract by our analysts and then a call, similar to an advisory call with the analyst
that reviewed the document. Document Reviews also include Business Cases, Business/lT Policies,
Strategic Plans, EA Frameworks, RFP's, Job Descriptions, etc.

Page I 15

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

stEp2 U
Build Your Security Strategy

st€p 3 ldl

Establish a Policy and Audit
Fromework
Mooy companrB stlllurc I€qrulatory gryerunce €9
their policy control Gther lhEn usrng therrbustnss'
oNAtoseate policy Nleke polEy wql fo. ye to
enhrnce yrurompany s secuilty.

Desprte all the secuoty related headlines rnthe
news ov€r the pasl few years,949$ ofcomp3nieg
ha'Je eltxnerced da!a breaches due to being
sluck rn reactile rcde for operat.ons.

90% otmp8nies are slill rn teactrve mode when
handling murity issw. Elevate y@r sronty
operalims outol,eactrw 'block and uclle'
modela and becom a proactiveluggernEut.

Q s;tep t [g

Diagnose Security lssues

@ stepa 144

Develop your Risk
Management Program
CISOs and ClOs must wdtrst8nd how to
assess nsk. lt'9 easy ro d$crib€ dle \€lue of
rrsk managmenr, bul the queslion bmffies
ho\,r to manage the flsk.

steps k[

Establish Mitigation
Effectiveness Control
Ihe lT landscapewolves every 3 years. and suflty
controls bMrc obsolete over tme. Betng sble to
mes3ue mitigBton effetivmess lcads to s*uflty
excellm*.

step 6 l*[
Adopt Hurnan Centric
Security Development
Th€ *l mthod of pfftratim by hmhers rs s€,€l
*grncrrng agarnst hurun3. The best tshnology
cnnmt p{ffit untraLned humens frm prwdng
h€ckers with mrcal sccess infqmatm

@ sepz lsg

Develop Your lncident Reeponse
Capabilities
Security incrdents are rne\,fiablq bul how thsyie
deait vlh c€n ruke q break an organation- pw
rncidtrt respsse negatively imp€cts the Businesg
rn multrple vrays.

T[re rsa vast number of srcunty relrrcs, and
ana93rs systms @n only be as effrctrve as ihe
rnlmstron th6t rs supplted to them. Destgn a suong
metrica progmm to achae lntelhgme.

Ftr yeaB, 3ecunly aptrBtrms have b€en
rmprcpdy sen as a cost cents He,o yqur C-
Surte !nd B€rd of Drrectors s* the value of
KUTrty Ope,€t€ns.

stas k[
Build Your Metrics Program

srep e l*l
Qptimize Your Budget



Ixpo -TECH
ll t :; r ii q C lt C. q O U p

Info-Tech does not place a page limit on document reviews or a limit on the number of document reviews
completed during the term of a membership. Through this call our analyst is able to p.*ia. you with
tailored insight for potential savings, compliance issues, appropriate feature options and general best
practice tips for your contract negotiation process. Asummarized document willbe proiided.

IT STAFFING ANALYSIS

IT Staffing Assessment - our comprehensive report shows you exactly where IT stafftime is going and
whether or not it's effectiveb driving results. Communicate how IT staffsuppoft the business and use
included feedback from your staffto guide improvement exercises. Industry benchmarking is included.

Please review the sample report: sample Report - IT staffins Assessment.pdf

Benefrts of completing Info-Tech,s IT Staffing Assessment:

1. Staffing Elenchmarking: see your staffing metrics at a glance and how they compare against your
peers across over 4,000 organizations; use this data to determine whether you und your team are
in line with industry benchmarks and how to coune_correct2' Time Breakdown by IT Function:assess staffing levels across 20 IT functions; compare staffing
levels against business priorities to ensure alignment

3' Time Breakdown by Activity: evaluate resource time spent on high value vs. low value activities;
establish targets by areaand ensure your team has the Jupport to get there4. IT Function Effectiveness Assessments: get scorecard-based asseisments of IT function
effectiveness from both IT and the business

The IT Staffing Analysis when combined with our CIo Business Vsion program will help build strategic
alignment with County priorities.

Our analysts will work with the County to support all aspects of IT Staffing and Organ zationalDesign to
optimize resources. Sample publications :

a

a

o

the IT Model
Redes Your IT Organizational Structure
Build a Strategic Workforce plan

IT.FOCUSED TRAINING FOR IS-DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES

Info-Tech provides an entire research silo related to Talent Leadership research specifically targeted to
improve your organization's strategies on how to lead your IT team effectively. We provide proven
resources that will help your IT leadership team become better managers.

Much like our information technology focused research, our Talent Leadership resources include Guided
Implementations, Data Driven Diagnostic tools, Solution Sets and pre-written tools, templates and job
descriptions all designed to ensure your IT department is a driving force for the overall business.

our Advisors-will help your team leverage the resources and provide executive coaching as part of your
profes s ional development goals.

The Talent Leadership silo also includes The Info-Tech Academy, whichenables your staff to receive
training, in one of the 45 core IT processes (based on COBIT). 9 certificates are available by completing
the outlined solution sets for each process. We understand that IT departme"t*.ilglbio ievetop tneii

Page | 16

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904



BSADElD: 40263486-D207 -4AC8-8348-A1

Ixpo-TECH
BT:lri\;lCil Cilt)ttP

staff'. This is a unique opportunity to increase the utilization and value of an IT research service. Each
topic is accompanied by webinars and videos with our subject matter experts and IT members.

For example, the Data & BI certificate includes the following courses:

o Business Intelligence & Reporting
o Data fuchitecture
o Data Quality

The courses include a combination of videos, research, and activities. This is a great opportunity for the
Clo/Executives to learn and develop but also train direct reports and colleagu"r-n or. eifectively in these
areas. The access to the program is unlimited and unrestricted to all IT staff at the County of Inyo.

Each of the designated members can assign courses from the 45 core IT processes (based on the COBIT
framework) to their staff at any level as shown in the screenshot:

STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT & CONTINUOUS IT IMPROVEMENT

Info-Tech's mission is to help clients tackle their key IT issues by enabling data-driven decision making
with our consulting quality deliverables that are low effort and high impact. our data-driven programs
help justify IT spending to provide the most value to the organizaiion as a whole by focusing on the end-
user. Info-Tech's programs are the key to comprehensive, iop-to-bottom alignm"nt *ith the business.

Three important goals are achieved:

Increased transparcncy into and satisfaction with IT with clear performance metrics
Business support for IT projects aligned with business goals
Increased investment in IT resources

Info-Tech's Diaenostic & &nchmarkine programs enable our members to collect the data they need to
make key IT decisions. Info-Tech's proposalincludes Diagnostic and Benchmarking programs
throughout the term ofthe contract targeted towards the IT Business Heads and Senior Leaders.

With data from over 45,000 business leaders, we understand what activities correlate with high IT
performance and can help you successfully complete these activities in your own organization.

Page | 17

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

l,
2.
a
J.

Course lnformation
Pul rho Lusilrcsi bdck iil busil(.,., ilttL,t(lufice ljy ir iccl{rq I.Lw $ usc L:L:cs
I lris course o)akes up pat I ()l tllp ljatr d lJl Upr lilicale

litle: Business lntelligence & Rq)ortitrg Course
Nlmbs of CouBe Moduleg: 4
Estimled Tim€ to Cffipletc:2,2 5 hours

Add l.lew caftd

Assign the Business lntelligence &
Reporting Course

str rcr tMprovft{s}

Phase Two
Iva[rate lhc Curcnt lJl Praclice

Phase Thr*
(){}at{: a lll lloadntap kr (}ntlinuous
lmprovem$l

Ersutive Brief
Ioprc lntroduction

Phase One

Undcrstand tirc Busness Contcxt irtd Bl
I andsr:apr:



-4AC8-8348-A1 D53ABBSADE

Iwpo-TECH
F I :; t.rr 3 Ct il (-, {t il U r,

Unlimited access to diagnostic/benchmarking programs are available with the proposed subscription.
This is a key differentiator of our service off;ring;d a value-adJeJservice for the couniy. rn"
following sections highlight key diagnostic and benchmarking programs available to support IT
Executives and CIOs.

QIo Busineqs Yision - Stakeholder Management is a criticalaspect of running a successful IT
department. Info-Tech's CIo Business Vision program is a low effort, high imf,act program that willgive
you detailed report cards on the organization's satisfaction with IT's core services.

Use these insights to understand your key business stakeholders, find out what is important to them, and
improve your interactions. The CIo Buiiness Msion survey is administered by our research team uponrequest' The valuable statistics you will receive from this ru.u"y range from Stuk"hold". satisfaction
metrics, IT capacity metrics' and departmental metrics including staklhoher feedback reports. The value
of this survey has five key points:

1. Plan your stakeholder strategy with Info_Tech
2. Build consensus & accountability within IT
3. Brief critical stakeholders within the Government
4. Build relationships with key decision-makers
5. Create company and business unit action plans

Please review the following sample report Report - CIO Busines s Vision.pdfS

Page | 18

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

The. most important thing a CIo can do is understand the business needs and actively measure that thebusiness is satisfied. Info-Tech's CIO Elusiness Vision program allows our clients to do just that by
receiving feedback on key IT functions.

QEQ-QIO AJienment Program - I would encourage lT Leaders take advantage of this program at the
beginning of the membership so we can effectively setup an engagement plan over the course of the year
that will provide the most value to your department and ine otginEution ai a whole. Foi decades, IT-
business alignment has been touted as the next dimension of eifective IT. yet many IT leaders are still
without the tools they need to understand and support business priorities.

Decipher business needs by understanding the CEo's/Head of the Business's perspective. Automate IT-
business alignment so IT can operate effe-tively and generate tangible value for your business.

As leader of an IT departmen! you recognize that your ideas, priorities, and perspectives differ from
those of business leaders. This p.og.amili-inates the guesswork and starts'closing the gaps between
these perspectives.

By taking part in the CEO-CIO Alignment Program, you have already taken the first step to building IT-
business alignment that optimizes IT and drives business value. This ieport shares insights from the
survey component of our program. It will help your IT division:

' Understand the.Elusiness Head's perception of and vision for IT in your business
' Identify and build 

_c_ore 
IT processes that automate lT-business alignment

' create a plan to address alignment gaps impeding business growth. Deliver your plan to demonstrate IT value ind piogress

Please review the following sample report: Sample Report - cEo-clo Alisnment.pdf



Ixpo-TtrCH
lr I :l'.', ) a Ir (i rl ir t ;.

IT Man ent & C'overnance Diasnostic

Info-Tech's IT Management and Governance Diagnostic is a new innovative program available to the
County, which allows IT Executive's to understand their team's perception oithe importance and
effectiveness of their technology processes. Build consensus around which procesr", ur" important and
ineffective by conducting an IT team alignment exercise.

The program enables the IT organization to create a customized process improvement roadmap to
maximize impact and focus time and resources more efficiently ind accurately.

There are 4 key steps that will guide you through the program to optimize your IT processes:

1. Map Your Process Landscape - Determine which processes your team believes need more
attention so that you can effectively allocate your time and resources across all process initiatives.
Understand what your next steps should be for each of the processes in your organization based
on the feedback received from your entire team

2. Process Spotlight - Dive deeper into each processes' performance. Highlight contentious areas
and understand how aligned your team is for each process.

3- Team Alignment - Use the results to facilitate a team alignment exercise with your team.
Prioritize your team's process improvementefforts by gitting opposing views on the table and
reconciling the differences to build consensus.

4' Ownership & Accountability - Assign process ownership and hold team members accountable for
process improvement initiatives to ensure successful implementation and to realize the benefits
from more effective processes.

Info-Tech uses a "heat-map" style graphic to identify the effectiveness and relative importance of each IT
process. The processes below align with the coBIT 5 Framework of IT

STRATEGY &
lT Management & Governance Framework
A comfrelrenstvo and conncr:lrtd scl of rr:aiearch to
helF yot, ofi!rnrie aoJ itrtlrlve your !are I I ptccesses ht mG06

SLCUfiII Y
& fitsK

:- - "
1[ rau JH silo

AFPSrr
"T;0lh
Oulity

hrt:.:,fhtihl
;-*l! t:l:}:+ii:
.J..;$:qlt4-{. .:.ffi:

ffi

60dr@
htolllgme
.nd R.pfihg

Lr
llrtN

m@7

ffinu*n*,ulffiffi
ffif
@,.ffi;lGh sto"

lBFol:ri r:i i :nur:--,:
U|!{..!Bgr,r,i:,gBtti'tuit6n,

Anlbblllrv
ra cordtr qE|!l
Mnrddwfi Huqgilm

ff, ro*,. *4 rlno 4[ uor'
A.r.t cfithr$on qda
limg!ffi| MrmEffit Mrrgmsi

dfl ossor JE qesm i[ osm

ordd@ sdrlc. tndddld
il'ingrnolr lrrd( ffi".,

ttH
ffiffiffi

; :;i,r1i litll\i
i',:.rr;.1,':i,t i.i! i I 1

srnv'cE
& AREHITEETUNF

Page I 19

County oflnyo
IT Improvement Services - RFP-IS-1904

Ixt'o^:l'tctt

ppM &
PROJECTS

(:r)llt'lb



I D : A0263A86-D 207 - 4 ACB- B34B- A,l DS3ABBSADE

Ixpo-TECH
R T S f A B C II G R O t,I P

Additional IT function diagnostic programs include:

IT Security Diagnostic - The IT Secr-rdty Diagnostic Prograrn is a low effort, high impact progam
designed to help IT Security Leaders assess and improve their secLrrity practices. Gather and
report on IT Security governance, business satisfaction, and effectiveness to understand where
you stand and how you can improve.

Application Portfolio Assessment - Application portfolio management is nearly irnpossible to

a

a

a

perforrn w ithor,rt an honest and thoroLrgh understanding of end user sentiment toward IT software
Develop data driven insights to help you decide which applications to retire, upgrade, re-train on
or rnaintain, to meet the demands of the business.

End User Satisfaction - Service optimization is nearly impossible to perform without an honest
and thorough understanding of end user sentiment toward IT seruices and software.

Data Quality Scorecard - Our comprehensive report shows you how the bLrsiness feels about data
quality and what the most pressing issues are. Use the feedback to guide improvement efforts and
develop a focused action plan.

a

o Proiect Portfolio Management Diagnostic Program - The Proiect Portfolio Management
Diagnostic Prograrn is a low effort, high impact program designed to help proiect owners assess
and improve their PPM practices. Gather and report on all aspects of your PPM environment in
order to understand where you stand and how you can improve.

For over 20 years, Info-Tech has provided IT tearns with practicaladvice that helps make measurable
improvement. Since launching our svstematic program to improve IT performance in 2013" Infb-Tech
members have drarnatically outperformed their peers by delivering superior levels of br,rsiness
satisfaction.

84o/o

,avo

ThVo

!t:-t!:

tr1,

., I i.,1

)::

!

jj

:
q

:L

Info-Tech Members
Consistsntly Deliver Superior

Business Satisfactlon

Eo/o 7BV6

.r:.il:l ',t 
l- )' / r lll5 7: l1i:

Page | 20

County of Inyo
IT Improvement Services - RI'P-IS-1904



DocuSign Envelope I D : A0263AB6-D207 -4 AC8-8348-A1 DS3ASB8ADE

ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND lnfo-Tech Research Grouo lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF lnformation T ERVICES

Modified No. 113
09t04t2019

TERM:

October 1 2019 ber 2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - lnfo-Tech Research Grp
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 9 of 9



Docusign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D207 -4AC8-A348-A1 DS3ABBBADE

Attachment B
to Standard County Contract No. 113

Insurance Requirements for IT Vendor Services
IT Vendor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Vendor, its agents, representatives, or employees.
Vendor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance claims arising out
of their services and including, but not limited to loss, damage, theft or other misuse of data,
infringement of intellectual property, invasion of privacy and breach of data.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF'INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

l. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01
covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations,
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less
than $1'000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04)
or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occunence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering,
Code I (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-
owned), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workerso Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.

(Not required if consultant provides written verffication it has no employees)

If the Vendor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, the County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the
specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the County.

Except for the Consultant's Indemnification obligations related to: (l) breach of confidentiality; (2) third
party intellectual property infringement; and, (3) bodily injury and property damage; to the fullest extent
permissible by applicable law, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the maximum amount
that Consultant or its related entities, suppliers, sub-contractors, agents or distributors is liable to the
County of Inyo for under this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, including negligence, is Two
Million Dollars ($2,000,000USD). The parties acknowledge that Consultant has set its prices and entered
into this agreement in reliance on the limitations of liability and disclaimers of warranties and damages
set forth herein, and that the same form a fundamental and essential basis of the bargain between ihe
parties.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Page 1 of3



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D207 -4AC8-8348-A1 DS3ABBSADE

Additional Insured Status
The County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or equipment
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's insurance (at least as broad as
ISo Form cG 20 l0 I I 85 or both cG 20 10, cG 20 26, cG 2033, or cG 20 3s; agd cG 20
37 forms if later revisions used).

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Vendor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 0l 04 13 as respects the County,
its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained
by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Vendor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Concellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to the County.

Waiver of Subrogotion
Vendor hereby grants to County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of
said Vendor may acquire against the County by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Vendor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the County has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

S e lf- I n s ur ed Ret e nt io ns
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the County. The County may
require the Vendor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a current
A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the
beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least
live (5) years after completion of the contruct of work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made
policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Vendor
must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of Jive (5) years after
completion of contract work.

Page2 of3



DocuSign Envelope lD: A0263A86-D207 -4ACB-834B.A1 D53ABBBADE

Ver ift c at io n of C ov er ag e
Vendor shall furnish the County with original Certificates of Insurance
including all required amendatory endorsements (or conies of the
applicable policy languase effectins coverage required by this clause) and
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy listing
all policy endorsements to County before work begins. However, failure to
obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive
the Vendor's obligation to provide them. The County reserves the right to
require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies,
including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors
Vendor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance
meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Vendor shall ensure that
County is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk,
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Page 3 of3



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Cap Aubrey 
 
SUBJECT:  Award a bid for the purchase of two recycling roll off bins 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board award a bid in the amount of $15,041.54 to McLaughlin Waste Equip, Inc. of Lockeford, CA for 
the purchase of two (2) recycling roll-off bins.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Recycling and Waste Management 2019/2020 fiscal year budget included funding for the 
purchase of two (2) recycling roll-off bins. The roll-off bins will allow Inyo County Recycling and Waste 
Management to increase our capability for glass and plastic recycling in the Inyo County landfills.

Bid results:
McLaughlin Waste Equip Inc     $15,041.54
Waste Equip                              $16,307.38
Stockton Tri Industries               $18,140.00

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose not to award this bid to the low bidder, however this is not recommended due to the 
need for additional recycling roll off bins for the efficiency of the Waste Management Department.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The purchase of the recycling roll-off bins have been budgeted in the fiscal year 2019/2020 Solid Waste budget, 045700, object 
code 5650 (Equipment).
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 8/27/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/28/2019
Teresa Elliott Approved - 9/5/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/5/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/5/2019
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 9/5/2019



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Debbe Ditmar 
 
SUBJECT:  Award contract for Insect and Pest Control Services to Pestmaster, Inc. of Reno, NV for the period of 
October 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Pestmaster Services of Reno, NV for the 
provision of  Insect and Pest Control Services for the period of October 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022 in the 
amount not to exceed $41,330.40, contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On August 7, 2019 bids were received for insect and pest control services to designated County facilities.

Two (2) companies submitted bids:
Owens Valley Pest of Bishop, CA at $22,200.00 per year.
Pestmaster Services Inc. of Reno, NV at $13,776.80 per year.

Pestmaster Services, Inc. came in as the lowest bidder, therefore the Public Works Department recommends 
your Board award the bid for Insect and Pest Control Services to Pestmaster Services, Inc. of Reno, NV.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The alternative to the above recommendation is for your Board to not approve this contract and discontinue 
providing insect and pest control services to our facilities at the lower contracted price. This is not recommended 
as we have several County facilities with kitchens and insect and pest control is a much needed service in the 
area for which we work.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel for the approval of the contract.
Auditor's Office for processing of payments.
Risk Management for insurance requirements.
Public Works Building and Maintenance for accounts payable and contract oversight.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
This will be a budgeted General Fund expenditure through Building and Maintenance budget 011100 object code 
5265 Professional Services, and has been included in the FY 19/20 budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Pestmaster Contract
2. Bid Tabulation
 
APPROVALS:
Debbe Ditmar Created/Initiated - 9/5/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/5/2019
Debbe Ditmar Approved - 9/5/2019
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/6/2019
Michael Errante Approved - 9/6/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/6/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/9/2019
Sue Dishion Approved - 9/11/2019
Michael Errante Final Approval - 9/11/2019



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 1  07/27/2018 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

INTRODUCTION 

WHEREAS,  the  County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  "County")  may  have  the  need  for 
the ___________________________  services  of  _____________________________________________ 
of  ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of 
the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________, 
whose title is: __________________________________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from  to 
unless sooner terminated as provided below. 

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 
Contractor at the County's request.  

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement. 

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,  
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 

Exhibit 1

Pestmaster Services, Inc.
INSECT AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES

INSECT AND PEST CONTROL PESTMASTER SERVICES, INC.

RENO, NEVADA

JUNE 30, 2022OCTOBER 1, 2019

Chris Cash
Deputy Director of Public Works



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 2  07/27/2018 

D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 
_____________________________________________________ Dollars (hereinafter referred to as 
"contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by 
Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 

E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  

F. Federal and State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for 
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California 
State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County 
an  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required. 
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 

$41, 330.40



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 3     07/27/2018 

receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA. 

 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 

 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
  
 Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's 
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or 
operations under this Agreement.  The County of Inyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as 
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.  
 
9. INSURANCE. 

 For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  

10. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 
considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 
joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 

 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 4     07/27/2018 

 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of ev
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
12. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any  
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
13. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

14. CANCELLATION. 

 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 

15. ASSIGNMENT. 

 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 5     07/27/2018 

Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 

16. DEFAULT. 

 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23) below. 

18. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

19. CONFLICTS. 

 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

20.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 6     07/27/2018 

21. SEVERABILITY. 

 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

22. FUNDING LIMITATION. 

 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-three 
(23) (Amendment). 

23. AMENDMENT. 

 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

24. NOTICE. 

 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

   County of Inyo 
                                                                          Department 
                                                                          Street 
                                                                          City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
                                                                          Name 
                                                                          Street 
                                                                          City and State 
 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

  ////       //// 

PUBLIC WORKS
168 N. EDWARDS 

INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526

PESTMASTER SERVICES, INC.

9716 S. VIRGINIA STREET SUITE E
RENO, NEVADA 89511



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 7  07/27/2018 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

IN  WITNESS  THEREOF,  THE  PARTIES  HERETO  HAVE  SET  THEIR  HANDS  AND  SEALS 
THIS  DAY OF                                           ,         . 

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 

By: By: 
Signature  Signature 

_________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Print or Type Name       Print or Type Name  

Dated:  ___________________ Dated: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

County Counsel  

_________________________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 

County Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 

Personnel Services 

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

County Risk Manager 

PESTMASTER SERVICES, INC.

INSECT AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 8  07/27/2018 

ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

 FROM: TO: 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

PESTMASTER SERVICES, INC.

INSECT AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES

OCTOBER 1, 2019 JUNE 30, 2022

COMPANY SHALL PROVIDE PREVENTATIVE INSECT AND COCKROACH TREATMENT, AS DEFINED BELOW, AT 
DESIGNATED COUNTY FACILITIES AS LISTED IN THE SCHEDULE OF FEES.

A. Preventative Insect Treatment: Spraying of insecticide along interior and exterior perimeter for ants, spiders, and other    
insects and pests.
B. Cockroach Treatment: Placement of traps in all bathrooms, behind doors, and stairwells.



County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 9  07/27/2018 

ATTACHMENT B 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM:                             TO:   

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

 

PESTMASTER SERVICES, INC.

INSECT AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES

OCTOBER 1, 2019 JUNE 30, 2022

SELLER SHALL PROVIDE SERVICES AT THE COST AS SHOWN IN THE ATTACHED BID PROPOSAL FORM WITH SERVICES PERFORMED MONTHLY, 
AND QUARTERLY WITH AN ESTIMATED YEARLY TOTAL OF $13,776.80 AND NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $41,330.40 DURING THE TERM OF THE 
CONTRACT OCTOBER 1, 2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2022.









County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116 
(Independent Contractor) 

Page 10  07/27/2018 

ATTACHMENT  C 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

TERM: 

FROM:                              TO: 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

PESTMASTER SERVICES, INC.
INSECT AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES

OCTOBER 1, 2019 JUNE 30, 2022



Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results 
of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 
subcontractors. 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form
CG 00 01 12 07 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products-
completed operations, personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability:  ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1),
or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code
9), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and 

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following 
provisions: 

Additional Insured Status 

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as 
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work 
or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, 
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. 
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the 
Contractor’s insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not 
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 if a later edition is 
used). 

Specifications 1 

Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts 
(Not for Professional Services or Construction Contracts) 



Primary Coverage 

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall 
be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers, 
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance 
and shall not contribute with it. 

Notice of Cancellation 

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except with notice to the Entity. 

Waiver of Subrogation 

Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 

Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such 

insurance.  Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this 

waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has 

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.   

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a 
lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related 
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.   

Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity. 

Verification of Coverage 

Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory 
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage 
required by this clause.  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and 
approved by the Entity before work commences.  However, failure to obtain the 
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them.  The Entity reserves the right to require complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements 
required by these specifications, at any time.  

Special Risks or Circumstances 
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on 
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special 
circumstances. 

 





County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Award construction contract for the Bishop Airport Taxiway Rehabilitation Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) award the contract for the Bishop Airport Taxiway Rehabilitation Project (Project) to Qualcon 
Contractors Inc. of Minden, NV  as the successful bidder; B) approve the construction contract between the 
County of Inyo and  Qualcon Contractors Inc. of Minden, NV in the amount of $4,722,055, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon receipt of the forthcoming FAA grant for the Project and all appropriate 
signatures being obtained; and C) authorize the Public Works Director to execute all other project contract 
documents, including contract change orders, to the extent permitted by Public Contract Code Section 20142 and 
other applicable laws. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the May 14, 2019 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board approved plans and specifications for the 
Project, and authorized the Public Works Director to advertise the Project for bids.  At the same meeting, the 
Board authorized the Public Works Director to sign the forthcoming Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Airport 
Improvement Program (AIP) Grant Agreement for construction of the Project.
 
The scope of work for the Project consists primarily of pavement rehabilitation and new pavement markings of all 
taxiways at the Bishop Airport.

On June 14, 2019 bids were opened for the Project.  Three companies submitted the following bids, representing 
the total price for all bid schedules with all bid additives:
 
Bowman Asphalt Inc., Bakersfield, CA                       $8,291,681.00
Qualcon Contractors Inc., Minden, NV                       $7,403,699.50
Granite Construction Inc., Bakersfield, CA                 $8,928,128.50

All bids were reviewed by the County to determine responsiveness. Qualcon Contractors Inc. was found to be the 
lowest responsible responsive bidder to the Project bid proposal requirements.

After the bid opening the FAA reviewed the bids and determined that they would not fund the widening work on 
Taxiway H or the pavement rehabilitation work on Taxiway F at this time.  Due to this change, the awarded scope 
for Schedule 2 has been modified using unit prices from the bid:

 Taxiway D 'East' will receive pavement recycling with overlay, which was the original scope of Schedule 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

2. Bid unit prices are consistent with Schedule 2.
 Taxiway H and J will receive a crack fill and seal coat treatment, using the bid unit prices for the same 

scope of work on Taxiway A (Schedule 1).  The unit cost for pavement sealing is a negotiated price 
between the bit unit price for the seal coat on Taxiway A and Taxiway E.

The FAA grant for this Project is anticipated to be received on September 19th.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Approval of Plans and Specification, and acceptance of the forthcoming FAA grant - May 14th, 2019
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to award the bid and construction contract for the Project, this is not recommended 
because the FAA grant includes a large amount of discretionary funds which may be lost if the contract is not 
awarded before the end of the federal fiscal year.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
FAA
CDA
 
FINANCING:
The Project will be funded by the FAA’s AIP, which will reimburse the County for ninety percent (90%) of the cost 
of the Project, and by the CDA’s matching grant program, which will reimburse the County for four and one-half 
percent (4.5%) of the cost of the Project. The reimbursable costs will be paid through budget unit 630305 Bishop 
Airport Taxiway Rehab, object code 5700, Construction in Progress in the amount of $4,722,055. The 
County's cost share of this contract will be $259,713 however if State funds are not available, the full match 
amount could be $472,205.50.
In anticipation of this project Public Works budgeted funds for this Project in the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2019/2020.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bishop Taxiway Rehab contract_Qualcon
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 8/1/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/2/2019
Ashley Helms Approved - 9/3/2019
Justine Kokx Approved - 9/4/2019
Michael Errante Approved - 9/4/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/4/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/5/2019
Michael Errante Final Approval - 9/5/2019



TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 

Page C-1 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   
for 

TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT 
AT THE 

BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 

THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and made and 
entered into effective, ___________________, 20_____, by and between the COUNTY OF 
INYO, a political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"), 
and _________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR" for 
the construction or removal of ___________________________ PROJECT (hereinafter referred 
to as "PROJECT"), which parties agree, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, as 
follows: 

I. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED: CONTRACTOR agrees at its own expense to furnish all
labor, materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation,
permits, services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions necessary to COUNTY to
construct the Project in accordance with the terms of the Grant, as detailed in the COUNTY’s
REQUEST FOR BIDS sub nom “CONTRACT DOCUMENTS”, portions of which are attached
hereto as Attachment A and all of which is incorporated herein by this reference, as well as in the
CONTRACTOR’s Response to the Request for Bids, which is attached hereto as Attachment B
and incorporated herein by this reference, and complete all work within the time for completion
set forth in Attachment A.

II. TIME OF COMPLETION: Project work shall begin within _____ calendar days after receipt of
the Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and shall
continue until all requested services are completed.  Said services shall be completed no later than
the Time of Completion as noted in the Project s Special Provisions. Procedures for any extension
of time shall be complied with as noted in the Project s Special Provisions.

III. COMPENSATION / CONSIDERATION: Compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR for
performance of such work shall be in accordance with the schedules for payment set forth in
Attachment “B” to this contract. Any payment by COUNTY shall not be deemed a waiver of
defects, even if such defects were known to the COUNTY at the time of payment.

IV. METHOD OF PAYMENT:  CONTRACTOR shall bill by invoice directed to the Director of
Public Works or designee describing the work, the charge for the work, and date the work was
performed. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY a completed IRS form W-9 before payments
will issue from COUNTY. COUNTY will pay the invoice within 30 days of the receipt following
normal claims handling procedures.

Qualcon Contractors Inc. 

19

Qualcon Contractors Inc
the Bishop Airport Taxiway Rehabilitation

15



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-2 

 

V. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: CONTRACTOR represents that he/she is qualified and 
licensed to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract.  COUNTY relies upon the 
representations of CONTRACTOR regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and 
ability to perform the services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract. Acceptance of 
work by the COUNTY does not operate to release CONTRACTOR from any responsibility to 
perform work to professional and/or trade standards. CONTRACTOR shall provide properly 
skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all services under this Contract.  
CONTRACTOR shall perform all services required by this Contract in a manner and according to 
the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession.  All work products of 
whatsoever nature delivered to the COUNTY shall be prepared in a manner conforming to the 
standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in CONTRACTOR’S profession 
and/or trade. 

VI. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Nothing contained herein or any document executed in 
connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership or joint 
venture relationship between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR nor to allow COUNTY to exercise 
discretion or control over the manner in which CONTRACTOR performs the work or services 
that are the subject matter of this Agreement; provided, however, the work or services to be 
provided by CONTRACTOR shall be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the 
COUNTY’s objectives in entering this Agreement. CONTRACTOR is an independent 
CONTRACTOR, not an employee of COUNTY or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. 
CONTRACTOR will not represent itself to be nor hold itself out as an employee of COUNTY. 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it shall not have the right or entitlement in or to any of the 
pension, retirement or other benefit programs now or hereafter available to COUNTY's 
employees. The consideration set forth in Sections IV and V above shall be the sole consideration 
due CONTRACTOR for the services rendered hereunder. It is understood that COUNTY will not 
withhold any amounts for payment of taxes from CONTRACTOR’s compensation hereunder. 
Any and all sums due under any applicable state, federal or municipal law or union or 
professional and/or trade guild regulations shall be CONTRACTOR’s sole responsibility. 
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold COUNTY harmless from any and all damages, claims 
and expenses arising out of or resulting from any claims asserted by any third party, including but 
not limited to a taxing authority, as a result of or in connection with payments due it from 
CONTRACTOR’s compensation. 

VII. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING.  The parties recognize that a substantial 
inducement to County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation, experience 
and competence of Contractor.  Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or obligations of the 
Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the express consent of the County.  
Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract 
without the written authorization of the County.  If County consents to such subcontract, 
Contractor shall be fully responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor.  
Nothing in this Contract shall create any contractual relationship between County and 
subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the County to pay any monies due 
to any such subcontractor, unless otherwise required by law. 

VIII. CLAIMS RESOLUTION: Pursuant to Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code, any and all 
claims submitted by the CONTRACTOR to COUNTY will follow the provisions as set forth in 
the Project’s County Provisions section. 

IX. INSURANCE INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-3 

 

County and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, 
losses, and expenses, including attorney fees arising out of the performance of the work described 
herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any 
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts 
any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or 
willful misconduct of the County. 

X. POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the meaning of 
the Political Reform Act because Contractor: 

1. Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition 
of information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control 
and direction of the County or of any County official, other than normal Contract 
monitoring; and 

2. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of 
information, advice, recommendation or counsel [FPPC Reg. 18700(a)(2)]. 

XI. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession 
and/or trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and 
regulations that relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.   

1. Safety Training: Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as 
needed to assure work will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a 
language" that is understandable to employees receiving the training.  The 
training shall in all respects be in compliance with CAL OSHA. Contractor 
working with employees shall maintain a written Injury and Illness Prevention 
(IIP) Program, a copy of which must be maintained at each worksite or at a 
central worksite identified for the employees, if the Contractor has non-fixed 
worksites.  Contractor using subcontractors with the approval of the County to 
perform the work which is the subject of this Contract shall require each 
subcontractor working with employees to comply with the requirements of this 
section. 

2. Child, Family and Spousal Support Reporting Obligations: Contractor shall 
comply with the state and federal child, family and spousal support reporting 
requirements and with all lawfully served wage and earnings assignment orders 
or notices of assignment relating to child, family and spousal support obligations. 

3. Nondiscrimination: Contractor shall not discriminate in employment practices 
or in the delivery of services on the basis of membership in a protected class 
which includes any class recognized by law and not limited to race, color, 
religion, sex (gender), sexual orientation, marital status, national origin 
(Including language use restrictions), ancestry, disability (mental and physical, 
including HIV and Aids), medical Conditions (cancer/genetic characteristics), 
age (40 and above) and request for family care leave.  Contractor represents that 
it is in compliance with federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination in 
employment and agrees to stay in compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. sections 12101, et. seq.), Age Discrimination 
in Employment Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title VII (42 U.S.C. 2000, 
et. seq.), the California Fair Employment Housing Act (California Government 
Code sections 12900, et. seq.) and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-4 

 

thereto. 

XII. LICENSES: CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to COUNTY that it has all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required 
of CONTRACTOR to practice its trade and/or profession. CONTRACTOR represents and 
warrants to COUNTY that CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or 
obtain at all times during the term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals 
which are legally required of CONTRACTOR to practice its and/or profession. 

XIII. PREVAILING WAGE:  Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code, CONTRACTOR 
agrees to comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which this Contract 
is subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by the 
Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the 
Department publication entitled "General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the project 
is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the 
State Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in said publication. Such 
rates of wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of 
the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and are available to any interested party upon 
request. CONTRACTOR agrees to submit certified payroll to COUNTY and comply with the 
Department of Industrial Relations regulations in submitting the certified payroll. 

XIV. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE: This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State of 
California.  The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of 
California for the County of Inyo. 

XV. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION: Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 
communication that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 
and either served personally or sent prepaid, first class mail.  Any such notice, demand, et cetera, 
shall be addressed to the other party at the address set forth herein below.  Either party may 
change its address by notifying the other party of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed 
communicated within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this section. 

If to COUNTY:  County of Inyo  
      Public Works Department  

Attn: Ashley Helms  
168 N. Edwards  
PO Drawer Q Independence, CA 93526 

   If to CONTRACTOR: ____________________________ 

      ____________________________ 

      ____________________________ 

      ____________________________ 

XVI. AMENDMENTS.  This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written document 
executed by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by Inyo County Counsel. 

XVII. WAIVER.  No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy hereunder shall 
operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder.  

XVIII. TERMINATION.  This Contract may be terminated for the reasons stated below: 

1. Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities under 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-5 

 

this Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the 
other party or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract.  If 
termination for cause is given by either party to the other and it is later 
determined that the other party was not in default or default was excusable, then 
the notice of termination shall be deemed to have been given without cause 
pursuant to paragraph “b” of this section; or 

2. By either party without cause upon fifteen (15) days' written notice of 
termination.  Upon termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for 
services performed up to the effective date of termination; or 

3. By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding 
ending or being materially decreased during the term of this Contract.  

XIX. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, 
the remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not 
be affected, impaired or invalidated. 

XX. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.  It is understood 
and agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by the Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors upon Notice and Public Hearing.  In the event that the Board of 
Supervisors declines to enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that there is, in 
fact, no binding agreement, either written or oral, between the parties herein. 

XXI. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for every provision in this Agreement. 

XXII. ALL PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN: CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that this 
Contract shall include and consist of: 

1. All provisions set forth expressly herein; 

2. The Bid Proposal Forms, the Faithful Performance Bond, and the Labor and 
Materials Payment Bond, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part of 
this contract by reference; and 

3. All other contract documents, as described in Section 5-1.02, “Contract 
Components”; for the purpose of this Contract, Special Provisions includes: 

a. County Provisions; 
b. General Provisions; 
c. Federal Provisions; 
d. Special Provisions; and 
e. Technical Specifications. 

XXIII. EXECUTION. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall 
constitute one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties.  In approving 
this Contract, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

 
XXIV. REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

 
A. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS: The CONTRACTOR must maintain an acceptable cost 

accounting system. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the Owner, the Federal Aviation 
Administration and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-6 

 

representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the CONTRACTOR which are 
directly pertinent to the specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and 
transcriptions. The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain all books, records and reports required under 
this contract for a period of not less than three years after final payment is made and all pending 
matters are closed. 

 
B. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS 

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the CONTRACTOR or its 
subcontractors may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that 
may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.  

Owner will provide CONTRACTOR written notice that describes the nature of the breach and 
corrective actions the CONTRACTOR must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract.  
Owner reserves the right to withhold payments to CONTRACTOR until such time the 
CONTRACTOR corrects the breach or the Owner elects to terminate the contract. The Owner’s 
notice will identify a specific date by which the CONTRACTOR must correct the breach.  Owner 
may proceed with termination of the contract if the CONTRACTOR fails to correct the breach by the 
deadline indicated in the Owner’s notice. 

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available 
thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies 
otherwise imposed or available by law. 

C. GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS 

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are 
promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, 
age, or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from 
Federal assistance.  

This provision binds the CONTRACTOR and subcontractors from the bid solicitation period through 
the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964. 

D. CIVIL RIGHTS – TITLE VI ASSURANCE 

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements: 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR”), agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The CONTRACTOR (hereinafter includes consultants) will 
comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they 
may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a 
part of this contract. 

2. Nondiscrimination:  The CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during 
the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the 
selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment.  The CONTRACTOR will not participate directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including 
employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in 
Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.  



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-7 

 

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In 
all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the CONTRACTOR 
for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases 
of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the 
CONTRACTOR of the CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this contract and the 
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.   

4. Information and Reports:  The CONTRACTOR will provide all information and reports 
required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit 
access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may 
be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to 
ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions.  
Where any information required of a CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of 
another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the CONTRACTOR will so certify to 
the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what 
efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with the 
non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract 
sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 

a. Withholding payments to the CONTRACTOR under the contract until the 
CONTRACTOR complies; and/or 

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The CONTRACTOR will include the provisions of 
paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and 
leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued 
pursuant thereto.  The CONTRACTOR will take action with respect to any subcontract or 
procurement as the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of 
enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the 
CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or 
supplier because of such direction, the CONTRACTOR may request the sponsor to enter into 
any litigation to protect the interests of the sponsor.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR may 
request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States. 

 
Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and 
successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR”) agrees to comply with the 
following non-discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);  

• 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of 
Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);  



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-8 

 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 USC 
§ 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired 
because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended 
(prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage and 
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs 
or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-
recipients and CONTRACTORs, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or 
not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on 
the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, 
places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 USC §§ 12131 – 12189) as 
implemented by U.S. Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and 
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination 
because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must 
take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 
Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC 1681 et seq). 

E. CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued 
pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 USC § 740-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as 
amended (33 USC § 1251-1387). The CONTRACTOR agrees to report any violation to the Owner 
immediately upon discovery. The Owner assumes responsibility for notifying the Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration.  

CONTRACTOR must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $150,000. 

F. CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS 

1. Overtime Requirements: No CONTRACTOR or subcontractor contracting for any part of the 
contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall 
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-9 

 

workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and 
one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek. 

2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages: In the event of any violation of 
the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, the CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor 
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such CONTRACTOR and 
subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the 
District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.  
Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, 
including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of 
this clause, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or 
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause. 

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages: The Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an 
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any 
moneys payable on account of work performed by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 
any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime CONTRACTOR, or any 
other federally assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 
which is held by the same prime CONTRACTOR, such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such CONTRACTOR or subcontractor for unpaid wages and 
liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this clause. 

4. Subcontractors: The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the 
clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to 
include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set 
forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this clause. 

G. COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT 
CONTRACTOR must comply with the requirements of the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 USC 
874 and 40 USC 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR part 3.  
CONTRACTOR and subcontractors are prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed on the project to give up any part of the compensation to which the employee is entitled.  
The CONTRACTOR and each Subcontractor must submit to the Owner, a weekly statement on the 
wages paid to each employee performing on covered work during the prior week. Owner must report 
any violations of the Act to the Federal Aviation Administration. 

H. DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS 

1. Minimum Wages. 

(i)  All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid 
unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any 
account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland 
Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalent 
thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage 
determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-10 

 

any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the CONTRACTOR and such 
laborers and mechanics.  

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of 
the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or 
mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions 
made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, 
funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or 
incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage 
rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, 
without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing 
work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for 
the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the 
time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any 
additional classification and wage rates conformed under (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon 
poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors at the site 
of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can easily be seen by the workers. 

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, 
which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be 
classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an 
additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria 
have been met: 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the 
wage determination;  

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to 
the wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

(B) If the CONTRACTOR and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if 
known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate 
(including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken 
shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, 
Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210.  The 
Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional 
classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the 
contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. 

(C) In the event the CONTRACTOR, the laborers, or mechanics to be employed in the classification, or 
their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage 
rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), the contracting officer 
shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 
contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized 
representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer 
or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.  

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs 
(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification 
under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification. 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-11 

 

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics 
includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the CONTRACTOR shall either pay 
the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly 
cash equivalent thereof. 

(iv) If the CONTRACTOR does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the 
CONTRACTOR may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program: Provided that the 
Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the CONTRACTOR, that the applicable 
standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the 
CONTRACTOR to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or 
program.  

2. Withholding.  

The Federal Aviation Administration or the sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written request of 
an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the 
CONTRACTOR under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime 
CONTRACTOR, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime CONTRACTOR, so much of the accrued payments or 
advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, 
trainees, and helpers, employed by the CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor the full amount of wages 
required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any 
apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of work, all or part of the wages required 
by the contract, the Federal Aviation Administration may, after written notice to the CONTRACTOR, 
Sponsor, Applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any 
further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. 

3. Payrolls and Basic Records. 

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the CONTRACTOR during the 
course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics 
working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security 
number of each such worker; his or her correct classification; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates 
of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types 
described in 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours worked; deductions 
made; and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) 
that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in 
providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain records that show that the commitment to provide such benefits is 
enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been 
communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and that show the costs anticipated or 
the actual costs incurred in providing such benefits. CONTRACTORs employing apprentices or trainees 
under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs 
and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and 
wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.  

(ii)(A) The CONTRACTOR shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is 
performed a copy of all payrolls to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the 
contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the CONTRACTOR will submit the payrolls to the 
applicant, Sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-12 

 

Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information 
required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home 
addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an 
individually identifying number for each employee (e.g. the last four digits of the employee’s social 
security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. 
Optional Form WH–347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at 
www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime CONTRACTOR is responsible 
for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. CONTRACTORs and subcontractors 
shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker and shall 
provide them upon request to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the 
contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the CONTRACTOR will submit them to the applicant, 
sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration, the 
CONTRACTOR, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 
investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this 
section for a prime CONTRACTOR to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security 
numbers to the prime CONTRACTOR for its own records, without weekly submission to the 
sponsoring government agency (or the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner). 

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the 
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons 
employed under the contract and shall certify the following: 

(1) The payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR § 
5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR § 5.5 (a)(3)(i), and that such 
information is correct and complete; 

(2) Each laborer and mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract 
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or 
indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages 
earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations 29 CFR Part 3;  

(3) Each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or 
cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage 
determination incorporated into the contract. 

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional 
Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required 
by paragraph (3)(ii)(B) of this section. 

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the CONTRACTOR or 
subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 
of the United States Code. 

(iii) The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (3)(i) of this 
section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the sponsor, 
the Federal Aviation Administration, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives 
to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor fails 
to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to 
the CONTRACTOR, Sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the 
suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the 
required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action 
pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-13 

 

4.  Apprentices and Trainees. 

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work 
they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide 
apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency 
recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary 
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in 
the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State 
Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an 
apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification 
shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the CONTRACTOR as to the entire work force under the 
registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or 
otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing 
work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less 
than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a 
CONTRACTOR is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its 
program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly 
rate) specified in the CONTRACTOR’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed. Every 
apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s 
level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable 
wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the 
apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must 
be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable 
apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the 
Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, 
withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the CONTRACTOR will no longer be permitted to 
utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an 
acceptable program is approved. 
(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually 
registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on 
the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training 
Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program 
for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in 
the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the 
provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall 
be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of 
the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the 
corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination that provides for less than full fringe 
benefits for apprentices.  Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and 
participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid 
not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually 
performed.  In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted 
under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-14 

 

determination for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training 
Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the CONTRACTOR will no longer be 
permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until 
an acceptable program is approved. 

(iii)  Equal Employment Opportunity.  The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under 
this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 
11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30. 

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements. 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by 
reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts. 

The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 
Part 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Aviation Administration may by 
appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses 
in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the compliance by 
any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5. 

7.  Contract Termination: Debarment.  

A breach of the contract clauses in paragraph 1 through 10 of this section may be grounds for 
termination of the contract, and for debarment as a CONTRACTOR and a subcontractor as provided in 
29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. 

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 
5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards. 

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general 
disputes clause of this contract.  Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of 
the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this 
clause include disputes between the CONTRACTOR (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting 
agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of Eligibility. 

(i) By entering into this contract, the CONTRACTOR certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any 
person or firm who has an interest in the CONTRACTOR’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be 
awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a 
Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 USC 1001. 

I. TEXTING WHEN DRIVING 
In accordance with Executive Order 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While 
Driving”, (10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10, “Text Messaging While Driving”, (12/30/2009), the 
Federal Aviation Administration encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-15 

 

safety policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging 
while driving when performing work related to a grant or subgrant.  

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the CONTRACTOR to promote policies and 
initiatives for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, 
including policies that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work 
activities associated with the project.  The CONTRACTOR must include the substance of this clause 
in all sub-tier contracts exceeding $3,500 that involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of work 
activities associated with the project. 

J. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS 
CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating 
to energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the 
Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 USC 6201et seq). 
 

K. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE 
During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows: 

(1) The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identify, or national 
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff, or termination; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The 
CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

(3) The CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided 
advising the said labor union or workers’ representatives of the CONTRACTOR’s commitments 
under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees 
and applicants for employment. 

(4) The CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

(5) The CONTRACTOR will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 
of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant 
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and 
the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, 
regulations, and orders. 

(6) In the event of the CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with 
procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-16 

 

may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 
1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

(7) The CONTRACTOR will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph 
(1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless 
exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of 
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor or vendor. The CONTRACTOR will take such action with respect to any subcontract 
or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, 
including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a CONTRACTOR 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of 
such direction by the administering agency the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to 
enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

L. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

The Bidder or Offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or 
her knowledge and belief, that: 
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or 

Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of 
any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.  

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned 
shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in 
accordance with its instructions.  

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to 
file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than $100,000 for each such failure. 

M. PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES 

(a) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any 
segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its 
employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities 
are maintained. The CONTRACTOR agrees that a breach of this clause is a violation of the Equal 
Employment Opportunity clause in this contract.  



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-17 

 

(b) “Segregated facilities,” as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms 
and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage 
or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, 
transportation, and housing facilities provided for employees that are segregated by explicit 
directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin 
because of written or oral policies or employee custom. The term does not include separate or 
single-user rest rooms or necessary dressing or sleeping areas provided to assure privacy between 
the sexes. 

(c) The CONTRACTOR shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is 
subject to the Equal Employment Opportunity clause of this contract. 

N. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970 

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the 
requirements of 29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text.  The 
employer must provide a work environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death 
or serious physical harm to the employee. The employer retains full responsibility to monitor its 
compliance and their subcontractor’s compliance with the applicable requirements of the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR Part 1910).  The employer must address any 
claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement directly with the U.S. Department of Labor 
– Occupational Safety and Health Administration. 

O. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS 

CONTRACTOR and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal 
Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of 
40 CFR Part 247.  In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable, the 
CONTRACTOR and subcontractors are to use products containing the highest percentage of 
recovered materials for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 40 
CFR Part 247 whenever: 

 The contract requires procurement of $10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; 1)
or 

 The CONTRACTOR has procured $10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding 2)
during the previous fiscal year. 

The list of EPA-designated items is available at www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-
guidelines-construction-products. 

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery of EPA-designated products if 
the CONTRACTOR can demonstrate the item is: 

a)  Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract 
performance schedule;  
b) Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or  
c)  Is only available at an unreasonable price.  

 

P. CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQUENCY AND 
FELONY CONVICTIONS 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-18 

 

The applicant must complete the following two certification statements. The applicant must indicate its 
current status as it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting a checkmark () in the 
space following the applicable response. The applicant agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from 
this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification in all lower tier subcontracts. 

Certifications 

 The applicant represents that it is (  ) is not (  ) a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax 1)
liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been 
exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement 
with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 

 The applicant represents that it is (  ) is not (  ) a corporation that was convicted of a criminal 2)
violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months. 

Note 

If an applicant responds in the affirmative to either of the above representations, the applicant is 
ineligible to receive an award unless the sponsor has received notification from the agency suspension 
and debarment official (SDO) that the SDO has considered suspension or debarment and determined 
that further action is not required to protect the Government’s interests.  The applicant therefore must 
provide information to the owner about its tax liability or conviction to the Owner, who will then notify 
the FAA Airports District Office, which will then notify the agency’s SDO to facilitate completion of 
the required considerations before award decisions are made. 

Term Definitions 

Felony conviction: Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twenty 
four (24) months of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law and includes 
conviction of an offense defined in a section of the U.S. code that specifically classifies 
the offense as a felony and conviction of an offense that is classified as a felony under 18 
U.S.C. § 3559. 
Tax Delinquency: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been 
assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have 
lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the 
authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 
 

Q. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE (CONSTRUCTION & EQUIPMENT 
CONTRACTS) 

The Owner may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR.  Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy 
of Owner. Upon receipt of a written notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the Owner, 
the CONTRACTOR shall immediately proceed with the following obligations regardless of any delay 
in determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:  

1. CONTRACTOR must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice. 
2. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated under the notice. 
3. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice. 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-19 

 

4. Deliver to the Owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially 
completed work, supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the work, 
and as directed in the written notice. 

5. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice. 
6. Take action as directed by the Owner to protect and preserve property and work related to this 

contract that Owner will take possession. 
Owner agrees to pay CONTRACTOR for:  

 completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the 3)
effective date of termination; 

 documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing work and 4)
furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents in connection 
with uncompleted work; 

 reasonable and substantiated claims, costs, and damages incurred in settlement of terminated 5)
contracts with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and 

 reasonable and substantiated expenses to the CONTRACTOR directly attributable to Owner’s 6)
termination action. 

Owner will not pay CONTRACTOR for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss 
arising out of or resulting from the Owner’s termination action. 

The rights and remedies this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided 
by law or under this contract. 

R. VETERAN’S PREFERENCE 

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the 
CONTRACTOR and all sub-tier CONTRACTORs must give preference to covered veterans as 
defined within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112.  Covered veterans include Vietnam-era 
veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small 
business concerns (as defined by 15 USC 632) owned and controlled by disabled veterans.  This 
preference only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform 
the work to which the employment relates. 

XXV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Contract, including the Contract Documents and all other 
documents which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and exclusive 
agreement between the County and Contractor.  All prior written and oral communications, 
including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this 
Contract.  If any provision of this agreement is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, 
the remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect and 
shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated. 

XXVI. ATTACHMENTS: All attachments referred to are incorporated and made a part of this 
agreement. Attachments include: 

 
Attachment “A:” COUNTY OF INYO RELVANT PORTIONS OF REQUEST 

FOR BIDS 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-20 

 

 
Attachment “B:” RESPONSE TO COUNTY OF INYO REQUEST FOR BIDS  
 
Attachment “C:” INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 

---o0o--- 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 
date first written above. 

 
COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 
 

_________________________ ______________________________  
Rick Pucci, Board Chair  [                                              ], Title   
 
  

APPROVED AS TO FORM   ATTEST: CLINT QUILTER 
AND LEGALITY County Clerk 

  Board of Supervisors 
 

By                                                     By: _________________________________ 
Inyo County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVEE AS TO INSURANCE  
REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
By _______________________ 
Inyo County Risk Manager 

  



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-21 

 

Attachment “A” 
 

RELEVANT PORTIONS OF REQUEST FOR BID 
  



 AIP Project No.: 3-06-0024-020-2018 
County Project No.: TR19-001 

 
 

BISHOP AIRPORT TAXIWAYS REHABILITATION     SP-1 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION 

BISHOP AIRPORT 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-020-2018 

COUNTY PROJECT NO. TR-19-001 
 
1. LOCATION AND GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE WORK.  The work to be done under this 

contract is located at the Bishop Airport, Bishop, California. The overall objective of the work is 
rehabilitation of the airport taxiways.  

 
More specifically, the project consists of planing, paint removal, asphalt pavement removal, 
subgrade preparation and compaction, full depth reclamation (FDR) of the existing asphalt 
pavements and base, asphalt surface course and paint marking. Additive work items include 
additional pavement rehabilitation and micromilling and sealing of pavements with markings.  
 
The scope of the work is shown on the “Construction Layout Plan”.  
 
All runways and adjacent aircraft parking aprons must remain in service during construction, 
except during brief periods, if approved by the Engineer. 
 

2. TIME OF COMPLETION, SEQUENCE OF WORK SCHEDULES & MEETINGS.  The Contractor 
shall complete all the work under the base bid within 135 calendar days from the date of notice to 
proceed. An additional 15 calendar days will be allowed for any and all bid additive work, if 
awarded, resulting in a total allowance of 150 calendar days. The Engineer may extend the 
duration for pavement curing time prior to paint markings and for materials delivery due to 
weather or manufacturer delays beyond the Contractor control, if deemed necessary in the sole 
judgment of the Engineer.  
 
The airfield will remain open during construction, in accordance with the Construction Closure & 
Safety Plan. All work shall be performed in daylight unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. 
The Contractor may make submittals at any time after notification of award to expedite his 
ordering materials and commencing the work in an efficient manner. The Contractor’s schedule 
submittals shall strive to consolidate work efforts and multi-task work items to the extent possible 
in order to expedite completion of the project and avoid the necessity of acceptance testing and 
inspection during periods of relatively minor activity. The contract time allows for procurement, 
delivery, and installation of all systems.  

 
Within 10 days of the Notice to Proceed and every two weeks thereafter, the Contractor shall 
submit to the Engineer (in Microsoft Project format) baseline, monthly updated, and final updated 
schedules, each consistent in all respects with the time and order of work requirements of the 
contract. Work must be executed in the sequence indicated on the current accepted schedule. 

 
Schedules must show the order in which the Contractor proposes to prosecute the work with 
logical links between time-scaled work activities and calculations made using the critical path 
method to determine the controlling activities. The Contractor is responsible for assuring that all 
activity sequences are logical and that each schedule shows a coordinated plan for complete 
performance of the work. 
 

 
The Engineer will schedule the preconstruction meeting prior to issuing the Notice to Proceed to 
the Contractor. The Engineer will prepare an agenda for the preconstruction meeting and take 
minutes. 

 
The Contractor shall be available to attend weekly progress meetings, if scheduled and 
determined by the Engineer to be necessary. The meeting shall be attended by the Contractor's 



 AIP Project No.: 3-06-0024-020-2018 
County Project No.: TR19-001 

 
 

BISHOP AIRPORT TAXIWAYS REHABILITATION     SP-2 
 

job foreman, safety officer, and representative of the subcontractors actively working or beginning 
to work at the time of the meeting. 
 
The preparation of schedules and attendance at meetings shall be considered as included in 
Mobilization and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 

 
3. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  Liquidated damages, for failure to complete the work within the time 

for completion specified for any or all construction phases shall be three thousand dollars 
($3,000.00) per calendar day. 
 

4. ASSIGNMENT.  In entering this contract or a subcontract to this contract, the Contractor or 
subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and interest in and 
to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C.A. Sec. 15) or 
under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of 
the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 
pursuant to this works contract or a subcontract.  This assignment shall be made and become 
effective at the time the Owner tenders final payment to the Contractor without further 
acknowledgment by the parties. 

 
5. PREVAILING WAGES AND TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE PAYMENTS.  A copy of the 

determination of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages and general prevailing wages for 
holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed is on file at the 
Owner's offices.  Contractor and any subcontractors will not pay less than the specified prevailing 
rates of wages to all workers employed in the execution of the contract.  The Contractor will pay 
at least the minimum of state or federal wages, whichever is the greater.  
 
Contractor will post one copy of the prevailing rates of wages at the job site.  For each calendar 
day or portion thereof, and for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such 
work or craft in which the workman is employed or any public work done under the contract by 
him, or any subcontractor under him, Contractor shall forfeit the sum of $50.00 as penalty to the 
Owner. 
 
Travel and subsistence payments shall be paid to each worker needed to execute the work and 
such payments are defined in the applicable collective bargaining agreements filed with the 
Department of Industrial Relations for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved. 

 
6. HOURS OF WORK.  Eight hours labor constitutes a legal day's work pursuant to this contract.  

The time of service of any worker employed upon the project is limited and restricted to eight 
hours during any one calendar day and forty hours during any one calendar week unless said 
employee is compensated at a rate of one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all times in 
excess of the foregoing hours. The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall not work more than 8 
hours per day unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. If the Contractor schedule requires 
overtime observation or acceptance testing by the Engineer or Owner staff, the cost for additional 
payment to the Engineer and Owner for the Engineer’s and Owner’s overtime shall be deducted 
from payments to the Contractor. The Engineer shall be the sole judge of these hours and costs. 

 
Contractor shall keep and make available and accurate record showing the name of and actual 
hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by each worker employed by the 
Contractor or any subcontractor in connection with the project. 
 
Contractor shall, as a penalty, forfeit $25.00 for each worker employed in execution of the 
contract by Contractor or by any subcontractor for each calendar day during that such worker is 
required or permitted to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day or forty hours in any 
one calendar week in violation of this section. 

 



 AIP Project No.: 3-06-0024-020-2018 
County Project No.: TR19-001 

 
 

BISHOP AIRPORT TAXIWAYS REHABILITATION     SP-3 
 

7. ACTS OF GOD.  Contractor shall not be responsible for the cost of repairing or restoring 
damages to the work which exceeds 5% of the contract price and which damage is determined to 
have been proximately caused by an act of God, provided that the work damaged is built in 
accordance with accepted and applicable building standards and the plans and specifications of 
the Owner.  As used herein, the term "acts of God" includes only earthquakes in excess of the 
magnitude of 3.5 on the Richter Scale and tidal waves. 

 
8. CERTAIN CLAIMS.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any demand of $375,000, or less, by the 

Contractor for a time extension; payment of money or damages arising from the work done by or 
on behalf of the Contractor pursuant to this contract; or payment of an amount which is disputed 
by the Owner shall be processed in by informal conferences, non-binding judicially supervised 
mediation and judicial arbitration. 

 
A single written claim shall be filed under this section prior to the date of final payment for all 
demands arising out of the contract. 
 
Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the claim, the Owner may request additional 
documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses or claims the Owner may have 
against the Contractor.  If the amount of the claim is less than $50,000, the Contractor shall 
respond to the request for additional information within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the 
request.  The Contractor shall respond to the request within thirty (30) days of receipt if the 
amount of the claim exceeds $50,000 but is less than $375,000. 
 
Unless further documentation is requested, the Owner shall respond to the claim within forty-five 
(45) days if the amount of the claim is less than $50,000 or within sixty (60) days if the amount of 
the claim is more than $50,000, but less than $375,000.  If further documentation is requested, 
the Owner shall respond within the same amount of time taken by the Contractor to respond or 
fifteen (15) days, whichever is greater, after receipt of further information if the claim is less than 
$50,000.  If the claim is more than $50,000 but less than $375,000 and further documentation is 
requested by the Owner, the Owner shall respond within the same amount of time taken by the 
Contractor to respond or thirty (30) days, whichever is greater. 
 
If the Contractor disputes the Owner's response, or the Owner fails to respond, the Contractor 
may demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute.  
The demand shall be served on the Owner within fifteen (15) days after the deadline of the Owner 
to respond or within fifteen (15) days of the Owner's response, whichever occurs first.  The 
Owner shall schedule the meet and confer conference within thirty (30) days of the request. 
 
If the meet and confer conference does not produce a satisfactory request, the Contractor may 
pursue remedies authorized by law. 

 
9. CONSTRUCTION MEANS AND SAFETY.  Wadell Engineering Corporation, its subconsultants, 

and the Owner are not responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
and safety at the site. These items are the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor 
shall comply with applicable portions of the attached FAA Advisory Circular 150/5370-2G, 
“Operational Safety on Airports During Construction”. 

 
10. PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE.  The Contractor shall use every reasonable precaution 

to safeguard persons and property including the general public. It shall be the sole responsibility 
of the Contractor to place and maintain airport furnished water filled barricades with lights, and to 
furnish and maintain any other barriers, temporary construction fences, lights, and danger signals 
as are necessary to protect persons and property near the work site.  All barricades and 
obstructions shall be protected at night by lights, which shall be suitably distributed and kept 
illuminated from sunset to sunrise.  Lights shall be of a type acceptable to the Engineer with 360-
degree visibility.   



 AIP Project No.: 3-06-0024-020-2018 
County Project No.: TR19-001 

 
 

BISHOP AIRPORT TAXIWAYS REHABILITATION     SP-4 
 

 
In the event of interruption to domestic water, sewer, storm drain, or to other utility services as a 
result of accidental breakage, or as a result of being exposed or unsupported, the Contractor 
shall promptly notify the proper authority.  The Contractor shall cooperate with said authority in 
restoration of service as promptly as possible and bear all costs of repair.  In no case shall 
interruption of any water or utility service be allowed to exist outside working hours unless prior 
approval is received. 
 
Neither the owner nor its officers or agents or Wadell Engineering Corporation shall be 
responsible to the Contractor for damages as a result of the location of the underground utilities 
being other than that shown on the plans or for the existence of underground utilities not shown 
on the plans. The Contractor shall seek and mark utilities within the work area prior to excavation 
or opening ground surfaces. The Contractor shall retain, utilize and compensate a private USA 
company for utility marking prior to any digging. 

 
11. FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION.  The Contractor shall perform all work in a fire-safe 

manner.  He shall supply and maintain on the site adequate fire-fighting equipment capable of 
extinguishing incipient fires.  The Contractor shall comply with applicable local and state fire 
prevention regulations. 

 
12. PROTECTION OF UTILITIES, CABLES, NAVAIDS, AND WEATHER BUREAU FACILITIES.  The 

Contractor is hereby informed that there are public utility, airport private utility, FAA and weather 
bureau facilities on the airport. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to find and protect such 
facilities. The Contractor shall conduct private USA utility searches within work areas, in particular 
the terminal area and near FAA facilities to prevent damage to systems. The cost is considered 
included in the cost of all subgrade preparation and underground work, and is not subject to 
separate payment. 

 
13. CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES. The Contractor shall furnish all stakes for the layout 

and construction of the work.  The Contractor shall satisfy himself as to the accuracy of all 
measurements before constructing any permanent structure. No staking will be provided by the 
Engineer. The Contractor’s layout for paint markings shall be done at the direction of an on-site 
California licensed professional land surveyor. 

 
No separate measurement and payment will be made for establishing and maintaining 
construction layout stakes required under this Contract.  The cost for this construction layout 
staking shall be considered to be included in the various contract prices for which construction 
layout staking is required. 

 
14. TEMPORARY ELECTRIC POWER. The Contractor shall make his own arrangements for electric 

power for use during construction. The Contractor shall compensate the Owner at Owner 
determined rates for any use of Owner power. 

 
15. SANITARY FACILITIES.  The Contractor shall provide and maintain sanitary facilities for his 

employees and his subcontractor's employees that will comply with the regulations of the local 
and state departments of health and as directed by the Engineer. 
 

16. WATER & WATERING. The Contractor shall furnish and apply water required in the   compaction 
of embankments, subgrades, subbases, base courses, dust control, and for other purposes in 
accordance with the requirements of these specifications or as directed by the Engineer.  Water, 
when required, shall be applied at the locations, in the amounts, and during the hours as directed 
by the Engineer.  The Contractor shall make all arrangements and shall bear all expenses for 
furnishing of water supply including adequate equipment of ample capacity to ensure uniform 
application of water in the amounts directed by the Engineer. 

 



 AIP Project No.: 3-06-0024-020-2018 
County Project No.: TR19-001 

 
 

BISHOP AIRPORT TAXIWAYS REHABILITATION     SP-5 
 

The performance of this item, including provision of all water, shall be considered incidental to the 
other contract items and, therefore, no direct payment for water shall be made. 
 

17. HAUL ROUTES, ROUTE MAINTENANCE, AND DUST CONTROL.  Construction equipment 
shall follow the routes if shown on the plans unless the Engineer approves other routes.   
 
The Contractor shall perform all necessary maintenance of routes during construction and shall 
perform all work as necessary to restore the routes used by his equipment to their original 
condition at the conclusion of construction. Damage to existing paved and unpaved areas shall 
be repaired promptly and to the sole satisfaction of the Engineer. Pavement damage repairs shall 
include milling, compaction and repaving as directed by the Engineer. The Contractor is hereby 
notified that heavy truck usage of the airport pavements and roads likely will  result in the 
requirement for repairs. Such repairs shall be at no cost to the Owner. 
 
Dust control methods and means shall be designed and implemented by the Contractor to assure 
that dust from the project and support areas shall not spread to adjacent on airport tenants and 
parking areas or to off-airport properties. The economic value of damage to aircraft and aircraft 
maintenance facilities and activities can occur even by light dusting, which may result in claims 
and civil litigation.  Haul routes shall be sprinkled with water as necessary to prevent dust 
diffusion during the course of the work.   
 
All maintenance and restoration work shall be completed to the Engineer's satisfaction before 
final payment is awarded.   
  

18. WORK IN AIR OPERATIONS AREAS.  Employee vehicle parking is confined to the Contractor's 
area shown on the plans. This project requires work in and adjacent to aircraft operations areas. 
When the Contractor enters air operations areas the following apply: 

 
The Contractor shall provide a knowledgeable flag person with aviation radio to prevent vehicle 
incursions and access to operations areas including crossings of runways and taxiways. 
 
FAA-approved orange and white checkered flags shall be provided by the Contractor on all 
vehicles. No vehicles are allowed within 25 feet of a parked aircraft or within 40 feet of a moving 
aircraft. 

 
Workmen on foot shall remain at least 150 feet back from the edge of an operational runway, 
unless cleared through a radio operator who then maintains a watch over the operation.  
Workmen on or within 50 feet of an active runway or taxiway shall wear orange safety vests at all 
times. 
 
In the event of an emergency, men and equipment shall be moved immediately at the direction of 
the Engineer. 
 
Normally, work will not be permitted in the air operations area between the hours 2000 to 0600.  If 
an emergency situation requires work during these hours, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer 
as far in advance as possible and obtain clearance from him before proceeding to work. During 
night operations, each vehicle shall be equipped with an omni-directional amber flashing light 
mounted on the roof of the cab. Headlights, taillights and flashers shall be used for all activities 
during these hours. 

 
19. HAZARD LIGHTING OF CONSTRUCTION AREAS.  In the area of construction as shown on the 

plans and in accordance with the construction schedule, the Contractor shall outline access 
routes to the construction area and the construction area itself by the use of suitable lighted 
barricades.   

 



 AIP Project No.: 3-06-0024-020-2018 
County Project No.: TR19-001 

 
 

BISHOP AIRPORT TAXIWAYS REHABILITATION     SP-6 
 

Construction equipment that extends 15 feet or more above ground level shall be cleared through 
the Engineer and shall be lighted at night in an approved manner and/or lowered to height of 
adjacent structural surroundings at the discretion of the Engineer. 

 
20. CLEANUP DURING THE WORK.  The Contractor shall at all times during the work keep the 

premises clean and orderly.  He shall promptly remove all waste materials and rubbish.  All 
directions from the Engineer and other authorized public officials having jurisdiction over health 
and safety shall be obeyed. 

 
Whenever the Contractor is hauling material or debris on or across roadways, auto parking, 
aircraft aprons, taxiways, or runways, he shall take all necessary precautions to prevent any 
spillage or dropping of material or debris from his haul vehicles.  If and when such spills occur, 
the Contractor shall be especially diligent in promptly cleaning them up.  It is emphasized that 
even the smallest spills of rock or debris may be hazardous to automobiles and aircraft until 
cleaned up. 
 

21. SITE RESTORATION AND CLEANUP.  Upon completion of the project, all areas used by the 
Contractor in connection with the work shall be properly cleared of all temporary structures, 
rubbish, and waste materials and the areas shall be properly graded to drain and blend in with the 
abutting property.  Any waste area obtained by the Contractor for deposit of waste materials shall 
be finished to properly drain and blend with the surrounding terrain. 

 
22. CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE AND COOPERATION. The Owner relies on prompt and 

efficient execution of the project and closeout of the contract. Contractor non-responsiveness or 
mismanagement that results in delay to the Engineer adversely impacts the Owner’s ability to 
perform compliance inspections, complete the project accounting and finish the project. The 
Contractor will be deemed non-responsive or un-cooperative in the event the Contractor does not 
furnish (1) daily receipts for delivered materials (where applicable such as aggregate base and 
asphaltic concrete), (2) prompt progress and final payment requests, (3) prompt Contractor test 
results for quality control, (4) complete and accurate “as-built” markup drawings for the completed 
work.  

 
The Engineer shall not allow payment for materials delivered without an applicable load receipt 
submitted to the Engineer on the day of delivery. The Contractor shall have 14 calendar days 
from completion of the final punch list work to submit “as-built” markups and the final payment 
request. 
 
Delays to the Engineer due to the Engineer’s determination of non-responsiveness by the 
Contractor shall be back charged against monies due the Contractor at the rate of $2,000 per 
engineer day. Such charges are in addition to liquidated damages. 
 

END OF SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-22 

 

Attachment “B” 
 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR BID 
  



 AWARD 
ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT OF  UNIT  ITEM 

NO. QUANTI
TY

MEASUR
E

 PRICE  TOTAL 

SCHEDULE ONE
TAXIWAY "A", "A1", "A2" & "A3"

1 Mobilization (M-105) (5% Max of This Schedule) 1 LS  $       32,000.00  $        32,000.00 
2 Contractor Quality Control Program (C-100) for All Schedules 1 LS  $     210,000.00  $      210,000.00 
3 Crack Repairs - Small - Detail A1 - Not Mapped (P-101) 1 LS  $       60,000.00  $        60,000.00 
4 Crack Repairs - Medium - Detail A2 (P-101) 2,690 LF  $              24.00  $        64,560.00 
5 Crack Repairs - Large - Detail A3 (P-101) 1,031 LF  $              28.00  $        28,868.00 
6 Hot Mix Asphalt for Detail A2 and Detail A3 Crack Repairs (P-101) 150 TON  $            275.00  $        41,250.00 
7 Paint Removal (P-101) 22,132 SF  $                2.25  $        49,797.00 
8 Pavement Sealing (P-626) 49,750 SY  $                3.00  $      149,250.00 
9 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 9,431 SF  $                1.50  $        14,146.50 
10 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 11,816 SF  $                1.00  $        11,816.00 
11 Surface Painted Holding Position Signs With Beads (P-620) 18 EA  $            900.00  $        16,200.00 

TOTAL TAXIWAY "A", "A1", "A2" & "A3"  $      677,887.50 

TAXIWAY "F" - REMOVED FROM PROJECT

TOTAL SCHEDULE ONE  $      677,887.50 

SCHEDULE TWO - SCOPE MODIFIED, SEE BELOW
TAXIWAY "H", "J" & "D EAST"  $     - 
TOTAL SCHEDULE TWO  $     - 

SCHEDULE THREE
TAXIWAY "B"

1 Mobilization (M-105) (5% Max of This Schedule) 1 LS  $       45,000.00  $        45,000.00 
2 Unclassified Excavation - Fillet (TW 'B' & 'C') 8"± Deep 100%, Haul To Disposal & 

Compact 95% (P-152)
105 CY  $              75.00  $          7,875.00 

3 FDR Existing Pavement and New Fillet (P-207) 11,100 SY  $              11.00  $      122,100.00 
4 5% Cement for FDR Processing (P-207) 250 TON  $            200.00  $        50,000.00 
5 Milling Existing Pavement East End (P‐101) 4"± 4,200 SY  $                5.00  $        21,000.00 
6 0.33' Plant Mix Bituminous Pavement (P-401) 3,600 TON  $            178.00  $      640,800.00 
7 Shoulder Grading Pavement Edge To Lights with Native Material 95% (P-152) 5,000 SY  $                7.00  $        35,000.00 

8 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 1,300 SF  $                1.50  $          1,950.00 
9 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 2,600 SF  $                1.00  $          2,600.00 

TOTAL TAXIWAY "B"  $      926,325.00 

TAXIWAY  "C SOUTH"
1 Mobilization (M-105) (5% Max of This Schedule) 1 LS  $       14,000.00  $        14,000.00 
2 FDR Existing Pavement (P-207) 2,990 SY  $              18.00  $        53,820.00 
3 5% Cement for FDR Processing (P-207) 70 TON  $            200.00  $        14,000.00 
4 0.33' Plant Mix Bituminous Pavement (P-401) 800 TON  $            190.00  $      152,000.00 
5 Shoulder Grading Pavement Edge To Lights with Native Material 95% (P-152) 1,150 SY  $              10.00  $        11,500.00 

6 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 591 SF  $                1.50  $             886.50 
7 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 662 SF  $                1.00  $             662.00 
8 Surface Painted Holding Position Signs With Beads (P-620) 2 EA  $            900.00  $          1,800.00 
9 Remove Taxiway Light Fixture (L-861T(L)) (L-125) And Furnish Blank Lid 5 EA  $            230.00  $          1,150.00 
10 Remove Taxiway Light,  Dispose Can & Concrete (L-861T(L)) (L-125) 6 EA  $         1,000.00  $          6,000.00 
11 New Can With Reused Taxiway Fixture (L-861T(L)) (L-125) 7 EA  $         2,500.00  $        17,500.00 
12 Remove & Relocate Sign (L-858) (L-125) 1 EA  $         8,000.00  $          8,000.00 
13 2" Dia. Duct (L-110) - Flowable Backfill With Counterpoise (P-153) 463 LF  $              40.00  $        18,520.00 
14 Taxiway  AWG 8, 5KV Single Conductor (L-108) 504 LF  $                5.00  $          2,520.00 

TOTAL TAXIWAY "C SOUTH"  $      302,358.50 

TAXIWAY "G"
1 Mobilization (M-105) (5% Max of This Schedule) 1 LS  $       14,000.00  $        14,000.00 
2 FDR Existing Pavement (P-207) 4,355 SY  $              15.00  $        65,325.00 
3 5% Cement for FDR Processing (P-207) 100 TON  $            200.00  $        20,000.00 

QUALCON



 AWARD 
ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT OF  UNIT  ITEM 

NO. QUANTI
TY

MEASUR
E

 PRICE  TOTAL 

QUALCON

4 0.33' Plant Mix Bituminous Pavement (P-401) 350 TON  $            250.00  $        87,500.00 
5 Pavement Sealing Taxiway G (P-626) 16,130 SY  $                5.00  $        80,650.00 
6 Shoulder Grading 10' Wide with Native Material 95% (P-152) 1,350 SY  $              10.00  $        13,500.00 
7 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 100 SF  $                1.50  $             150.00 
8 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 200 SF  $                1.00  $             200.00 

TOTAL TAXIWAY "G"  $      281,325.00 

TOTAL SCHEDULE THREE  $  1,510,008.50 

TOTAL  ALL SCHEDULES ONE, TWO AND THREE  $  2,187,896.00 

ADDITIVE ONE: TAXIWAY "C NORTH"
1 Mobilization (M-105) (5% Max of This Schedule) 1 LS  $       38,000.00  $        38,000.00 
2 Contractor Quality Control Program (C-100) for Additive One 1 LS  $       35,000.00  $        35,000.00 
2 FDR Existing Pavement (P-207) 11,000 SY  $              10.00  $      110,000.00 
3 5% Cement for FDR Processing (P-207) 250 TON  $            200.00  $        50,000.00 
4 0.33' Plant Mix Bituminous Pavement (P-401) 2,800 TON  $            178.00  $      498,400.00 
5 Shoulder Grading Pavement Edge To Reflectors with Native Material 95% (P-152) 4,310 SY  $                8.00  $        34,480.00 
6 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 591 SF  $                1.50  $             886.50 
7 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 662 SF  $                1.00  $             662.00 
8 Surface Painted Holding Position Signs With Beads (P-620) 2 EA  $            900.00  $          1,800.00 

TOTAL ADDITIVE ONE: TAXIWAY "C NORTH"  $      769,228.50 

ADDITIVE TWO: TAXIWAY "D"
1 Mobilization (M-105) (5% Max of This Schedule) 1 LS  $       50,000.00  $        50,000.00 
2 Contractor Quality Control Program (C-100) for Additive Two 1 LS  $       40,000.00  $        40,000.00 
3 Unclassified Excavation - Fillets 8"± Deep 100%, Haul To Disposal & Compact 95% (P-

152)
85 CY  $              90.00  $          7,650.00 

4 FDR Existing Pavement and New Fillet (P-207) 15,625 SY  $              10.00  $      156,250.00 
5 5% Cement for FDR Processing (P-207) 350 TON  $            200.00  $        70,000.00 
6 0.33' Plant Mix Bituminous Pavement (P-401) 3,525 TON  $            178.00  $      627,450.00 
7 Shoulder Grading Pavement Edge To Reflectors with Native Material 95% (P-152) 6,015 SY  $                8.00  $        48,120.00 

8 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 1,785 SF  $                1.50  $          2,677.50 
9 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 2,451 SF  $                1.00  $          2,451.00 
10 Surface Painted Holding Position Signs With Beads (P-620) 4 EA  $            900.00  $          3,600.00 
11 Remove Taxiway Light Fixture (L-861T(L)) (L-125) And Furnish Blank Lid 2 EA  $            230.00  $             460.00 
12 Remove Taxiway Light,  Dispose Can & Concrete (L-861T(L)) (L-125) 4 EA  $         1,000.00  $          4,000.00 
13 New Can With Reused Taxiway Fixture (L-861T(L)) (L-125) 5 EA  $         2,500.00  $        12,500.00 
14 2" Dia. Duct (L-110) - Flowable Backfill With Counterpoise (P-153) 415 LF  $              40.00  $        16,600.00 
15 Taxiway  AWG 8, 5KV Single Conductor (L-108) 588 LF  $                5.00  $          2,940.00 

TOTAL ADDITIVE TWO: TAXIWAY "D"  $  1,044,698.50 

ADDITIVE THREE: TAXIWAY "E"
1 Mobilization (M-105) (5% Max of This Schedule) 1 LS  $         8,000.00  $          8,000.00 
2 Micro-mill Taxiway E (P-101) 16,135 SY  $                2.00  $        32,270.00 
3 Pavement Sealing Taxiway E (P-626) 16,135 SY  $                5.00  $        80,675.00 
4 Shoulder Grading Pavement Edge To Reflectors with Native Material 95% (P-152) 6,350 SY  $                5.00  $        31,750.00 

4 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 2,286 SF  $                1.50  $          3,429.00 
5 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 3,446 SF  $                1.00  $          3,446.00 
6 Surface Painted Holding Position Signs With Beads (P-620) 4 EA  $            900.00  $          3,600.00 

TOTAL ADDITIVE THREE: TAXIWAY "E"  $      163,170.00 

TOTAL  ALL ADDITIVES ONE, TWO AND THREE  $  1,977,097.00 

TOTAL  ALL SCHEDULES AND ALL ADDITIVES  $  4,164,993.00 

SCHEDULE 2 SCOPE CHANGE - USING BID UNIT PRICES
TAXIWAY "D EAST"



 AWARD 
ITEM ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT OF  UNIT  ITEM 

NO. QUANTI
TY

MEASUR
E

 PRICE  TOTAL 

QUALCON

1 Mobilzation 1 LS  $       19,643.70  $        19,643.70 
2 FDR Existing Pavement (P-207) 3,523 SY  $              10.00  $        35,230.00 
3 5% Cement for FDR Processing (P-207) 40 TON  $            200.00  $          8,000.00 
4 0.33' Plant Mix Bituminous Pavement (P-401) 793 TON  $            178.00  $      141,154.00 
5 Shoulder Grading Pavement Edge To Reflectors with Native Material 95% (P-152) 1,060 SY  $                7.00  $          7,420.00 

6 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 1,120 SF  $                1.50  $          1,680.00 
7 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 1,153 SF  $                1.00  $          1,153.00 
8 Surface Painted Holding Position Signs With Beads (P-620) 2 EA  $            900.00  $          1,800.00 

TOTAL TAXIWAY "D EAST"  $      216,080.70 

TAXIWAY "H"& "J"
1 Mobilization 1 LS  $       30,998.30  $        30,998.30 
2 Crack Repairs - Small - Detail A1 - Not Mapped (P-101) 1 LS  $       30,000.00  $        30,000.00 

3 Crack Repairs - Medium - Detail A2 (P-101) 1,645 LF  $              24.00  $        39,480.00 
4 Crack Repairs - Large - Detail A3 (P-101) 3,751 LF  $              28.00  $      105,028.00 
5 Hot Mix Asphalt for Detail A2 and Detail A3 Crack Repairs (P-101) 92 TON  $            275.00  $        25,300.00 
6 Pavement Sealing (P-626) 21,750 SY  $                4.35  $        94,612.50 
7 Airfield Yellow Pavement Marking With Beads (P-620) 3,933 SF  $                1.50  $          5,899.50 
8 Airfield Black Pavement Marking With No Beads (P-620) 6,063 SF  $                1.00  $          6,063.00 
9 Surface Painted Holding Position Signs With Beads (P-620) 4 EA  $            900.00  $          3,600.00 

TOTAL TAXIWAY "H" & "J"  $      340,981.30 

TOTAL CONTRACT  $  4,722,055.00 



 
TAXIWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE BISHOP AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0024-021-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-001 
Page C-23 

 

Attachment “C” 
 

INSURANCE PROVISIONS 
 

 



SECTION 1.  INSURANCE, DEFENSE, AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

Bidders' attention is directed to the insurance requirements indicated below.  It is highly 
recommended that bidders confer with their respective insurance carriers or brokers to determine 
the availability of insurance certificates and endorsements as prescribed and provided herein in 
advance of bid submission.  If an apparent low bidder fails to comply strictly with the insurance 
requirements, that bidder may be disqualified from award of the Contract.  

Contractor shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the contract, insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder and the results of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees 
or subcontractors.  The cost of such insurance shall be included in the Contractor's Bid. 

1.01 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering
CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations , bodily injury,
property damage, and personal and advertising injury, with no exclusion for work performed at
airport, with limits no less than $10,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies,
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or
25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. If CGL policy
has exclusion/s for work performed at airport, then a separate airport liability policy must also be
maintained with the same limits and specifications stated in this paragraph.

2. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Code 1 (any
auto), with limits no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease.

4. Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an “All Risk” (Special Perils)
coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no coinsurance penalty
provisions.

5. Surety Bonds as described below.

6. Professional Liability (if Design-Build or Construction Management), with limits no less than
$2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.

7. Contractor’s Pollution Legal Liability with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or
claim.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, the 
Entity requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the 
Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to the County. 

1.02 SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. At the option of the Entity, either: 
the contractor shall cause the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as respects 
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the Contractor shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to the Entity guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 



administration, and defense expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that 
the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. 

1.03  OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

1. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of with respect to liability arising
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations and automobiles owned,
leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of the Contractor. General liability coverage can be
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO
Form CG 20 10, CG 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or
volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall provide that coverage shall not be canceled,
except with notice to Inyo County.

1.04 BUILDER’S RISK (COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION) INSURANCE 
Contractor may submit evidence of Builder’s Risk insurance in the form of Course of Construction 
coverage. Such coverage shall name Inyo County as a loss payee as their interest may appear. 

If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of the Entity, an Installation 
Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property Installation Floater shall be obtained that 
provides for the improvement, remodel, modification, alteration, conversion or adjustment to existing 
buildings, structures, processes, machinery and equipment.  The Property Installation Floater shall 
provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, machinery or equipment damaged, 
impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of the Work, including during transit, installation, 
and testing at the Entity’s site. 

1.05 CLAIMS MADE POLICIES 
If any coverage required is written on a claims-made coverage form: 

1. The retroactive date must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of the
contract or the beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5)
years after completion of contract work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form
with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, the Contractor must
purchase extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the Entity for review.

If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution 
Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions. If the services involve mold 
identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not contain a mold exclusion, 
and the definition of Pollution shall include microbial matter, including mold. 



1.06 ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII, unless 
otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  

1.07 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 
Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor may 
acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any 
endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ Compensation 
policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Inyo County for all work performed 
by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.  

1.08 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all required 
amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable insurance language effecting coverage required by 
this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy listing all policy 
endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure to obtain the required documents 
prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide them. Inyo County 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements, required by these specifications, at any time.  

1.09 SUBCONTRACTOR 
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage, subcontractors shall provide 
coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13. 

1.10 SURETY BONDS 
Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds: 

1. Bid bond

2. Performance bond

3. Payment bond

4. Maintenance bond

The Payment Bond and the Performance Bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. If the 
Performance Bond provides for a one-year warranty a separate Maintenance Bond is not necessary. If the 
warranty period specified in the contract is for longer than one year a Maintenance Bond equal to 10% of 
the contract price is required. Bonds shall be duly executed by a responsible corporate surety, authorized 
to issue such bonds in the State of California and secured through an authorized agent with an office in 
California. 

1.11 SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCUMSTANCES 
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the 
risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.     

1.12 DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, 



including attorney's fees, arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole or 
in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by 
the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County. 

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the County, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any 
requirement in this Contract for the Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance coverage. 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Award construction contract for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death Valley 
Airport 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) award the contract for the Runway Rehabilitation Project at the Lone Pine/Death Valley 
Airport to Granite Construction Inc. of Bakersfield, CA as the successful bidder; B) approve the construction 
contract between the County of Inyo and Granite Construction Inc. in the amount of $1,816,900, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon receipt of the forthcoming FAA grant for the Lone Pine/Death Valley 
Airport Runway Rehabilitation Project and all appropriate signatures being obtained; and C) authorize the Public 
Works Director to execute all other project contract documents, including contract change orders, to the extent 
permitted by Public Contract Code Section 20142 and other applicable laws. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the June 11, 2019 meeting of the Board of Supervisors, your Board approved plans and specifications for the Project, and authorized 
the Public Works Director to advertise the Project for bids.  At the same meeting, the Board authorized the Public Works Director to sign 
the forthcoming Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant Agreement for construction of the 
Project.

The scope of work for the Project consists primarily of pavement recycling and overlay of Runway 16-34.  The project will also include 
culvert replacement, shoulder grading and pavement markings.

On July 5, 2019 bids were opened for the Project.  Three companies submitted the following bids:

Bowman Asphalt Inc., Bakersfield, CA                       $2,004,500
Qualcon Contractors Inc., Minden, NV                       $1,833,900
Granite Construction Inc., Bakersfield, CA                 $1,816,900

All bids were reviewed by the County to determine responsiveness. Granite Construction Inc. was found to be the lowest responsible 
responsive bidder to the Project bid proposal requirements.

The low bid for this project exceeded the grant amount programmed by the FAA, which was a total project cost of $1,777,778; however the 
FAA was able to allocate funds to cover the additional costs.

The FAA grant is anticipated to be awarded on September 19th.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
June 11, 2019    Approval of the Plans and Specifications for the Runway Rehabilitation Project
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to award the bid and construction contract for the Project, this is not recommended 
because the FAA grant includes State Apportionment funds which may be lost if the contract is not awarded 
before the end of the federal fiscal year.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
FAA
California Division of Aeronautics (CDA)
 
FINANCING:
The Project will be funded by the FAA’s AIP, which will reimburse the County for ninety percent (90%) of the cost 
of the Project, and by the CDA’s matching grant program, which will reimburse the County for four and one-half 
percent (4.5%) of the cost of the Project. The reimbursable costs will be paid through budget unit 150504, Lone 
Pine/Death Valley Airport Pavement, object code 5700, Construction in Progress in the amount of $1,816,900. 

The 19/20 Budget for this project included $1,777,778; because of the additional award from the FAA, Public 
Works has brought Agenda Item 26 in the Departmental Agenda, which includes a budget amendment to request 
the additional funds for this Project.

The County's cost share of this contract will be $99,929.50, however if State funds are not available, the full 
match amount could be $181,690. 

In anticipation of this project Public Works budgeted $50,000 of the contract amount in the Preliminary Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2019/2020 to cover work completed before budget adoption.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. LPDV Runway Rehabilitation_Granite Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 8/15/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/15/2019
Ashley Helms Approved - 8/15/2019
Breanne Nelums Approved - 8/16/2019
Michael Errante Approved - 8/16/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 8/16/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 8/19/2019
Michael Errante Final Approval - 8/19/2019



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-1 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

I. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED: CONTRACTOR agrees at its own expense to furnish all labor,
materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery, equipment, transportation, permits,
services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions necessary to COUNTY to construct the
Project in accordance with the terms of the Grant, as detailed in the COUNTY’s REQUEST FOR BIDS
sub nom “CONTRACT DOCUMENTS”, portions of which are attached hereto as Attachment A and all
of which is incorporated herein by this reference, as well as in the CONTRACTOR’s Response to the
Request for Bids, which is attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein by this reference,
and complete all work within the time for completion set forth in Attachment A.

II. TIME OF COMPLETION: Project work shall begin within _____ calendar days after receipt of the
Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and shall continue until all
requested services are completed.  Said services shall be completed no later than the Time of
Completion as noted in the Project s Special Provisions. Procedures for any extension of time shall be
complied with as noted in the Project s Special Provisions.

III. COMPENSATION / CONSIDERATION: Compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR for
performance of such work shall be in accordance with the schedules for payment set forth in
Attachment “B” to this contract. Any payment by COUNTY shall not be deemed a waiver of defects,
even if such defects were known to the COUNTY at the time of payment.

IV. METHOD OF PAYMENT:  CONTRACTOR shall bill by invoice directed to the Director of Public
Works or designee describing the work, the charge for the work, and date the work was performed.
CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY a completed IRS form W-9 before payments will issue from
COUNTY. COUNTY will pay the invoice within 30 days of the receipt following normal claims
handling procedures.

V. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: CONTRACTOR represents that he/she is qualified and licensed

Granite Construction Inc.
for 

RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT 
AT THE 

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 

AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 

COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and made and 
entered into effective, ____________, 20___19 __, by and between the COUNTY OF INYO, a political 
subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY"), and 
Granite Construction Inc._______________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR") for the 
construction or removal of _________________________Runway Rehabilitation Project__ PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as 

"PROJECT"), which parties agree, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, as follows: 

15



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-2 

to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract.  COUNTY relies upon the representations 
of CONTRACTOR regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and ability to perform the 
services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract. Acceptance of work by the COUNTY does 
not operate to release CONTRACTOR from any responsibility to perform work to professional and/or 
trade standards. CONTRACTOR shall provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to 
perform all services under this Contract.  CONTRACTOR shall perform all services required by this 
Contract in a manner and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the 
profession.  All work products of whatsoever nature delivered to the COUNTY shall be prepared in a 
manner conforming to the standards of quality normally observed by a person practicing in 
CONTRACTOR’S profession and/or trade. 

VI. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Nothing contained herein or any document executed in
connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership or joint venture
relationship between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR nor to allow COUNTY to exercise discretion or
control over the manner in which CONTRACTOR performs the work or services that are the subject
matter of this Agreement; provided, however, the work or services to be provided by CONTRACTOR
shall be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the COUNTY’s objectives in entering this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR is an independent CONTRACTOR, not an employee of COUNTY or any
of its subsidiaries or affiliates. CONTRACTOR will not represent itself to be nor hold itself out as an
employee of COUNTY. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it shall not have the right or entitlement in
or to any of the pension, retirement or other benefit programs now or hereafter available to COUNTY's
employees. The consideration set forth in Sections IV and V above shall be the sole consideration due
CONTRACTOR for the services rendered hereunder. It is understood that COUNTY will not withhold
any amounts for payment of taxes from CONTRACTOR’s compensation hereunder. Any and all sums
due under any applicable state, federal or municipal law or union or professional and/or trade guild
regulations shall be CONTRACTOR’s sole responsibility. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
COUNTY harmless from any and all damages, claims and expenses arising out of or resulting from any
claims asserted by any third party, including but not limited to a taxing authority, as a result of or in
connection with payments due it from CONTRACTOR’s compensation.

VII. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING.  The parties recognize that a substantial inducement to
County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation, experience and competence of
Contractor.  Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or obligations of the Contractor under this
Contract will be permitted only with the express consent of the County.  Contractor shall not
subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract without the written
authorization of the County.  If County consents to such subcontract, Contractor shall be fully
responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor.  Nothing in this Contract shall
create any contractual relationship between County and subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation
on the part of the County to pay any monies due to any such subcontractor, unless otherwise required by
law.

VIII. CLAIMS RESOLUTION: Pursuant to Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code, any and all claims
submitted by the CONTRACTOR to COUNTY will follow the provisions as set forth in the Project’s
County Provisions section.

IX. INSURANCE INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County
and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and
expenses, including attorney fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in
whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly
or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except
where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-3 

X. POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the meaning of the
Political Reform Act because Contractor:

1. Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control and
direction of the County or of any County official, other than normal Contract
monitoring; and

2. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel [FPPC Reg. 18700(a)(2)].

XI. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession and/or
trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and regulations that
relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.

1. Safety Training: Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as needed to
assure work will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a language" that is
understandable to employees receiving the training.  The training shall in all respects be
in compliance with CAL OSHA. Contractor working with employees shall maintain a
written Injury and Illness Prevention (IIP) Program, a copy of which must be
maintained at each worksite or at a central worksite identified for the employees, if the
Contractor has non-fixed worksites.  Contractor using subcontractors with the approval
of the County to perform the work which is the subject of this Contract shall require
each subcontractor working with employees to comply with the requirements of this
section.

2. Child, Family and Spousal Support Reporting Obligations: Contractor shall comply
with the state and federal child, family and spousal support reporting requirements and
with all lawfully served wage and earnings assignment orders or notices of assignment
relating to child, family and spousal support obligations.

3. Nondiscrimination: Contractor shall not discriminate in employment practices or in
the delivery of services on the basis of membership in a protected class which includes
any class recognized by law and not limited to race, color, religion, sex (gender), sexual
orientation, marital status, national origin (Including language use restrictions),
ancestry, disability (mental and physical, including HIV and Aids), medical Conditions
(cancer/genetic characteristics), age (40 and above) and request for family care leave.
Contractor represents that it is in compliance with federal and state laws prohibiting
discrimination in employment and agrees to stay in compliance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. sections 12101, et. seq.), Age Discrimination
in Employment Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title VII (42 U.S.C. 2000, et.
seq.), the California Fair Employment Housing Act (California Government Code
sections 12900, et. seq.) and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto.

XII. LICENSES: CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to COUNTY that it has all licenses, permits,
qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required of
CONTRACTOR to practice its trade and/or profession. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to
COUNTY that CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times
during the term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals which are legally
required of CONTRACTOR to practice its and/or profession.

XIII. PREVAILING WAGE:  Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code, CONTRACTOR agrees
to comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which this Contract is subject, the



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-4 

prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by the Director of the State 
Department of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the Department publication entitled 
"General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the project is advertised. Future effective wage 
rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations 
are referenced but not printed in said publication. Such rates of wages are also on file with the State 
Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of the Public Works Department of the County of 
Inyo and are available to any interested party upon request. CONTRACTOR agrees to submit certified 
payroll to COUNTY and comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations in submitting 
the certified payroll. 

XIV. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE: This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State of California.
The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of California for the
County of Inyo.

XV. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION: Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or communication that
either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing and either served
personally or sent prepaid, first class mail.  Any such notice, demand, et cetera, shall be addressed to the
other party at the address set forth herein below.  Either party may change its address by notifying the
other party of the change of address.  Notice shall be deemed communicated within 48 hours from the
time of mailing if mailed as provided in this section.

If to COUNTY: County of Inyo  
Public Works Department  
Attn: Ashley Helms  
168 N. Edwards  
PO Drawer Q Independence, CA 93526 

If to CONTRACTOR: ____________________________ 

____________________________ 

____________________________ 

____________________________ 

XVI. AMENDMENTS.  This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written document executed
by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by Inyo County Counsel.

XVII. WAIVER.  No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy hereunder shall operate
as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder.

XVIII. TERMINATION.  This Contract may be terminated for the reasons stated below:

1. Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities under this
Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the other party
or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract.  If termination for cause is
given by either party to the other and it is later determined that the other party was not
in default or default was excusable, then the notice of termination shall be deemed to
have been given without cause pursuant to paragraph “b” of this section; or

2. By either party without cause upon fifteen (15) days' written notice of termination.
Upon termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for services performed
up to the effective date of termination; or

3. By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding ending or

Granite Construction Inc.
Attn: Kevin Parsons
3005 James Road 
Bakersfield, CA 93308



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-5 

being materially decreased during the term of this Contract. 

XIX. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the
remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be
affected, impaired or invalidated.

XX. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.  It is understood and
agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by the Inyo County Board
of Supervisors upon Notice and Public Hearing.  In the event that the Board of Supervisors declines to
enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that there is, in fact, no binding agreement,
either written or oral, between the parties herein.

XXI. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for every provision in this Agreement.

XXII. ALL PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN: CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree that this Contract
shall include and consist of:

1. All provisions set forth expressly herein;

2. The Bid Proposal Forms, the Faithful Performance Bond, and the Labor and Materials
Payment Bond, all of which are incorporated herein and made a part of this contract by
reference; and

3. All other contract documents, as described in Section 5-1.02, “Contract
Components”; for the purpose of this Contract, Special Provisions includes:

a. County Provisions;
b. General Provisions;
c. Federal Provisions;
d. Special Provisions; and
e. Technical Specifications.

XXIII. EXECUTION. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute
one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties.  In approving this Contract, it
shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

XXIV. REQUIRED FEDERAL PROVISIONS

A. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS: The CONTRACTOR must maintain an acceptable cost
accounting system. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the Owner, the Federal Aviation Administration
and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives access to
any books, documents, papers and records of the CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to the
specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. The
CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain all books, records and reports required under this contract for a period
of not less than three years after final payment is made and all pending matters are closed.

B. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS
Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors
may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action that may be necessary to
enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

Owner will provide CONTRACTOR written notice that describes the nature of the breach and corrective
actions the CONTRACTOR must undertake in order to avoid termination of the contract.  Owner reserves



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-6 

the right to withhold payments to CONTRACTOR until such time the CONTRACTOR corrects the breach 
or the Owner elects to terminate the contract. The Owner’s notice will identify a specific date by which the 
CONTRACTOR must correct the breach.  Owner may proceed with termination of the contract if the 
CONTRACTOR fails to correct the breach by the deadline indicated in the Owner’s notice. 

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available 
thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise 
imposed or available by law. 

C. GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such rules as are
promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or
disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted with or benefiting from Federal
assistance.

This provision binds the CONTRACTOR and subcontractors from the bid solicitation period through the
completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964.

D. CIVIL RIGHTS – TITLE VI ASSURANCE

Compliance with Nondiscrimination Requirements: 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and successors 
in interest (hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR”), agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The CONTRACTOR (hereinafter includes consultants) will
comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, as they may be
amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this
contract.

2. Nondiscrimination:  The CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and
retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The
CONTRACTOR will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers
any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  In all
solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the CONTRACTOR for work to
be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment,
each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the CONTRACTOR of the
CONTRACTOR’s obligations under this contract and the Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities
on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports:  The CONTRACTOR will provide all information and reports required
by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its
books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by
the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
such Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities and instructions.  Where any information required of
a CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the
information, the CONTRACTOR will so certify to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation
Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-7 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with the non-
discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such contract sanctions as it or
the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

a. Withholding payments to the CONTRACTOR under the contract until the CONTRACTOR
complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The CONTRACTOR will include the provisions of paragraphs one
through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment,
unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto.  The
CONTRACTOR will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or
the Federal Aviation Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is
threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the
CONTRACTOR may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the
sponsor.  In addition, the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into the litigation
to protect the interests of the United States.

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “CONTRACTOR”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252) (prohibits discrimination
on the basis of race, color, national origin);

• 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 USC §
4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of
Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC § 794 et seq.), as amended (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.) (prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age);

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended (prohibits
discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage and
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or
activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and
CONTRACTORs, whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit discrimination on the
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of
public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 USC §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by U.S.
Department of Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-8 

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC § 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and
Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority populations by
discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health
or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations;

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,
and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited
English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to
ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating
because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC 1681 et seq).

E. CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued pursuant to
the Clean Air Act (42 USC § 740-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 USC
§ 1251-1387). The CONTRACTOR agrees to report any violation to the Owner immediately upon
discovery. The Owner assumes responsibility for notifying the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
and the Federal Aviation Administration.

CONTRACTOR must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $150,000. 

F. CONTRACT WORKHOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT REQUIREMENTS

1. Overtime Requirements: No CONTRACTOR or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract
work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit
any such laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, in any workweek in which he or she is
employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or
mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for
all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Liquidated Damages: In the event of any violation of the
clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, the CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor responsible
therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such CONTRACTOR and subcontractor shall
be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a
territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages.  Such liquidated damages shall be
computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this clause, in the sum of $10 for each
calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard
workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in
paragraph (1) of this clause.

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Liquidated Damages: The Federal Aviation Administration
(FAA) or the Owner shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of
the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of
work performed by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal
contract with the same prime CONTRACTOR, or any other federally assisted contract subject to the
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime CONTRACTOR,
such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such CONTRACTOR or
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-9 

(2) of this clause.

4. Subcontractors: The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set
forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) and also a clause requiring the subcontractor to include these clauses
in any lower tier subcontracts.  The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance by any
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this
clause.

G. COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT
CONTRACTOR must comply with the requirements of the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 USC 874
and 40 USC 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulation 29 CFR part 3.  CONTRACTOR
and subcontractors are prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed on the project to give
up any part of the compensation to which the employee is entitled.  The CONTRACTOR and each
Subcontractor must submit to the Owner, a weekly statement on the wages paid to each employee
performing on covered work during the prior week. Owner must report any violations of the Act to the
Federal Aviation Administration.

H. DAVIS-BACON REQUIREMENTS

1. Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid unconditionally
and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such
payroll deductions as are permitted by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the
full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalent thereof) due at time of payment
computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is
attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to
exist between the CONTRACTOR and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, 
subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred 
for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover 
the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. 
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 
29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be 
compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the 
employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is 
performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 
(1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the 
CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can 
easily be seen by the workers. 

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is 
not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in 
conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification 
and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met: 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage
determination;

(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-10 

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the
wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(B) If the CONTRACTOR and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or
their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the
amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the
contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards
Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210.  The Administrator, or an authorized
representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of
receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that
additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the CONTRACTOR, the laborers, or mechanics to be employed in the classification, or their
representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate
(including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the
questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to
the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a
determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting
officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)
(B) or (C) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this
contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes
a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the CONTRACTOR shall either pay the benefit as
stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent
thereof.

(iv) If the CONTRACTOR does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the CONTRACTOR
may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated
in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program: Provided that the Secretary of Labor has
found, upon the written request of the CONTRACTOR, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act
have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the CONTRACTOR to set aside in a separate account
assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

2. Withholding.

The Federal Aviation Administration or the sponsor shall upon its own action or upon written request of an 
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the 
CONTRACTOR under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime CONTRACTOR, or 
any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by 
the same prime CONTRACTOR, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered 
necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the 
CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of 
failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on 
the site of work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Federal Aviation Administration may, 
after written notice to the CONTRACTOR, Sponsor, Applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be 
necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations 
have ceased. 



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-11 

3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the CONTRACTOR during the course of
the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site
of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker; his
or her correct classification; hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated
for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-
Bacon Act); daily and weekly number of hours worked; deductions made; and actual wages paid. Whenever
the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic
include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program
described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain records that show
that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially
responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics
affected, and that show the costs anticipated or the actual costs incurred in providing such benefits.
CONTRACTORs employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence
of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the
apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)(A) The CONTRACTOR shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a 
copy of all payrolls to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the 
agency is not such a party, the CONTRACTOR will submit the payrolls to the applicant, Sponsor, or Owner, 
as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set 
out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), 
except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. 
Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g. the 
last four digits of the employee’s social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be 
submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour 
Division Web site at www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime 
CONTRACTOR is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. 
CONTRACTORs and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of 
each covered worker and shall provide them upon request to the Federal Aviation Administration if the agency 
is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the CONTRACTOR will submit them to the 
applicant, sponsor, or Owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the Federal Aviation Administration, the 
CONTRACTOR, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation 
or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime 
CONTRACTOR to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime 
CONTRACTOR for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency (or the 
applicant, Sponsor, or Owner). 

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the
CONTRACTOR or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons
employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) The payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR §
5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR § 5.5 (a)(3)(i), and that such
information is correct and complete;

(2) Each laborer and mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or
indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned,
other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations 29 CFR Part 3;



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-12 

(3) Each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash
equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination
incorporated into the contract.

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form
WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required by paragraph
(3)(ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor to
civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States
Code.

(iii) The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (3)(i) of this
section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the sponsor, the
Federal Aviation Administration, or the Department of Labor and shall permit such representatives to
interview employees during working hours on the job. If the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor fails to submit
the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the
CONTRACTOR, Sponsor, applicant, or Owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension
of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records
upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR
5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they
performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship
program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of
Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person
is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of
Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for
probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in
any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the CONTRACTOR as to the entire
work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not
registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the
wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing
work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than
the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a
CONTRACTOR is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is
registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly rate) specified in
the CONTRACTOR’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid
at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice’s level of progress, expressed as
a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship
program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on
the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different
practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that
determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency
recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the CONTRACTOR will no
longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed
until an acceptable program is approved.



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-13 

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in
a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of
Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not
be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every
trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee’s level of
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage
determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program.
If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe
benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines
that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage
determination that provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices.  Any employee listed on the
payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment
and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for
the classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in
excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate
on the wage determination for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training
Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the CONTRACTOR will no longer be permitted to
utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable
program is approved.

(iii) Equal Employment Opportunity.  The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under this part
shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as
amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by 
reference in this contract. 

6. Subcontracts.

The CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR Part 
5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Aviation Administration may by appropriate 
instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts.  The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5. 

7. Contract Termination: Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in paragraph 1 through 10 of this section may be grounds for termination of 
the contract, and for debarment as a CONTRACTOR and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are 
herein incorporated by reference in this contract. 

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general 
disputes clause of this contract.  Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the 
Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include 



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-14 

disputes between the CONTRACTOR (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. 
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 

10. Certification of Eligibility.

(i) By entering into this contract, the CONTRACTOR certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or
firm who has an interest in the CONTRACTOR’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded
Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government
contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 USC 1001.

I. TEXTING WHEN DRIVING

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving”, (10/1/2009) and DOT Order 3902.10, “Text Messaging While Driving”, (12/30/2009), the
Federal Aviation Administration encourages recipients of Federal grant funds to adopt and enforce safety
policies that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while driving
when performing work related to a grant or subgrant.

In support of this initiative, the Owner encourages the CONTRACTOR to promote policies and initiatives
for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted drivers, including policies
that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while performing work activities associated with the
project.  The CONTRACTOR must include the substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding
$3,500 that involve driving a motor vehicle in performance of work activities associated with the project.

J. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS
CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor agree to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to
energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy
Policy and Conservation Act (42 USC 6201et seq).

K. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows:

(1) The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because
of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identify, or national origin. Such action shall include,
but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff, or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection
for training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places,
available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions
of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf
of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

(3) The CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the
said labor union or workers’ representatives of the CONTRACTOR’s commitments under this section and



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-15 

shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment. 

(4) The CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,
1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(5) The CONTRACTOR will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto,
and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary
of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(6) In the event of the CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this
contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or
suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for further Government
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies
invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of
the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The CONTRACTOR will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and
the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by
rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.
The CONTRACTOR will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the
administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for
noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering
agency the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the
interests of the United States.

L. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Bidder or Offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief, that:
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Bidder or

Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-16 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

M. PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES

(a) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it does not and will not maintain or provide for its employees any
segregated facilities at any of its establishments, and that it does not and will not permit its employees
to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are maintained.
The CONTRACTOR agrees that a breach of this clause is a violation of the Equal Employment
Opportunity clause in this contract.

(b) “Segregated facilities,” as used in this clause, means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and
wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing
areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing
facilities provided for employees that are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin because of written or oral policies or employee
custom. The term does not include separate or single-user rest rooms or necessary dressing or sleeping
areas provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

(c) The CONTRACTOR shall include this clause in every subcontract and purchase order that is subject to
the Equal Employment Opportunity clause of this contract.

N. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT OF 1970

All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference the requirements of
29 CFR Part 1910 with the same force and effect as if given in full text.  The employer must provide a work
environment that is free from recognized hazards that may cause death or serious physical harm to the
employee. The employer retains full responsibility to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor’s
compliance with the applicable requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR
Part 1910).  The employer must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement
directly with the U.S. Department of Labor – Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

O. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

CONTRACTOR and subcontractor agree to comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act,
as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR
Part 247.  In the performance of this contract and to the extent practicable, the CONTRACTOR and
subcontractors are to use products containing the highest percentage of recovered materials for items
designated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under 40 CFR Part 247 whenever:

 The contract requires procurement of $10,000 or more of a designated item during the fiscal year; or1)

The CONTRACTOR has procured $10,000 or more of a designated item using Federal funding during2)
the previous fiscal year.

The list of EPA-designated items is available at www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-
guidelines-construction-products. 

Section 6002(c) establishes exceptions to the preference for recovery of EPA-designated products if the 
CONTRACTOR can demonstrate the item is: 



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-17 

a) Not reasonably available within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance
schedule;
b) Fails to meet reasonable contract performance requirements; or
c) Is only available at an unreasonable price.

P. CERTIFICATION OF OFFERER/BIDDER REGARDING TAX DELINQUENCY AND FELONY
CONVICTIONS

The applicant must complete the following two certification statements. The applicant must indicate its 
current status as it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting a checkmark () in the space 
following the applicable response. The applicant agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this 
solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for certification in all lower tier subcontracts. 

Certifications 

 The applicant represents that it is (  ) is not (  ) a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability 1)
that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have 
lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority 
responsible for collecting the tax liability. 

The applicant represents that it is (  ) is not (  ) a corporation that was convicted of a criminal2)
violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

Note 

If an applicant responds in the affirmative to either of the above representations, the applicant is ineligible to 
receive an award unless the sponsor has received notification from the agency suspension and debarment 
official (SDO) that the SDO has considered suspension or debarment and determined that further action is not 
required to protect the Government’s interests.  The applicant therefore must provide information to the owner 
about its tax liability or conviction to the Owner, who will then notify the FAA Airports District Office, which 
will then notify the agency’s SDO to facilitate completion of the required considerations before award 
decisions are made. 

Term Definitions 

Felony conviction: Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twenty four (24) 
months of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law and includes conviction of an offense 
defined in a section of the U.S. code that specifically classifies the offense as a felony and conviction of 
an offense that is classified as a felony under 18 U.S.C. § 3559. 
Tax Delinquency: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for 
which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not 
being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the 
tax liability. 

Q. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE (CONSTRUCTION & EQUIPMENT CONTRACTS)
The Owner may terminate this contract in whole or in part at any time by providing written notice to the 
CONTRACTOR.  Such action may be without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of 
Owner. Upon receipt of a written notice of termination, except as explicitly directed by the Owner, the 
CONTRACTOR shall immediately proceed with the following obligations regardless of any delay in 
determining or adjusting amounts due under this clause:  



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-18 

1. CONTRACTOR must immediately discontinue work as specified in the written notice.
2. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated under the notice.
3. Discontinue orders for materials and services except as directed by the written notice.
4. Deliver to the Owner all fabricated and partially fabricated parts, completed and partially completed

work, supplies, equipment and materials acquired prior to termination of the work, and as directed in
the written notice.

5. Complete performance of the work not terminated by the notice.
6. Take action as directed by the Owner to protect and preserve property and work related to this

contract that Owner will take possession.
Owner agrees to pay CONTRACTOR for: 

 completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the 3)
effective date of termination; 

documented expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing work and4)
furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the contract documents in connection with
uncompleted work;

reasonable and substantiated claims, costs, and damages incurred in settlement of terminated contracts5)
with Subcontractors and Suppliers; and

reasonable and substantiated expenses to the CONTRACTOR directly attributable to Owner’s6)
termination action.

Owner will not pay CONTRACTOR for loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising 
out of or resulting from the Owner’s termination action. 

The rights and remedies this clause provides are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law 
or under this contract. 

R. VETERAN’S PREFERENCE

In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory positions), the
CONTRACTOR and all sub-tier CONTRACTORs must give preference to covered veterans as defined
within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112.  Covered veterans include Vietnam-era veterans,
Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans, and small business concerns (as
defined by 15 USC 632) owned and controlled by disabled veterans.  This preference only applies when
there are covered veterans readily available and qualified to perform the work to which the employment
relates.

XXV. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Contract, including the Contract Documents and all other documents
which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and exclusive agreement between
the County and Contractor.  All prior written and oral communications, including correspondence,
drafts, memoranda, and representations, are superseded in total by this Contract.  If any provision of
this agreement is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provision and/or
provisions shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated.

XXVI. ATTACHMENTS: All attachments referred to are incorporated and made a part of this agreement.
Attachments include:



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-19 

Attachment “A:” COUNTY OF INYO RELVANT PORTIONS OF REQUEST FOR BIDS 

Attachment “B:” RESPONSE TO COUNTY OF INYO REQUEST FOR BIDS  

Attachment “C:” INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

---o0o--- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date first 
written above. 

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR 

_________________________ ______________________________ 
Rick Pucci, Board Chair  [                                              ], Title 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ATTEST: CLINT QUILTER 
AND LEGALITY County Clerk 

Board of Supervisors 

By By: _________________________________ 
Inyo County Counsel 

APPROVEE AS TO INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS: 

By _______________________ 
Inyo County Risk Manager 



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-20 

Attachment “A” 

RELEVANT PORTIONS OF REQUEST FOR BID 



  
 
 

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION     SP-1 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-013-2018 DESIGN 
FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 CONSTRUCTION 

COUNTY PROJECT NO. TR-19-004 
 
1. LOCATION AND GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE WORK.  The work to be done under this 

contract is located at the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport, Lone Pine, California. The overall 
objective of the work is rehabilitation of the airport runway.  

 
More specifically, the project consists of subgrade preparation and compaction, full depth 
reclamation (FDR) of the existing asphalt pavements and base, asphalt surface course, paint 
marking, and culvert removal and replacement.   
 
The scope of the work is shown on the “Construction Layout Plan”.  
 
The paved and dirt runways will be closed during construction. The apron and helicopter area will 
remain open. 
 

2. TIME OF COMPLETION, SEQUENCE OF WORK SCHEDULES & MEETINGS.  The Contractor 
shall complete all the work under the base bid within 60 calendar days from the date of notice to 
proceed. This schedule includes pavement curing time prior to paint marking.  
 
The paved and dirt runways will be closed during construction and the apron and helicopter area 
will remain open, in accordance with the Construction Closure & Safety Plan. All work shall be 
performed in daylight unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. The Contractor may make 
submittals at any time after notification of award to expedite his ordering materials and 
commencing the work in an efficient manner. The Contractor’s schedule submittals shall strive to 
consolidate work efforts and multi-task work items to the extent possible in order to expedite 
completion of the project and avoid the necessity of acceptance testing and inspection during 
periods of relatively minor activity. The contract time allows for procurement, delivery, and 
installation of all systems.  

 
Within 10 days of the Notice to Proceed and every two weeks thereafter, the Contractor shall 
submit to the Engineer (in Microsoft Project format) baseline, monthly updated, and final updated 
schedules, each consistent in all respects with the time and order of work requirements of the 
contract. Work must be executed in the sequence indicated on the current accepted schedule. 

 
Schedules must show the order in which the Contractor proposes to prosecute the work with 
logical links between time-scaled work activities and calculations made using the critical path 
method to determine the controlling activities. The Contractor is responsible for assuring that all 
activity sequences are logical and that each schedule shows a coordinated plan for complete 
performance of the work. 
 

 
The Engineer will schedule the preconstruction meeting prior to issuing the Notice to Proceed to 
the Contractor. The Engineer will prepare an agenda for the preconstruction meeting and take 
minutes. 

 
The Contractor shall be available to attend weekly progress meetings, if scheduled and 
determined by the Engineer to be necessary. The meeting shall be attended by the Contractor's 
job foreman, safety officer, and representative of the subcontractors actively working or beginning 
to work at the time of the meeting. 
 
The preparation of schedules and attendance at meetings shall be considered as included in 



  
 
 

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION     SP-2 
 

Mobilization and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 
 
3. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  Liquidated damages, for failure to complete the work within the time 

for completion specified for any or all construction phases shall be three thousand dollars 
($3,000.00) per calendar day. 
 

4. ASSIGNMENT.  In entering this contract or a subcontract to this contract, the Contractor or 
subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and interest in and 
to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C.A. Sec. 15) or 
under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of 
the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 
pursuant to this works contract or a subcontract.  This assignment shall be made and become 
effective at the time the Owner tenders final payment to the Contractor without further 
acknowledgment by the parties. 

 
5. PREVAILING WAGES AND TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE PAYMENTS.  A copy of the 

determination of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages and general prevailing wages for 
holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed is on file at the 
Owner's offices.  Contractor and any subcontractors will not pay less than the specified prevailing 
rates of wages to all workers employed in the execution of the contract.  The Contractor will pay 
at least the minimum of state or federal wages, whichever is the greater.  
 
Contractor will post one copy of the prevailing rates of wages at the job site.  For each calendar 
day or portion thereof, and for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such 
work or craft in which the workman is employed or any public work done under the contract by 
him, or any subcontractor under him, Contractor shall forfeit the sum of $50.00 as penalty to the 
Owner. 
 
Travel and subsistence payments shall be paid to each worker needed to execute the work and 
such payments are defined in the applicable collective bargaining agreements filed with the 
Department of Industrial Relations for the particular craft, classification or type of work involved. 

 
6. HOURS OF WORK.  Eight hours labor constitutes a legal day's work pursuant to this contract.  

The time of service of any worker employed upon the project is limited and restricted to eight 
hours during any one calendar day and forty hours during any one calendar week unless said 
employee is compensated at a rate of one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all times in 
excess of the foregoing hours. The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall not work more than 8 
hours per day unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. If the Contractor schedule requires 
overtime observation or acceptance testing by the Engineer or Owner staff, the cost for additional 
payment to the Engineer and Owner for the Engineer’s and Owner’s overtime shall be deducted 
from payments to the Contractor. The Engineer shall be the sole judge of these hours and costs. 

 
Contractor shall keep and make available and accurate record showing the name of and actual 
hours worked each calendar day and each calendar week by each worker employed by the 
Contractor or any subcontractor in connection with the project. 
 
Contractor shall, as a penalty, forfeit $25.00 for each worker employed in execution of the 
contract by Contractor or by any subcontractor for each calendar day during that such worker is 
required or permitted to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day or forty hours in any 
one calendar week in violation of this section. 

 
7. ACTS OF GOD.  Contractor shall not be responsible for the cost of repairing or restoring 

damages to the work which exceeds 5% of the contract price and which damage is determined to 
have been proximately caused by an act of God, provided that the work damaged is built in 
accordance with accepted and applicable building standards and the plans and specifications of 



  
 
 

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION     SP-3 
 

the Owner.  As used herein, the term "acts of God" includes only earthquakes in excess of the 
magnitude of 3.5 on the Richter Scale and tidal waves. 

 
8. CERTAIN CLAIMS.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any demand of $375,000, or less, by the 

Contractor for a time extension; payment of money or damages arising from the work done by or 
on behalf of the Contractor pursuant to this contract; or payment of an amount which is disputed 
by the Owner shall be processed in by informal conferences, non-binding judicially supervised 
mediation and judicial arbitration. 

 
A single written claim shall be filed under this section prior to the date of final payment for all 
demands arising out of the contract. 
 
Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the claim, the Owner may request additional 
documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses or claims the Owner may have 
against the Contractor.  If the amount of the claim is less than $50,000, the Contractor shall 
respond to the request for additional information within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the 
request.  The Contractor shall respond to the request within thirty (30) days of receipt if the 
amount of the claim exceeds $50,000 but is less than $375,000. 
 
Unless further documentation is requested, the Owner shall respond to the claim within forty-five 
(45) days if the amount of the claim is less than $50,000 or within sixty (60) days if the amount of 
the claim is more than $50,000, but less than $375,000.  If further documentation is requested, 
the Owner shall respond within the same amount of time taken by the Contractor to respond or 
fifteen (15) days, whichever is greater, after receipt of further information if the claim is less than 
$50,000.  If the claim is more than $50,000 but less than $375,000 and further documentation is 
requested by the Owner, the Owner shall respond within the same amount of time taken by the 
Contractor to respond or thirty (30) days, whichever is greater. 
 
If the Contractor disputes the Owner's response, or the Owner fails to respond, the Contractor 
may demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute.  
The demand shall be served on the Owner within fifteen (15) days after the deadline of the Owner 
to respond or within fifteen (15) days of the Owner's response, whichever occurs first.  The 
Owner shall schedule the meet and confer conference within thirty (30) days of the request. 
 
If the meet and confer conference does not produce a satisfactory request, the Contractor may 
pursue remedies authorized by law. 

 
9. CONSTRUCTION MEANS AND SAFETY.  Wadell Engineering Corporation, its subconsultants, 

and the Owner are not responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
and safety at the site. These items are the sole responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor 
shall comply with applicable portions of the attached FAA Advisory Circular 150/5370-2G, 
“Operational Safety on Airports During Construction”. 

 
10. PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE.  The Contractor shall use every reasonable precaution 

to safeguard persons and property including the general public. It shall be the sole responsibility 
of the Contractor to procure, place and maintain four yellow runway closure crosses and eight 
water filled barricades with lights, and to furnish and maintain any other barriers, temporary 
construction fences, lights, and danger signals as are necessary to protect persons and property 
near the work site.  All barricades and obstructions shall be protected at night by lights, which 
shall be suitably distributed and kept illuminated from sunset to sunrise.  Lights shall be of a type 
acceptable to the Engineer with 360-degree visibility.  Runway crosses and barricades shall 
become the property of the Owner upon completion and shall be stored on site as approved by 
the Engineer. 

 
In the event of interruption to domestic water, sewer, storm drain, or to other utility services as a 
result of accidental breakage, or as a result of being exposed or unsupported, the Contractor 



  
 
 

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION     SP-4 
 

shall promptly notify the proper authority.  The Contractor shall cooperate with said authority in 
restoration of service as promptly as possible and bear all costs of repair.  In no case shall 
interruption of any water or utility service be allowed to exist outside working hours unless prior 
approval is received. 
 
Neither the owner nor its officers or agents or Wadell Engineering Corporation shall be 
responsible to the Contractor for damages as a result of the location of the underground utilities 
being other than that shown on the plans or for the existence of underground utilities not shown 
on the plans. The Contractor shall seek and mark utilities within the work area prior to excavation 
or opening ground surfaces. The Contractor shall retain, utilize and compensate a private USA 
company for utility marking prior to any digging. 

 
11. FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION.  The Contractor shall perform all work in a fire-safe 

manner.  He shall supply and maintain on the site adequate fire-fighting equipment capable of 
extinguishing incipient fires.  The Contractor shall comply with applicable local and state fire 
prevention regulations. 

 
12. PROTECTION OF UTILITIES, CABLES, NAVAIDS, AND WEATHER BUREAU FACILITIES.  The 

Contractor is hereby informed that there are public utility, airport private utility and weather 
reporting facilities on the airport. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to find and protect such 
facilities. The Contractor shall conduct private USA utility searches within work areas, in particular 
the terminal area and near airport lighting and weather facilities to prevent damage to systems. 
The cost is considered included in the cost of all subgrade preparation and underground work, 
and is not subject to separate payment. 

 
13. CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES. The Contractor shall furnish all stakes for the layout 

and construction of the work.  The Contractor shall satisfy himself as to the accuracy of all 
measurements before constructing any permanent structure. No staking will be provided by the 
Engineer. The Contractor’s layout for paint markings shall be done at the direction of an on-site 
California licensed professional land surveyor. 

 
No separate measurement and payment will be made for establishing and maintaining 
construction layout stakes required under this Contract.  The cost for this construction layout 
staking shall be considered to be included in the various contract prices for which construction 
layout staking is required. 

 
14. TEMPORARY ELECTRIC POWER. The Contractor shall make his own arrangements for electric 

power for use during construction. The Contractor shall compensate the Owner at Owner 
determined rates for any use of Owner power. 

 
15. SANITARY FACILITIES.  The Contractor shall provide and maintain sanitary facilities for his 

employees and his subcontractor's employees that will comply with the regulations of the local 
and state departments of health and as directed by the Engineer. 
 

16. WATER & WATERING. The Contractor shall furnish and apply water required in the   compaction 
of embankments, subgrades, subbases, base courses, dust control, and for other purposes in 
accordance with the requirements of these specifications or as directed by the Engineer.  Water, 
when required, shall be applied at the locations, in the amounts, and during the hours as directed 
by the Engineer.  The Contractor shall make all arrangements and shall bear all expenses for 
furnishing of water supply including adequate equipment of ample capacity to ensure uniform 
application of water in the amounts directed by the Engineer. 

 
The performance of this item, including provision of all water, shall be considered incidental to the 
other contract items and, therefore, no direct payment for water shall be made. 
 



  
 
 

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION     SP-5 
 

17. HAUL ROUTES, ROUTE MAINTENANCE, AND DUST CONTROL.  Construction equipment 
shall follow the routes if shown on the plans unless the Engineer approves other routes.   
 
The Contractor shall perform all necessary maintenance of routes during construction and shall 
perform all work as necessary to restore the routes used by his equipment to their original 
condition at the conclusion of construction. Damage to existing paved and unpaved areas shall 
be repaired promptly and to the sole satisfaction of the Engineer. Pavement damage repairs shall 
include milling, compaction and repaving as directed by the Engineer. The Contractor is hereby 
notified that heavy truck usage of the airport pavements and roads likely will  result in the 
requirement for repairs. Such repairs shall be at no cost to the Owner. 
 
Dust control methods and means shall be designed and implemented by the Contractor to assure 
that dust from the project and support areas shall not spread to adjacent on airport tenants and 
parking areas or to off-airport properties. The economic value of damage to aircraft and aircraft 
maintenance facilities and activities can occur even by light dusting, which may result in claims 
and civil litigation.  Haul routes shall be sprinkled with water as necessary to prevent dust 
diffusion during the course of the work.   
 
All maintenance and restoration work shall be completed to the Engineer's satisfaction before 
final payment is awarded.   
  

18. WORK IN AIR OPERATIONS AREAS.  Employee vehicle parking is confined to the Contractor's 
area shown on the plans. This project requires work in and adjacent to aircraft operations areas. 
When the Contractor enters air operations areas the following apply: 

 
The Contractor shall provide a knowledgeable flag person with aviation radio to prevent vehicle 
incursions and access to operations areas including crossings of runways and taxiways. 
 
FAA-approved orange and white checkered flags shall be provided by the Contractor on all 
vehicles. No vehicles are allowed within 25 feet of a parked aircraft or within 40 feet of a moving 
aircraft. 

 
Workmen on foot shall remain at least 150 feet back from the edge of an operational runway, 
unless cleared through a radio operator who then maintains a watch over the operation.  
Workmen on or within 50 feet of an active runway or taxiway shall wear orange safety vests at all 
times. 
 
In the event of an emergency, men and equipment shall be moved immediately at the direction of 
the Engineer. 
 
Normally, work will not be permitted in the air operations area between the hours 2000 to 0600.  If 
an emergency situation requires work during these hours, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer 
as far in advance as possible and obtain clearance from him before proceeding to work. During 
night operations, each vehicle shall be equipped with an omni-directional amber flashing light 
mounted on the roof of the cab. Headlights, taillights and flashers shall be used for all activities 
during these hours. 

 
19. HAZARD LIGHTING OF CONSTRUCTION AREAS.  In the area of construction as shown on the 

plans and in accordance with the construction schedule, the Contractor shall outline access 
routes to the construction area and the construction area itself by the use of suitable lighted 
barricades.   

 
Construction equipment that extends 15 feet or more above ground level shall be cleared through 
the Engineer and shall be lighted at night in an approved manner and/or lowered to height of 
adjacent structural surroundings at the discretion of the Engineer. 

 



  
 
 

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT RUNWAY PAVEMENT REHABILITATION     SP-6 
 

20. CLEANUP DURING THE WORK.  The Contractor shall at all times during the work keep the 
premises clean and orderly.  He shall promptly remove all waste materials and rubbish.  All 
directions from the Engineer and other authorized public officials having jurisdiction over health 
and safety shall be obeyed. 

 
Whenever the Contractor is hauling material or debris on or across roadways, auto parking, 
aircraft aprons, taxiways, or runways, he shall take all necessary precautions to prevent any 
spillage or dropping of material or debris from his haul vehicles.  If and when such spills occur, 
the Contractor shall be especially diligent in promptly cleaning them up.  It is emphasized that 
even the smallest spills of rock or debris may be hazardous to automobiles and aircraft until 
cleaned up. 
 

21. SITE RESTORATION AND CLEANUP.  Upon completion of the project, all areas used by the 
Contractor in connection with the work shall be properly cleared of all temporary structures, 
rubbish, and waste materials and the areas shall be properly graded to drain and blend in with the 
abutting property.  Any waste area obtained by the Contractor for deposit of waste materials shall 
be finished to properly drain and blend with the surrounding terrain. 

 
22. CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE AND COOPERATION. The Owner relies on prompt and 

efficient execution of the project and closeout of the contract. Contractor non-responsiveness or 
mismanagement that results in delay to the Engineer adversely impacts the Owner’s ability to 
perform compliance inspections, complete the project accounting and finish the project. The 
Contractor will be deemed non-responsive or un-cooperative in the event the Contractor does not 
furnish (1) daily receipts for delivered materials (where applicable such as aggregate base and 
asphaltic concrete), (2) prompt progress and final payment requests, (3) prompt Contractor test 
results for quality control, (4) complete and accurate “as-built” markup drawings for the completed 
work.  

 
The Engineer shall not allow payment for materials delivered without an applicable load receipt 
submitted to the Engineer on the day of delivery. The Contractor shall have 14 calendar days 
from completion of the final punch list work to submit “as-built” markups and the final payment 
request. 
 
Delays to the Engineer due to the Engineer’s determination of non-responsiveness by the 
Contractor shall be back charged against monies due the Contractor at the rate of $2,000 per 
engineer day. Such charges are in addition to liquidated damages. 
 

END OF SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 



RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-21 

Attachment “B” 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR BID 





RUNWAY REHABILITATION PROJECT AT THE 
LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT 
AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

FAA AIP PROJECT NO. #3-06-0126-014-2019 
COUNTY PROJECT NO: TR-19-004 

Page C-22 

Attachment “C” 

INSURANCE PROVISIONS 



SECTION 1.  INSURANCE, DEFENSE, AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

Bidders' attention is directed to the insurance requirements indicated below.  It is highly 
recommended that bidders confer with their respective insurance carriers or brokers to determine 
the availability of insurance certificates and endorsements as prescribed and provided herein in 
advance of bid submission.  If an apparent low bidder fails to comply strictly with the insurance 
requirements, that bidder may be disqualified from award of the Contract.  

Contractor shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the contract, insurance against claims for 
injuries to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the performance of 
the work hereunder and the results of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees 
or subcontractors.  The cost of such insurance shall be included in the Contractor's Bid. 

1.01 MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 
Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL):  Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering
CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products and completed operations , bodily injury,
property damage, and personal and advertising injury, with no exclusion for work performed at
airport, with limits no less than $10,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies,
either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or
25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. If CGL policy
has exclusion/s for work performed at airport, then a separate airport liability policy must also be
maintained with the same limits and specifications stated in this paragraph.

2. Automobile Liability:  Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Code 1 (any
auto), with limits no less than $5,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employers’ Liability insurance with a limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease.

4. Builder’s Risk (Course of Construction) insurance utilizing an “All Risk” (Special Perils)
coverage form, with limits equal to the completed value of the project and no coinsurance penalty
provisions.

5. Surety Bonds as described below.

6. Professional Liability (if Design-Build or Construction Management), with limits no less than
$2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, and $2,000,000 policy aggregate.

7. Contractor’s Pollution Legal Liability with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or
claim.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, the 
Entity requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the 
Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to the County. 

1.02 SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. At the option of the Entity, either: 
the contractor shall cause the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as respects 
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the Contractor shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to the Entity guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 



administration, and defense expenses. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that 
the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County. 

1.03  OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

1. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional
insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of with respect to liability arising
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations and automobiles owned,
leased, hired, or borrowed by or on behalf of the Contractor. General liability coverage can be
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO
Form CG 20 10, CG 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any
insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or
volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall provide that coverage shall not be canceled,
except with notice to Inyo County.

1.04 BUILDER’S RISK (COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION) INSURANCE 
Contractor may submit evidence of Builder’s Risk insurance in the form of Course of Construction 
coverage. Such coverage shall name Inyo County as a loss payee as their interest may appear. 

If the project does not involve new or major reconstruction, at the option of the Entity, an Installation 
Floater may be acceptable. For such projects, a Property Installation Floater shall be obtained that 
provides for the improvement, remodel, modification, alteration, conversion or adjustment to existing 
buildings, structures, processes, machinery and equipment.  The Property Installation Floater shall 
provide property damage coverage for any building, structure, machinery or equipment damaged, 
impaired, broken, or destroyed during the performance of the Work, including during transit, installation, 
and testing at the Entity’s site. 

1.05  CLAIMS MADE POLICIES 
If any coverage required is written on a claims-made coverage form: 

1. The retroactive date must be shown, and this date must be before the execution date of the
contract or the beginning of contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5)
years after completion of contract work.

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form
with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective, or start of work date, the Contractor must
purchase extended reporting period coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
contract work.

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the Entity for review.

If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution 
Liability policy shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos exclusions. If the services involve mold 
identification/remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability policy shall not contain a mold exclusion, 
and the definition of Pollution shall include microbial matter, including mold. 



1.06 ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII, unless 
otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  

1.07 WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 
Contractor hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of Contractor may 
acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any 
endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers’ Compensation 
policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Inyo County for all work performed 
by the Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.  

1.08 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all required 
amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable insurance language effecting coverage required by 
this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy listing all policy 
endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure to obtain the required documents 
prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s obligation to provide them. Inyo County 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including 
endorsements, required by these specifications, at any time.  

1.09 SUBCONTRACTOR 
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional insured 
on insurance required from subcontractors. For CGL coverage, subcontractors shall provide 
coverage with a form at least as broad as CG 20 38 04 13. 

1.10 SURETY BONDS 
Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds: 

1. Bid bond

2. Performance bond

3. Payment bond

4. Maintenance bond

The Payment Bond and the Performance Bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. If the 
Performance Bond provides for a one-year warranty a separate Maintenance Bond is not necessary. If the 
warranty period specified in the contract is for longer than one year a Maintenance Bond equal to 10% of 
the contract price is required. Bonds shall be duly executed by a responsible corporate surety, authorized 
to issue such bonds in the State of California and secured through an authorized agent with an office in 
California. 

1.11 SPECIAL RISKS OR CIRCUMSTANCES 
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the 
risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other circumstances.     

1.12 DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses and other costs, 
including attorney's fees, arising out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in whole 
or 



in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by 
the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the County. 

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the County, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any 
requirement in this Contract for the Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance coverage. 

1.13 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY NOT LIMITED BY INSURANCE 
Nothing contained in the insurance requirements applicable to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract 
shall be construed as limiting the liability of the Contractor or the Contractor's Sureties. 



County of Inyo

Public Works - Road Dept.
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Trevor Taylor 
 
SUBJECT:  Temporary Closure of Portions of Tu-Su Lane, Diaz Lane, and North Barlow Lane for the California 
Indian Day Parade 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the closure of portions of Tu-Su Lane, Diaz Lane, and North Barlow Lane on Friday, 
September 27, 2019 between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 12:30 p.m.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On Friday, September 27th, 2019, the Bishop Paiute Tribe plans to hold their annual parade celebrating 
California Indian Day and has requested the closure of portions of Tu-Su Lane, Diaz Lane, and North Barlow 
Lane for the event.  The 0.8 mile parade will begin at the Bishop Paiute Tribal Office at 50 Tu-Su Lane and travel 
north before turning west on Diaz Lane.  The route will then turn south onto Barlow Lane and end at the Barlow 
Lane gym.  The Parade is schedule to begin at 9:00 am and should be finished up by 12:30 pm.  The Road 
Department is requesting that the Board approve the closure of 0.5 miles of Tu-Su Lane, 0.25 miles of Diaz Lane, 
and 0.25 miles of N. Barlow Lane.

In the area of the proposed road closures, Tu-Su Lane, Diaz Lane, and Barlow Lane provide access to residents 
of the Paiute Tribe.  The Road Department will include provisions in the special event permit to enable people 
within the road closure area to access their homes, and will provide signs to assist with the closure of the 
roadway.  There will be minimal impact to people trying to cross the reservation, as there are many other routes 
available to do so.  The permittee will be required to arrange for the position of the closures and to direct 
residents around the closures.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could chose not to approve the road closure.  This is not recommended, as the parade impact will be 
minimal and closure of the roadway will greatly increase safety for the participants.  If this were to occur, 
the Bishop Paiute Tribe would need to identify an alternative location for the event. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
There is no financial impact anticipated from this event.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Parade Route
 
APPROVALS:
Trevor Taylor Created/Initiated - 8/30/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2019
Trevor Taylor Approved - 9/4/2019
Chris Cash Final Approval - 9/5/2019





 

 

September 27th, 2019 California Indian Day Parade Route 

 



County of Inyo

Clerk/Recorder
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Kammi Foote 
 
SUBJECT:  Presentation/Workshop on Changing Election Landscape 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive a presentation on the Changing Election Landscape.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
There have been several significant reforms in Election law in the past few years, changing how citizens vote and 
increasing the duties in the election department. This workshop is to inform the Board of Supervisors and the 
public of the most consequential changes.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Election Changes Presentation
 
APPROVALS:
Kammi Foote Created/Initiated - 8/16/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/16/2019
Kammi Foote Final Approval - 8/16/2019



Changing Elections Landscape 

1 

• California No-Excuse Absentee Voting - 1978 

• 4.4% absentee ballots cast in November 1978 election 

• Uniform & Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting Act (UOCAVA) - 1986 

• Protects the right to vote for service members stationed overseas 

• California Voting Rights Act – 2001   

• Prohibits the use of an at-large election in a political subdivision if it would impair the ability of a protected class to 
elect a candidate 

• California Permanent Vote By Mail - 2002 

• 64,400 VBM ballots issued in November 2002 (33% of 194,600 registration) 

• 161,600 VBM ballots issued in November 2018 (74% of 217,400 registration) 

• Help America Vote Act (HAVA) - 2002 

• Made sweeping reforms to the voting process nationwide, provided funding for new voting systems, and required 
accessible voting machines at every polling place for disabled voters beginning in 2008 

• Procured and Deployed Accessible Ballot Marking Devices in all polling places – June 2006 

• All poll workers trained on the use of the DREs pursuant to HAVA 

 



Changing Elections Landscape 

2 

• Military & Overseas Voter Empowerment (MOVE) Act – 2009 

• Expanded UOCAVA to provide greater protections to service members, their families, and other overseas citizens 

• Top-Two open primary - 2010 

• All voters receive a ballot with all candidates for voter-nominated offices. Presidential Primary and County Central 
Committee elections are still conducted as traditional modified closed primary elections once  every four years.  

• Voter Pre-Registration for 16 and 17 year-olds - 2017 

• County Elections Officials monitor these voters and ensure that they are notified to vote when they turn 18 

• Postage Plus Three - 2016 

• Allows VBM ballots to be counted if postmarked and received within three days of Election Day 

• Eight Day Cure - Missing Signature on VBM Envelope - 2016 

• Requires Elections Official to outreach voters - Allows for voters to provide a missing signature within eight days after 
Election Day 

• Elections Security - After November 2016 General Election 

• Security continues to be a major issue for all County Elections Officials as it impacts every facet of Elections 

• On January 6, 2017 Department of Homeland Security designated Elections as a Critical Infrastructure Subset 



Changing Elections Landscape 

3 

• Voter May Authorize Any Person to Deliver VBM Ballot - 2017 
• Previously, voters needed to designate a family member or a person residing in the voter’s household to return the ballot 

• VBM Ballot May Be Delivered to Any County in the State - 2017 
• No later than eight days after receipt, County Elections Officials shall forward the ballot to the county in which the ballot 

was issued 

• California Voters’ Choice Act (SB 450) - 2017 
• Provides for fourteen counties to opt in for a program to hold 100% VBM elections with VBM drop boxes and early vote 

centers (five counties implemented in 2018 with several others implementing in 2020) 

• California Voting For All Act – Requires Non-English Facsimile Ballots at Certain Polling Places - 2016 
• Inyo County is now required to provide facsimile ballots in Spanish 

• Eight Day Cure – Signature on VBM Envelope does not match - 2018 
• Requires counties to outreach voters when the signature on a VBM envelope does not match the signature on file 

• New Motor Voter (AB1461) - 2018 
• Allows DMV to register to vote any customer who is applying for a driver’s license, making an address change, or renewing 

their licenses unless they choose to opt out of the process (voter registration in California is at an all-time high of 20M, up 
from 19M in May 2018) 

• Conditional Voter Registration - 2018 
• Allows voters to register and cast a provisional ballot after the close of registration and on Election Day 

• Many thousands of voters took advantage of this new law in 2018, and many counties had several hour long waits for 
people looking to register in the days leading up to Election Day 
 



Changing Elections Landscape 

4 

• Extension to Eight Day Cure - Missing Signature on VBM Envelope - 2018 

• Secretary of State extended the missing signature cure to 28 days (not determined to be lawful by a court) 

• Prepaid Postage on All Returned VBM Ballots - 2019 

• Requires counties to pay for postage on all returned VBM ballots and to ensure that USPS processes timely returns on 
election-related material 

• Increasing No Party Preference (NPP) Registration 

• New Motor Voter driving a significant increase in NPP registration across the State and in Inyo County 

• County Elections are required to outreach all NPP voters prior to Primary election and notify them of party ballot choices 

• Elections anticipates a significant workload as NPP voters realize they are not able to vote for a Presidential candidate 
and choose to re-register on Election Day using CVR 

• Risk Limiting Audits (AB 2125) - 2018 

• Allows counties to pilot Risk Limiting Audits (RLA) in 2020 before becoming mandatory in 2024 

• Voting System Replacement - 2017 

• Prior system acquired in 2006.  

• Current system acquired in 2017. 



Changing Elections Landscape 

5 

• Remote Accessible Vote By Mail (RAVBM) - 2018 

• Disabled and/or military and/or overseas voters need to have the ability to cast a ballot using a certified remote accessible 
vote by mail system 

• No Party Preference (NPP) Crossover Voting - March 2020 Primary 

• Voters registered NPP may request a party ballot, if allowed 

• If not allowed, they now have the ability to re-register and request a party ballot, even on Election Day (and at the polls if 
pending legislation SB 72 passes) 

• Pending Legislation 

• SB 72 - CVR at the polls (in assembly appropriations) 

• AB 681  Allows for a voter to change address or party on Election Day – without reregistering in full (in Senate 
appropriations) 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Information Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 4 to the Contract #CA2012.004 (“Master Agreement”) between the 
County of Inyo and Manatron, Inc. – a Thompson Reuters Business extending the term to November 30, 2019, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The current Amendment #3 to the County’s Master Agreement with Thomson Reuters expires September 30, 
2019, and the County has seen significant progress toward implementing the Thomson Reuter’s Aumentum 
Property Tax Management System (PTMS) since the your Board entered into Amendment #3 effective April 30, 
2018.  Thomson Reuters has been working closely with Inyo County to convert our data and implement their 
conventional off-the-shelf (COTS) version of the Aumentum PTMS for smaller counties.  Our implementation 
timeline, however, will not result in the system being live by September 30, 2019.  

On behalf of the Assessor, Auditor and Tax Collector, I am requesting that we enter into Amendment #4 with 
Thomson-Reuters with the expectation of Go Live prior to November 30, 2019.  The legal and financial 
protections from the previous Amendments remain in place and can be executed after February 28, 2020, should 
the County deem it necessary to terminate our relationship with Thomson Reuters.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
In addition to the recommended action there are alternatives:

1)  Terminate the existing contract under the existing terms.  This is not recommended as the County will be left with 
the decision of either attempt to continue to use the legacy application that may not have support, or negotiate a 
contract to implement either an incomplete system that is still in development, or implement an expensive solution with 
no guarantees of functional flexibility or known future costs.
2)  Disregard the negotiated Amendment and initiate legal action against Thomson Reuters seeking full restitution of 
monies paid and additional liquidated damages.  Based on the previous PTMS working group evaluation of alternatives 
to the present project and consideration of risks, this alternative is not recommended for several reasons:
            a. Legal proceedings could take a long time to resolve and, provide no assurances that the County would 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

absolutely prevail;
            b. Unless and until the County prevailed in the legal proceedings, it would need to identify additional funding to 
move forward with an alternative property tax management system solution.
            c. Alternative property tax management systems are scarce. The only other potential solutions are either 
incomplete or functionally inflexible for our purposes.  The full costs of any needed 3rd party solutions to provide the 
functionality that we have already seen in the Aumentum demonstrations are currently difficult to quantify.
3)  Disregard the negotiated Amendment and attempt to negotiate additional conditions with Thomson Reuters.  This is 
not recommended, as Thomson Reuters will not have legal incentive to negotiate further.
4)  Disregard the negotiated Amendment and continue the project under the existing contract status quo.  This is not 
recommended because there are no assurances under the existing contract and no monetary credits from the 
Thomson Reuters for County cost overruns.

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Funding for this project is in the FY 2019-2020 Property Tax Upgrade budget , and funding for the expected ongoing support 
following Go Live is the the FY 2019-2020 Information Services Maintenance of Computer Systems budget .
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. PTMS Amend 4 Signed by TR 20190912 - Complete
 
APPROVALS:
Scott Armstrong Created/Initiated - 9/12/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/12/2019
Scott Armstrong Approved - 9/12/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/12/2019
David Stottlemyre Approved - 9/12/2019
Alisha McMurtrie Approved - 9/12/2019
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 9/12/2019







 

 

Aumentum Implementation - SOW 

 

 
Inyo County, CA, Contract #CA2012.004 Page 1 of 3 

   

Sensitivity: Confidential 

Sensitivity: Confidential 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 - DELIVERABLE ACCEPTANCE STATEMENT (DAS) 

GO LIVE AUTHORIZATION  

 
Purpose: 
The purpose of this acceptance form is for the Customer to authorize Go Live and transition to support. 
 
DAS Acceptance Criteria: 

1. TRTA Gov and the County have completed a production cutover plan, identifying resource needs and timeline 
expectations. 

a. Any associated travel and travel expenses have been authorized by both parties, with at least 15 days 
advance notice booking. 

b. Both TRTA Gov and Client personnel are available for Go Live work. 
2. The Client and TRTA Gov agree the system is ready for production. 
3. The Client has provided an updated list of any known software issues and severity rankings. 
4. System training has been delivered, with the remainder of training to be delivered in January 2020.  
5. TRTA Gov and the Client have mutually agreed upon: 

a. Fault items required for Go-Live - see Attachment A (attach detailed list to this DAS). 
b. The final list of project work and delivery dates which will be used for Final Acceptance – see Attachment B 

(attach detailed list to this DAS).   The project team will be responsible for the delivery of all Go Live and Final 
Acceptance items. 

c. The Go Live and Final Acceptance lists will address all items ranked as Severity 1 or 2 (Critical and High) as 
defined by the contract terms. 

d. The Final Acceptance list will address all remaining project work to be delivered, including remaining training 
and testing support as well as contracted hours for custom reports and interfaces. 

e. All other project issues ranked as Severity 3 or 4 will be responded to in accordance with the Master 
Agreement. 

6. System Go Live, expected between 10/31/2019 and 11/30/2019,  and Transition to Support is established as 
__________. 

7. Nothing in the foregoing shall prevent the County from raising additional software issues after Go Live, per section 3 
of Amendment #4. 

8. Any newly identified items from the point of transition date at Go Live will be submitted to and resolved by the TRTA 
Gov Customer Operations (Support) team, with support from Professional Services as needed. 

9. With this sign off, it is expected that all prior DAS milestone sign offs are accepted as complete and billed as 
applicable, exception being Final Acceptance. 

 
Client response period for signing this DAS is 5 business days.  This timeframe supersedes other contractual references to 
response periods. After that time, this DAS will be considered accepted and ready for billing unless otherwise documented in 
a formal response to TRTA Gov with detailed rationale for rejecting of this milestone. Rejection of a milestone will result in 
immediate escalation and halt the project for further review. 
 
We, the undersigned, agree that the system is ready for production cutover (Go Live), this project work is complete (except 
where outlined in Go Live and Final Acceptance lists), and that under the conditions of this Statement of Work____________,  
Master Agreement #CA2012.004,and Schedule ___________. The Customer will be billed $0.00 upon signing this 
acceptance.  Refer to Exhibit 2018-12 of Amendment 3 for annual billing terms. It is agreed to proceed with the Final 
Acceptance phase of this project. 

 

☐Accepted  ☐Rejected 



 

 

Aumentum Implementation - SOW 

 

 
Inyo County, CA, Contract #CA2012.004 Page 2 of 3 

   

Sensitivity: Confidential 

Sensitivity: Confidential 

Inyo County TRTA Gov: 
Signature: Signature: 

Printed Name: Printed Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Aumentum Implementation - SOW 

 

 
Inyo County, CA, Contract #CA2012.004 Page 3 of 3 

   

Sensitivity: Confidential 

Sensitivity: Confidential 

ATTACHMENT 2 - DELIVERABLE ACCEPTANCE STATEMENT (DAS) 

FINAL ACCEPTANCE  
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of this acceptance form is for the Customer to sign off on Final System Acceptance. 
 
Acceptance Criteria: 

 
1. The system is in a production environment.  
2. TRTA Gov has delivered all Final Acceptance project work attached to the Deliverable Acceptance Statement, Go 

Live Authorization.  
3. Any change requests not identified in the attached list will follow the Change Management Process and be 

implemented and billed separately. 

 
This service was completed on: _________________________________. (insert date). 
 
The Customer response period for signing this DAS is 5 business days.  This timeframe supersedes other contractual 
references to response periods.  After that time, this deliverable will be considered accepted and ready for billing unless 
otherwise documented in a formal response to TRTA Gov with detailed rational for rejecting of this milestone.  Rejection of a 
milestone will result in immediate escalation and halt the project for further review.   
 
We, the undersigned, agree that this work is complete and that under the conditions of this Statement of Work, Master 
Agreement XXX, and Schedule # YYY the Jurisdiction will be billed $ 0.00 upon signing this acceptance.  Refer to Exhibit 
2018-12 of Amendment 3 for annual billing amounts. It is agreed that with this Final Acceptance, the project is complete. 

 

☐Accepted  ☐Rejected 

Inyo County TRTA Gov: 
Signature: Signature: 

Printed Name: Printed Name: 

Title: Title: 

Date: Date: 

 



 

Document Version 0.1 

Attachment 3  
Inyo County – Post Go Live Training Plan & Cirriculum 

 

Sensitivity: Confidential 

Below are anticipated training sessions (some of which is refresher training) that may be delivered after October 31, 2019.  

Depending on the audience, some sessions will be run in parallel. 

 

Review of - Records Functionality Training ~.5 days 

 Records Corrections - .5 day 
 

Review of - AA Functionality Training ~2 days 

 Roll Processes - 0.5 day 

 Candidate Value Selection - 0.25 day 

 Exclusions - 0.25 day 

 Base Values - 0.25 day  

 MCL Process – 0.5 day 
  

Review of - RPA Functionality Training ~ 3 days 

 Land and Neighborhood analysis - 1 day 

 Income Comps - 1 day 

 Benchmark Comps - .5 day 

 BAP processing - .5 day 
  

Review of -PPA Functionality Training ~2 days 

 Account Processing in Busy Season - .50 day  

 Batch and Bulk Processes - .50 day  

 Electronic Fillings – 1 days 
 
 Review of - Tax Functionality Training ~1 day 

 General Ledger Export and Payments – 0.25 days 

 Tax Estimator/ERAF Revenue Forecast – 0.25 days 

 J-29 Report - 0.25 day 
 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - First 5
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:  Sharon Wilson 
 
SUBJECT:  First 5 Presentation of 2019-2024 Strategic Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive a presentation regarding the First 5 Commission's newly adopted 2019-2024 Strategic 
Plan.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The First 5 Inyo Commission adopted a new strategic plan on June 27, 2019, envisioning the next five years of 
programs and initiatives that help prepare Inyo County’s youngest children and their families for success. First 5 
Inyo is committed to being a strong organization that serves as a catalyst of sustained positive change for 
children birth to five and their families. Through the strategic plan, the First 5 Inyo Commission has prioritized 
investments that ensure all families are resilient and raising happy, healthy and thriving children.

As all First 5’s across California, First 5 Inyo faces diminishing revenues. Included in the Strategic Plan is the 
Long-Range Financial Plan, outlining how the Commission will use the fund balance to offset these declining 
revenues, and pursue external revenue sources to ensure the needs of our children and families are being met.

This strategic plan is the result of a six-month participatory process that included: sending a survey to over 150 
partners and receiving 60 responses, conducting six in-depth interviews with key stakeholders, convening a 
retreat with the First 5 Commission and key partners, and engaging Inyo County Health & Human Services staff, 
managers, and leadership. Included in the Strategic Plan is a full summary of the needs assessment guiding the 
focus of the plan. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could choose not to hear from First 5.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
No funding is associated with this agenda item.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Sharon Wilson Created/Initiated - 9/11/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/11/2019
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 9/11/2019



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  September 17, 2019 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Budget amendment to Budget 150504 and Amendment 1 to the contract with Wadell Engineering 
Corps. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Pavement Budget (Budget 150504) as 
follows:  
     1. increase estimated revenue in State Grant (Revenue Code 4498) by $7,835;
     2. increase estimated revenue in Federal Grant (Revenue Code 4555) by $156,710;
     3. increase estimated revenue in Operating Transfer In (Revenue Code 4998) by $9,576;
     4. increase appropriation in Object Code Construction in Progress (Object Code 5700) by $199,122;
     5. decrease appropriation in Object Code Professional Services (Object Code 5265) by $25,001;

B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Auditor Controller – Geothermal (Budget 010408) by increasing 
appropriation in Operating Transfer Out (Object Code 5801) by $9,576 (4/5 vote required); and

C) Approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Wadell Engineering Corp. 
(WEC) of Burlingame, CA, to increase the contract to an amount not to exceed $126,465.00, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon receipt of the forthcoming FAA grant for the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport 
Runway Rehabilitation Project and all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On April 16, 2019, your Board awarded a 5 year Master Agreement to WEC to provide engineering and planning 
services for various Airport Improvement Projects on an as-needed basis.  The Master Agreement requires 
Amendments be executed in order to add specific County Airport projects that require WEC services.

On December 31, 2018 the County applied for an Airport Improvement Project (AIP) Grant from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) for the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport to carry out construction of the Lone Pine 
Runway Rehabilitation Project.  On July 3rd,  2019 bids were opened for this project. The low bid exceeded the 
amount of federal funding programed for the project, however the FAA allocated additional funds to cover the 
overage.  The budget amendment in this agenda item account for the changes to estimated expenses and 
revenue for the construction project.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Amendment 1 to the contract with WEC will add construction support for this project to the scope of work of the 
on-call contract, as shown in Attachment A-1: Scope of Work -  LONE PINE / DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT – 
RUNWAY REHABILITATION CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
April 16, 2019 - On-call contract awarded to WEC

June 11, 2019    Approval of the Plans and Specifications for the Runway Rehabilitation Project

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the amendment to the contract. This is not recommended, as 
construction inspection and material testing is required by the FAA, who is funding this project, and the County 
does not have the facilities or personnel to carry this out internally.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
FAA
California Division of Aeronautics (CDA)
 
FINANCING:
The Project, and this amendment, will be funded by the FAA’s AIP, which will reimburse the County for ninety 
percent (90%) of the cost of the amendment, and by the CDA’s matching grant program, which will reimburse the 
County for four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the cost of the amendment. The reimbursable costs will be paid 
through budget unit 150504, Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Pavement, object code 5265, Professional Services 
in the amount of $111,875.00.

The County's cost share of this contract will be $6,153.13, however if State funds are not available, the full match 
amount could be $11,187.50. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Wadell Engineering Contract
2. WEC Amendment 1
 
APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms Created/Initiated - 8/29/2019
Darcy Ellis Approved - 8/30/2019
Ashley Helms Approved - 9/10/2019
Breanne Nelums Approved - 9/10/2019
Michael Errante Approved - 9/11/2019
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 9/11/2019
Amy Shepherd Approved - 9/12/2019
Clint Quilter Approved - 9/12/2019
Michael Errante Final Approval - 9/12/2019



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Supemisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 16th day of April 2019 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
Wadell
Engineering
Contract, Budget
Amendment

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Totheroh to:
A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Bishop Airport Operating Transfer Out (Budget

150100 Object Code 5801) by increasing by $1,459;
B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Bishop Airport-Taxiway Rehabilitation Budget (Budget

630305) as follows (4/5th vote required): increase estimated revenue in Federal Grants
(Revenue Code 4555) by $13,131; increase estimated revenue in Bishop Airport
Operating Transfer ln (Revenue Code 4998) by $1,459, which will be paid from the
Bishop Airport Operating Budget (Budget 150100); and increase appropriations in
Professional Services (Object Code 5265) by $14,590; and

C) Approve lnyo County Standard Gontract No. 161 between the County of lnyo and Wadell
Engineering Corporation of Burlingame, CA for On-Call Airport Architectural, Engineering
and Planning Services in an amount not to exceed $14,590 for the period of April 16,
2019 through April 15,2024, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained.

Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Griffiths absent.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this Idh
oay of April, 2019

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor X
cAo
Other: PublicWorks
DATE: April 25,2019

By:
&Ab;,r



AGENDA REQUEST F'ORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COTINTY OF INYO
E Consent fi Departmental I Conespondence Action E Public Hearing

E Schedule time for I Closed Session E Informational

FROM: Public Works Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: flPR T6'zors

SUBJECT: Approve a Contract/\4aster Agreement for On-Call Airport Architectural, Engineering and Planning Services

with Wadell Engineering Corporation (WEC) of Burlingame, California.

DEPARTMENTAL R.EC OMMENDATIONS :

1. Request your board approve Inyo County Standard Contract No. 161 between the County of Inyo and WEC for
On-Call Airport Architectural, Engineering and Planning Services in an amount not to exceed $14,590 for the
period from April 16,2019 through April15,2024;

2. Authorize the chairperson to execute the contract, contingent upon obtaining appropriate signatures;

3. Amend the Fiscal Yeat 207812019 Bishop Airport Operating Transfer Out (Budget 150100 Object Code 5801) by
increasing by $1,459; and

4. Amend the Fiscal Year 201812019 Bishop Airport - Taxiway Rehabilitation (Budget 630305 as follows (4/5's
vote required):

a. lncrease estimated revenue in Federal Grants (Revenue Code 4555) by $13,131;
b. Increase estimated revenue in Bishop Airport Operating Transfer In (Revenue Code 4998) by $1,459,
which will be paid from the Bishop Airport Operating Budget (150100);
c. Increase appropriations in Professional Services (Object Code 5265) by $14,590;

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: Under FAA guidelines, an Architectural & Engineering Design contract must not extend
past 5 years from the beginning of the first project. The existing on-call contract between WEC and the County for
architectural and engineering design reached this 5 year threshold in November of 2018, prompting Public Works to
advertise for Requests for Qualifications for a new on-call contract. The Public Works Department recently solicited for
interested consultants to provide On-Call Airport Architectural, Engineering and Planning Services for the Bishop and

Lone Pine Airports for projects that are funded by the Federal Aviation Administration's (FAA) Airport Capital
Improvement Program (ACIP). The potential projects include construction administration for the Bishop Taxiway
Rehabilitation and Lone Pine Pavement Rehabilitation, design of the Pavement Rehabilitation of Runway 12-30, and

others as funding is available. Three consultants who provide engineering services for airport projects submitted
Statements of Qualification for the work:

o Armstrong Engineering, Reno, Nevada
o TartagliaEngineering, Atascadero, Califomia
o Wadell Engineering Corporation, Burlingame, California

The respondents' qualifications were rated by two of the Public Works Department engineering and the CAO. WEC was
selected as the most qualified consultant to provide engineering services for these projects. The initial scope of work for
this contract includes design work for the relocation of airfield lighting where conflicts exist with new FAA design
standards for fillets between runways and taxiways. This design work will be included in the bid documents produced for
the Bishop Taxiway Rehabilitation Project.

New projects will be incorporated into the master agreement in the future by the formal amendment process.

For Clerk s Use

0nly:

AGENDA NUMBER

r8



ALTERNATIVES: The Board could choose not to approve the contract for On-Call Airport Architectural, Engineering
and Planning Services. This is not recommended because WEC as an outstanding record of project delivery for the Inyo
County airports, and the services associated with this contract are necessary for the success of the two FAA funded
construction projects slated for this summer.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The auditor's office to make payments to the contractor after the contract is awarded
County counsel to review and approve the contract;

FINANCING: The reimbursable costs of this Project will be paid through Budget Unit 630305, Object Code 5265

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date: 9Ot4,O4.1

BUDGET OFF'ICER SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) + Date: 4/qhq

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must beCOUNTY COUNSEL

Ilu*o ]MlxlL-
reviewed and approved by County Counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: oateA klll
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the auditor/controller prior to

4t(--)
submission to the board clerk.)

pgnSOfqU tfmfnfEmTEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by th6director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR

APPROVALS



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COT]NTY OF II{YO

AND Wadell Engineering Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF AirportArchitectural, Engineering and Planning SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for
AirportArchitectural, Engineering and Planning services of Wadelt Engineering Corporation

(hereinafter referred to as o'Consultanf'), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants,
terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND COI\DITIONS

1. SCOPE OF'WORK
The Consultant shall fumish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set

forth in Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County
to the Consultant to perform under this Agreement will be made by the

Public Works Director, Michael Errante . Requests to the
Consultant for work or services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the
County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that
any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Consultant bythe County
under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request
from Consultant the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some

need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Consultant at the County's request under this Agreement
will be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by
applicable federal, state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.

2. PERFORMANCE PERIOD
(Choose Option 1 or Option 2)

Option 1 - Standard Contract
A. This Contract shall go into effect on contingent upon

approval by County, and Consultant shall commence work after notification to proceed by County's
Contract Administrator. The Contract shall end on
Contract amendment.

unless extended by

B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on
County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page 1 of 22

071o2t2018



I Option 2 - On-Call Contracts
A. This Contract shall go into effect on APril 16,2019 contingent upon

approval by County, and Consultant shall commence work after notification to proceed by County's
Contract Administrator. The Contract shall end on

Contract amendment.

1 2024 unless extended by

B. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Contract award is not binding on
County until the Contract is fully executed and approved by County.

C. The period of performance for each specific project shall be in accordance with the
Task Order for that project. If work on a Task Order is in progress on the expiration date of this
Contract, the terms of the Contract shall be extended by Contract amendment.

3. CONSIDERATION
A. Compensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with the Schedule of

Fees (set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are

performed by Consultant at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Consultant for the travel expenses

and per diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under
this Agreement. Consultant shall request approval by the County prior to incuning any travel or per

diem expenses. Requests by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be

submitted to the
Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed in accordance with the rates set forth in the
Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C). County reseryes the right to deny
reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per diem expenses which are either in excess of the

amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by the
Consultant without the prior approval of the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement,

Consultant shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from Counfi, any additional consideration,
compensation, salary wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this
Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to
consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement benefits, disability
retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves of absence of any
type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount nayable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments

made by the County to Consultant for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not
exceed fourteen thousand five hundred and ninety $, t+.SgO .OO) Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract
limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by
Consultant for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billine and payment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an

itemized statement of all hours spent by Consultant in performing services and work described in

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)

Page2 of 22

0710212018



Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This statement will be submiffed to the
County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month. The statement to be submitted will cover the
period from the first (lst) day of the preceding month through and including the last day of the
preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the hours were worked and

describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day. Consultant 's statement to the

County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses, which have been

approved in advance by County, incurred by Consultant during that period. The itemized statement
for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of
the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the
last day of the month.

Federal and State taxes.
(l) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not

withhold any federal or state income taxes or social security from
any payments made by County to Consultant under the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold Califomia State income taxes from payments

made under this Agreement to non-Califomia resident independent
Consultant's when it is anticipated that total annual payments to
Consultant under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four
hundred ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any

taxes or payments from sums paid by County to Consultant under
this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such

sums is the sole responsibilify of Consultant. County has no
responsibility or liability for payment of Consultant's taxes or
assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes withheld
from payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported

annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the Califomia State

Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall
complete and submit to the County an Intemal Revenue Service
(IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE
Consultant's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified

in Attachment A, which are requested by the County. It is understood by Consultant that the
performance of these services and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange

his/her own schedule, but will coordinate with County to insure that all services and work requested

by County under this Agreement will be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 1 61

(lndependent Consultant)

Page3 oI 22

F

07t02t2018



5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS
Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal

govemments for Consultant to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be
procured by Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as

otherwise may be required. Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain
such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits
may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and

business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and maintained in force
by Consultant at no expense to the County. Consultant will provide County, upon execution of this
Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required
to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Consultant
and County as to what licenses, ceftificates, and permits are required to perform the services
identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

6. CERTIFICATIONOF'OFFERER/BIDDERREGARDINGDEBARMENT
By submitting a bid/proposal under this solicitation, the bidder or offeror certifies that

neither it, Consultant nor its principals are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions
by any federal department or agency from participation in this transaction. Consultant also
warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds as listed in the List of
Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs issued by the General
Services Administration available at: http ://www.sam. gov.

7. CERTIFICATION OF LOWER TIER CONTRACTORS REGARDING
DEBARMENT

The successful bidder, by administering each lower tier subcontract that exceeds

$25,000 as a "covered transaction", must verifr each lower tier participant of a "covered
transaction" under the project is not presently debarred or otherwise disqualified from
participation in this federally assisted project. The successful bidder will accomplish this by:

l. Checking the System for Award Management at website: http:i/www.sam.gov.
2. Collecting a certification statement similar to the Certification of Offerer/Bidder

Regarding Debarment, above.
3. Inserting a clause or condition in the covered transaction with the lower tier contract.

If the Federal Aviation Administration later determines that a lower tier participant failed to
disclose to a higher tier participant that it was excluded or disqualified at the time it entered the
covered transaction, the FAA may pursue any available remedies, including suspension and
debarment of the non-compliant participant.

8. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLTES, EQIIIPMENT, ET CETERA
Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference

materials, and telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide the services identified in
Attachment A to this Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any
expense or cost incurred by Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for

County of lnyo FM - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 4 of 22

07t02t2018



the costs and expenses incurred by Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole

responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

9. DISADVAI\TAGEDBUSINESSENTERPRISES
Contract Assurance ($ 26.13)

The Consultant or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The Consultant shall carry out
applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of Department of
Transpoftation-assisted contracts. Failure by the Consultant to carry out these requirements is a
material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such

other remedy as the County deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:
1) Withholding monthly progress payments;

2) Assessingsanctions;

3) Liquidated damages; andlor

4) Disqualiffing the Consultant from future bidding as non-responsible.

Prompt Payment ($26.29)
The prime Consultant agrees to pay each subcontractor under this prime contract for

satisfactory performance of its contract no later than 14 days from the receipt of each payment

the prime Consultant receives from County. The prime Consultant agrees further to return
retainage payments to each subcontractor within 14 days after the subcontractor's work is
satisfactorily completed. Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced

time frame may occur only for good cause following written approval of the County. This
clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors.

10. TEXTING WHEN DRIVING
In accordance with Executive Order l35l3, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text

Messaging While Driving", (101112009) and DOT Order 3902.10, "Text Messaging While
Driving", (L213012009), the Federal Aviation Administration encourages recipients of Federal
grant funds to adopt and enforce safety policies that decrease ctashes by distracted drivers,
including policies to ban text messaging while driving when performing work related to a grant

or sub-grant.

In support of this initiative, the County encourages the Consultant to promote policies

and initiatives for its employees and other work personnel that decrease crashes by distracted

drivers, including policies that ban text messaging while driving motor vehicles while
performing work activities associated with the project. The Consultant must include the

substance of this clause in all sub-tier contracts exceeding $3,500 that involve driving a motor
vehicle in performance of work activities associated with the project.

11. CLEAN AIR AND WATER POLLUTION CONTROL
(Applies to all contracts that exceed $150,000)

Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, and regulations issued

pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 USC $ 7a0-767|q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page 5 ol 22

0710212018



Act as amended (33 USC $ l25l-1387). The Consultant agrees to report any violation to the
County immediately upon discovery. The County assumes responsibility for notiffing the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Federal Aviation Administration.
Contractor must include this requirement in all subcontracts that exceeds $ 150,000.

12. ENERGYCONSERVATIONREQUIREMENTS
Consultant and Subcontractor agree to cornply with mandatory standards and policies

relating to energy efficiency as contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in
compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 USC 620let seq).

13. FEDERAL F'ArR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA)
All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference

the provisions of 29 CFR part 201, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), with the same
force and effect as if given in full text. The FLSA sets minimum wage, overtime pay,
recordkeeping, and child labor standards for full and part-tirne workers.

The Consultant has full responsibility to monitor compliance to the referenced statute or
regulation. The Consultant must address any claims or disputes that arise from this requirement
directly with the U.S. Department of Labor - Wage and Hour Division.

14. TRADERESTRICTIONCERTIFICATION
By submission of an offer, the Offeror certifies that with respect to this solicitation and

any resultant contract, the Offeror -
l) is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the

list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the Office of the
United States Trade Representative (USTR);

2) has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person
that is a citizen or national of a foreign country included on the list of countries that
discriminate against U.S. firms as published by the USTR; and

3) has not entered into any subcontract for any product to be used on the Federal project
that is produced in a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate
against U.S. finns published by the USTR.
This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United

States of America and the making of a false, fictitious, or fraudulent certification may render
the maker subject to prosecution under Title l8 USC Section 1001.

The Offeror/Contractor must provide immediate written notice to the County if the
Offeror/Contractor learns that its certification or that of a subcontractor was erroneous when
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. The Consultant must
require subcontractors provide immediate written notice to the Consultant if at any time it
learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in
accordance with 49 CFR 30.17, no contract shall be awarded to an Offeror or subcontractor:

1) who is owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country
included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms published by the
USTR or

County of lnyo FAA - No. 1 61

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 6 of 22

07102t2018



2) whose subcontractors are owned or controlled by one or more citizens or nationals of a
foreign country on such USTR list or

3) who incorporates in the public works project any product of a foreign country on such

USTR list.
Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be consfiued to require establishment of a

system of records in order to render, in good faith, the certification required by this provision.
The knowledge and information of a Consultant is not required to exceed that which is

normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
The Offeror agrees that, if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will

incorporate this provision for certification without modification in all lower tier subcontracts.
The Consultant may rely on the certification of a prospective subcontractor that it is not a firm
from a foreign country included on the list of countries that discriminate against U.S. firms as

published by USTR, unless the Offeror has knowledge that the certification is eroneous.
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed

when rnaking an award. If it is later detennined that the Consultant or subcontmctor knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) may direct
through the County cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the

County or the FAA.

15. CERTIFICATIONREGARDINGLOBBYING
The Bidder or Offeror certifies by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the

best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
(l) No Federal appropriated ftinds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the

Bidder or Offeror, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal

contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,

amendment. or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan. or cooperative
agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency,

a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an ernployee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
"Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the

award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and

contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients
shall certifr and disclose accordingly.
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed

when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352,title 31. U.S. Code. Any
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less

than $ 10,000 and not more than $ 100,000 for each such failure.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 1 61

(lndependent Consultant)

PageT ot22
07t0212018



16. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AI{D HEALTH ACT OF 1970
All contracts and subcontracts that result from this solicitation incorporate by reference

the requirements of 29CFRPart l9l0 with the same force and effect as if given in full text.
The employer must provide a work environment that is free from recognized hazards that may
cause death or serious physical harm to the employee. The employer retains full responsibility
to monitor its compliance and their subcontractor's compliance with the applicable
requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (20 CFR Part 1910). The
employer must address any claims or disputes that pertain to a referenced requirement directly
with the U.S. Department of Labor - Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

17. CERTIFICATION OF OFF'ERER/BIDDER REGARDING TAX
DELINQUENCY AND FELOI\-Y CONVICTIONS

The applicant must complete the following two certification statements. The applicant
must indicate its current status as it relates to tax delinquency and felony conviction by inserting
a checkmark (/) in the space following the applicable response. The applicant agrees that, if
awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation, it will incorporate this provision for
ceftification in all lower tier subcontracts.

Certifications
1) The applicant represents that it is ( ) is not ( ) a corporation that has any unpaid

Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative
remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely
manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax
liability.

2) The applicant represents that it is ( ) is not ( ) is not a corporation that was convicted
of a criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 24 months.

3) Term Definitions
4) Felony conviction: Felony conviction means a conviction within the preceding twenty-

four
5) (24) months of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law and includes
6) conviction of an offense defined in a section of the U.S. code that specifically classifies
7) the offense as a felony and conviction of an offense that is classified as a felony under 18

8) U.S.C. $ 3sse.
9) Tax Delinquency: A tax delinquency is any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been

assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have
lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the
authoiity responsible for collecting the tax liability.

18. VETERAN'S PREF'ERENCE
In the employment of labor (excluding executive, administrative, and supervisory

positions), the Consultant and all sub-tier Consultants must give preference to covered veterans
as defined within Title 49 United States Code Section 47112. Covered veterans include
Vietnam-era veterans, Persian Gulf veterans, Afghanistan-Iraq war veterans, disabled veterans,
and small business concerns (as defined by l5 USC 632) owned and controlled by disabled

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page I ol 22

07to2t2018



veterans. This preference only applies when there are covered veterans readily available and

qualified to perform the work to which the employment relates.

19. COT]NTY PROPERTY
A. Personal Prope4v of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to,

protective or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by

County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole

and exclusive property of County. Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and

maintain such items while they are in Consultant's possession. Consultant will be financially
responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Consultant's

negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Services Any and all compositions,
publications, plans, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video
tapes, computer programs, computer disks, computer iapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio

recordings, films, audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions,
patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced,

assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Consultant's services or
work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and

exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement, Consultant will convey
possession and title to all such properties to County.

20. TNSURANCE REQUTREMENTS FOR PROFESSTONAL SERVICES
For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintain insurance of the

scope and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

2I. STATUSOF'CONST]LTAI\T
All acts of Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of

this Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, offtcers, or

employees of County. Consultant, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur
any obligation on behalf of County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has

no authority or responsibility to exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent,

officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be considered an employee of County. It is understood

by both Consultant and Counfy that this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed

or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture. As an independent

Consultant:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work
and services to be provided by Consultant under this Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results

specified in this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be

subjected to County's control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in
fu lfi llment of this Agreement.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page9 of 22

07to2t20't8



C. Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term
of this Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultant's, and not as

employees of County.

22. DEF'ENSE AND II\DEMNIFICATION
For professional services rendered under this Contract, Consultant agrees to indemni$,

including the cost to defend, entity and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and
against any and all claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to
the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant and its employees or agents in
the performance of services under this contract, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for
damages arising from the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful acts of the County; and
does not apply to any passive negligence of the County unless caused at least in part by the
Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless
Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses,
judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees,

arising out of, or resulting from, the active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or
employees.

23. ACCESS TO RECORDS, REPORTS AI\D AUDIT
A. Records. Consultant must prepare and maintain an acceptable cost accounting

system and maintain all records required by the various provisions of this Agreement, federal, state,
and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions. The Consultant agrees to provide the
County, the Federal Aviation Administration and the Comptroller General of the United States or
any oftheir duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records
of the Consultant which are directly pertinent to the specific contract for the purpose of making
audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. Consultant shall maintain these records for a
minimum of four (4) years after final payment is made and the termination or completion of this
Agreement. Consultant may fuIfilI its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph
by substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. Inspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have
access to any books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of
Consultant, which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making
audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be
maintained by Consultant. Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or
otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this Agreement.

24. EQUAL OPPORTUNTTY CLAUSE
During the performance of this contract, the Consultant agrees as follows:

(l) The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Consultant will
take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are
treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identify, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page'10 oI 22

07to2t2018



limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff, or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Consultant agrees

to post irr conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment,
notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
(2) The Consultant will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or
on behalf of the Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations
for employment without regard to race, colot, religion, sex, or national origin.
(3) The Consultant will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which
it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be

provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Consultant's
commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places

available to employees and applicants for employment.
(4) The Consultant will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of
Labor.
(5) The Consultant will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of
Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by
the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to
asceftain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
(6) In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of
this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be

canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Consultant may be declared

ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965,

and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of
Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
(7) The Consultant will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding

paragraph (l) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subconttact or
purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor
issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, so that
such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Consultant will
take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering
agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for
noncompliance: Provided, hou,ever, that in the event a Consultant becomes involved in,
or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction
by the administering agency the Consultant may request the United States to enter into
such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

25. GENERAL CIVIL RIGHTS PROVISIONS
The Consultant agrees to comply with pertinent statutes, Executive Orders and such

rules as are promulgated to ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, creed, color,

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page 11 of 22

0710212018



national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from participating in any activity conducted
with or benefiting from Federal assistance.

This provision binds the Consultant and subcontractors from the bid solicitation period
through the completion of the contract. This provision is in addition to that required by Title VI
ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1964.

26. TrTLE VI - COMPLTANCE WrTH NONDTSCRTMTNATION REQUTREMENTS
During the performance of this contract, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and

successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor"), agrees as follows:

l. Compliance with Regulations: The Consultant (hereinafter includes
consultants) will comply with the Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts
and Authorities, as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

2. Nondiscrimination: The Consultant, with regard to the work performed by it
during the contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of
materials and leases of equipment. The Consultant will not participate directly or
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Nondiscrimination Acts and
Authorities, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity,
project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and
Equipment: In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by
the Consultant for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements
of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be
notified by the Consultant of the Consultant's obligations under this contract and the
Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin.

4. Information and Reports: The Consultant will provide all information and
reports required by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto
and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information,
and its facilities as may be determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation
Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Nondiscrimination
Acts and Authorities and instructions. Where any information required of a

Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the
information, the Consultant will so certiff to the sponsor or the Federal Aviation
Administration, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain
the information.

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a Consultant's noncompliance
with the non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the sponsor will impose such
contract sanctions as it or the Federal Aviation Administration may determine to be

appropriate, including, but not limited to:

County of lnyo FAA - No. 1 61

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 12 ol 22

0710212018



a. Withholding payments to the Consultant under the contract until the
Consultant complies; and/or

b. Cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The Consultant will include the provisions of
paragraphs one through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials
and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives
issued pursuant thereto. The Consultant will take action with respect to any

subcontract or procurement as the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration
may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance. Provided, that if the Consultant becomes involved in, or is

threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction,
the Consultant may request the sponsor to enter into any litigation to protect the

interests of the sponsor. In addition, the Consultant may request the United States to
enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Title VI List of Pertinent Nondiscrimination Acts and Authorities
During the performance of this contract, the Consultant, for itself, its assignees, and successors

in interest (hereinafter refemed to as the "Contractor") agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to:

r Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC $ 2000d et seq.,78 stat.252) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

o 49 CFR part 21 (Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the Department of
Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

r The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970,

(42 USC $ 4601) (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has

been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

r Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC $ 794 et seq.), as amended
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR part 27;

. The Age Disuimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC $ 610l et seq.) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age);

r Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982 (49 USC $ 471, Section 47123), as

amended (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100-209) (broadened the scope, coverage

and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of
the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the

Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and Consultants, whether such programs or
activities are Federally funded or not);

r Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, which prohibit
discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and
private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing
entities (42 USC $$ 12131 12189) as implemented by U.S. Department of
Transportation regulations at 49 CFR parts 37 and 38;

County of lnyo FM - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 13 of22
07to2l20'18



a

a

The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 USC 5 47123)
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against
minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with
disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority
and low-income populations;

Executive Order 13166,Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with
Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful
access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

Title IX of the Educa.tion Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 USC l68l et seq).

a

a

27. ASSIGNMENT
This is an agreement for the services of Consultant. County has relied upon the skills,

knowledge, experience, and training of Consultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.
Consultant shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express
written consent of County. Further, Consultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due

under this Agreement without the prior written consent of County.

28. BREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS
Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the Consultant or its

subcontractors may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action
that may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement.

County will provide Consultant written notice that describes the nature of the breach
and corrective actions the Consultant must undertake in order to avoid termination of the
contract. County reserves the right to withhold payments to Consultant until such time the
Consultant corrects the breach or the County elects to terminate the contract. The County's
notice will identiff a specific date by which the Consultant must correct the breach. County
may proceed with termination of the contract if the Consultant fails to correct the breach by the
deadline indicated in the County's notice.

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and
remedies available thereunder are in addition to, and not a limitation of, any duties, obligations,
rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.

29. TERMINATION F'OR CONVENIENCE
The County may, by written notice to the Consultant, terminate this Agreement for its

convenience and without cause or default on the part of Consultant. Upon receipt of the notice
of termination, except as explicitly directed by the County, the Consultant must immediately
discontinue all services affected.

County of lnyo FM - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 14 of 22

07102120'18



Upon termination of the Agreement, the Consultant must deliver to the County all data,

surveys, models, drawings, specifications, repofts, maps, photographs, estimates, summaries,

and other documents and materials prepared by the Engineer under this contract, whether
complete or partially complete.

County agrees to make just and equitable compensation to the Consultant for
satisfactory work completed up through the date the Consultant receives the termination notice.
Compensation will not include anticipated profit on non-performed services.

County further agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents

that are incomplete as a result of the tetmination action under this clause.

30. TERMINATION FOR DEFAI'LT
Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause if the other party fails to fulfill its

obligations that are essential to the completion of the work perthe terms and conditions of the
Agreement. The parfy initiating the termination action must allow the breaching party an

opportunity to dispute or cure the breach.

The terminating party must provide the breaching party [7] days advance written notice
of its intent to terminate the Agreement. The notice must specify the nature and extent of the
breach, the conditions necessary to cure the breach, and the effective date of the termination
action. The rights and remedies in this clause are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or under this agreement.

a) Termination by County: The County may terminate this Agreement in whole or in
part, for the failure of the Consultant to:
l. Perform the seruices within the time specified in this contract or by County approved

extension;

2. Make adequate progress so as to endanger satisfactory performance of the Project; or

3. Fulfill the obligations of the Agreement that are essential to the completion of the

Project.

Upon receipt of the notice of termination, the Consultant must immediately discontinue all
services affected unless the notice directs otherwise. Upon termination of the Agreement, the

Consultant must deliver to the County all data, surveys, models, drawings, specifications,
reports, maps, photographs, estimates, summaries, and other documents and materials
prepared by the Engineer under this contract, whether complete or partially complete.

County agrees to make just and equitable compensation to the Consultant for satisfactory
work completed up through the date the Consultant receives the termination notice.
Compensation will not include anticipated profit on non-performed services.

County further agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or omissions in documents that
are incomplete as a result of the termination action under this clause.

If, after finalization of the termination action, the County determines the Consultant was not
in default of the Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if
the County issued the termination for the convenience of the County.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 1 61

(lndependent Consultant)
Page 15 of22

07to2t2018



b) Termination by Consultant: The Consultant may terminate this Agreement in whole
or in part, if the County:
1. Defaults on its obligations under this Agreement;

2. Fails to make payment to the Consultant irr accordance with the terms of this
Agreement;

3. Suspends the Project for more than [80] days due to reasons beyond the control of the
Consultant.

Upon receipt of a notice of termination from the Consultant, County agrees to cooperate
with Consultant for the purpose of terminating the agreement or poftion thereof, by rnutual
consent. If County and Consultant cannot reach mutual agreement on the termination
settlement. the Consultant may. without prejudice to any rights and remedies it may have,
proceed with terminating all or parts of this Agreement based upon the County's breach of
the contract.

In the event of termination due to County breach, the Engineer is entitled to invoice County
and to receive full payment for all services performed or furnished in accordance with this
Agreement and alljustified reimbursable expenses incurred by the Consultant through the
effective date of termination action. County agrees to hold Consultant harmless for errors or
omissions in documents that are incomplete as a result of the termination actiorr under this
clause.

31. WAWER OF DEFAULT
Waiver of any default by either parly to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of

any subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed
to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of
the terms of this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph thirty-
seven (37) "Amendment" below.

32. CONT'IDENTIALITY
Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and

county laws, regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained,
or accessible by Consultant in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement,
shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such
information and records. Disclosure of such confidential, privileged, or protected information shall
be made by Consultant only with the express written consent of the County. Any disclosure of
confidential information by Consultant without the County's written consent is solely and

exclusively the legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving
public social services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in
accordance with Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and
lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all
information, records, and data elements pertaining to beneficiaries shall be protected by the
provider from unauthorized disclosure.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)

Page'16 ot 22

07t02t2018



33. CONFLICTS
Consultant agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect,

which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under

this Agreement.

34. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT
Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is

gained from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any
personal benefit, gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after

the termination of this Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County,

association, corporation, or person who, during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or
conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an adverse party in litigation with the County,

and conceming such, Consultant by virtue of this Agreement has gained access to the County's

confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

35. SEVERABILITY
If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall

be declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any
federal, state, or county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement, or the application thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this Agreement are severable.

36. FT]NDINGLI1VIITATION
The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various

sources. In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources,

County has the option to cancel, reduce, or modiff this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten
(10) days of its notiffing Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available

funding. Any reduction or modification of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must
comply with the requirements of paragraph thirty-seven (37) "Amendment."

37. AMEIIDMENT
This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the

mutual consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed

with the same formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

38. NOTICE
Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement,

including change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or
County shall be required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served,

or sent by prepaid first class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo FM - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page 17 oI 22

07to212018



County of Inyo:
Public Works Department
PO Drawer Q Address
lndependence, CA 93526 City and State

Consultant:
WadellEngineeringCorporation Name
PO Box 117370 Address
Burlingame, CA 9401 1-7370 City and State

39. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations,

inducements, promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or
incorporated herein by reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision
hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed
by the parties hereto.

---o0o---

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 18 of 22

0710212018



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COI]NTY OF INYO

Ai\D Wadell Engineering Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Airport Architectural. Planning and Engineering SERVICES

IN WITNESS TT{EREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND
SEALS THIS DAY OF

COUNTY OF II\-YO CONSULTANT

Signature Signature

Print or Type Name Print or Type Name

Dated: Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By:By:

h^^^" 0u^r,filr
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County of lnyo FAA - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 19 of 22

County Risk Manager

0710212018



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COT]NTY OF. IITIYO

A1\[D Wadell Engineeri Corporation

F''OR THE PROVISION OF Airoort Architectural. Pla ino and Fnoineerino SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: APril 16,2019 TO: April15,2024

SCOPE OF'WORK:

This is a five year, on-call contract with Wadell Engineering Corporation (WEC) for Airport Architectural,
Planning and Engineering Services to be funded by Airport lmprovement Program grants throught the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). Upon receipt of funding opportunities from the FAA, the County
shall request a Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees for the project from WEC. Each new project assigned
to WEC shall be incorporated into this contract by amendment, through action of the lnyo County Board of
Supervisors. There is no guarantee that future projects will be assigned to WEC under this contract, projects
are contingent on the availability of federal funding.

The initial Scope of Work for this contract is described as follows:

The Consultant will modiff lighting and signing plans for the Bishop Taxiway Rehabilitation Project,
which are being designed under a previous contract, to meet new FM requirements for lighting and
signing locations associated with FAA's new fillet design standards for the fillets at intersections of
D112, DlH, Dl17 , BlC, J/17 north, J/35 south, J/H north, J/H south, F/8 west, F/26 east, F/12 west,
F/30 east, F/A west, F/A east, H/35 north, and H/35 south.

The modifications require removal and relocation of light fixtures, removal and disposal of interfering can
bases and foundations, new cans with fixtures and associated wiring rerouting. Signs will be relocated as
needed to meet standards.

The design plans will depict coordinates of new lighting and signing locations and identification of fixtures
for removal. The quantities specific to each location will be depicted on the plans adjacent to the subject fillet.

All work shall be completed prior to June 30, 2019.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 1 61

(lndependent Consultant)

Page 2O ot 22

07t02t2018



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COT]NTY OF' IIYYO

AllD Wadell Engineering Corporation

F''OR THE PROVISION OF Airoort Architectural. Plannino and Enoineerino SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: April 16,2019 TO: April15,2024

SCHEDT]LE OF FEES:

This is a five year, on-call contract with Wadell Engineering Corporation (WEC) for Airport Architectural,
Planning and Engineering Services to be funded by Airport lmprovement Program grants throught the
FederalAviation Administration (FAA). Any future work assigned to WEC shall be incorporated into this
contract by amendment, through action of the lnyo County Board of Supervisors, and would include a
Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees. There is no guarantee that future projects will be assigned to
WEC under this contract, projects are contingent on the availability
of federal funding.

The initial Schedule of Fees for this contract is described as follows:

The County of lnyo agrees to pay Consultant for services performed under the conditions of this
agreement the lump sum fixed price amount of $14,590.00 for the additional lighting design services.
The compensation includes reimbursement for all labor, travel, lodging, meals, and supplies.

County of lnyo FAA - No. 1 61

(lndependent Consultant)
Page21 ot22

07t02t2018



AI\D

ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMANT BETWEEN COUNTY OF'II\WO

Wadell Engineering Corporation

F'OR THE PROVISION OF Airnorf Archiieefrrral Plannino and Enoineerino SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: April 16,2019 TO: April15,2024

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

This is a five year, on-call contract with Wadell Engineering Corporation (WEC) for Airport Architectural,
Planning and Engineering Services to be funded by Airport lmprovement Program grants throught the
FederalAviation Administration (FAA). Any future work assigned to WEC shall be incorporated into this
contract by amendment, through action of the lnyo County Board of Supervisors, and would include a
Scope of Work and Schedule of Fees. There is no guarantee that future projects will be assigned to
WEC under this contract, projects are contingent on the availability of federal funding.

No Travel or Per Diem Payments are included in the initial contract.

County of lnyo FM - No. 161

(lndependent Consultant)
Page 22 of 22

07to2t2018



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COT]NTY OF II\WO

AI\D Wadell Engineering Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF Airoort Architecturat. ptan inn and Fnnineerinn SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: April 16,2019 ril 1 2024

SEE ATTACIIED INST}RANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo FM - No. '16'1

(lndependent Consultant)
Page23 ol 22

07n2nu8



Specifications 2
Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INST]RANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00
01 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services Otfice Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no

employees)

L Professional Liability (Emors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant's
profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occunence.

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.
Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to the Entity.

Other fnsurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Additional Insured Sfafus

L The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 1011 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG
20 37 forms if later revisions used).



Other Ins urance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation
Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses
within the retention.

Acceptabitity of t nsurers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Claims Made Policies
lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
at least tive (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date,
the Consultant must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Entity reseryes the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 161
Amendment No. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1
To

Agreement Between COUNTY OF INYO and
Wadell Engineering Corporation

For
On-Call Airport Engineering and Planning Services

LONE PINE / DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT – RUNWAY REHABILITATION CONSTRUCTION 
ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Wadell Engineering 
Corporation of Burlingame, California (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement 
for the provision of engineering and planning services dated    April 16, 2019    , on County of Inyo Standard 
Contract No. 161, for the term from    April 16, 2019    to    April 15, 2024      .

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below:
 
WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 

subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity.

County and Consultant hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. Section 3D, Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.  The first sentence is revised as follows:  

“The total sum of all payments made by the County to Consultant for services and work performed 
under this Agreement shall not exceed one hundred twenty six thousand, four hundred sixty five 
dollars and no cents ($126,465.00) (hereinafter referred to as “Contract limit”).

2. Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work, shall be revised to include the additional tasks required 
for the Lone Pine / Death Valley Airport – Runway Rehabilitation Project for Construction Phase 
Services, as described Attachment A-1 to the Contract.

3. Wadell Engineering Corporation’s fee for the scope of work described in Attachment B-2 to the 
Contract shall be the lump-sum, fixed-price fee of $111,875.00.

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is _____________.

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 161
Amendment No. 1

AMENDMENT NO. 1
To

Agreement Between COUNTY OF INYO and
Wadell Engineering Corporation

For
On-Call Airport Engineering and Planning Services

LONE PINE / DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT – RUNWAY REHABILITATION CONSTRUCTION 
PHASE SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
            DAY OF                                 , 2019.

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTANT

By: By: 

Dated: Dated: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager



ATTACHMENT A-1

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 161
Amendment No. 1, Attachment A-1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Wadell Engineering Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF ON-CALL AIRPORT ENGINEERING AND PLANNING 
SERVICES

TERM:
FROM:     April 16, 2019   TO:      April 15, 2024

SCOPE OF WORK:
The Scope of Work described in the original contract, dated April 16, 2019, is revised to include additional tasks 
required for the Lone Pine / Death Valley Airport – Runway Rehabilitation Construction Phase Services, detailed 
below:

SCOPE OF WORK
LONE PINE / DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT – RUNWAY REHABILITATION CONSTRUCTION 

PHASE SERVICES

The CONSULTANT will provide construction phase services for the Lone Pine / Death Valley Airport Runway 
Rehabilitation Project. The services include monitoring the construction project to determine if the construction is 
in accordance with the plans and specifications. 

The services include organization and attendance at a preconstruction conference; preparation of conference 
minutes; preparation of a construction management program for material acceptance testing; coordinating the 
notice to proceed; review and processing of contractor submittals and requests for information; procurement of an 
acceptance testing subconsultant; principal engineer site visits for on-site construction observation during critical 
work periods; office support during construction; review and acceptance of contractor work schedule; review of 
contractor work relative to plans and specifications; review of quantities and payment requests; preparation of 
weekly and monthly reports, wage rate interviews, field order and change order processing; final inspection and 
preparation of record drawings based on contractor furnished as-built submittals, and final engineer’s report. 
Portions of the Airport Layout Plan will be updated to reflect the new improvements upon completion. 

CONSULTANT and COUNTY are not responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 
and safety at the site.  The construction contractor has sole responsibility for these activities.

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES:
The construction contractor is allowed a maximum of 60 calendar days for all work. The Construction Phase 
Services shall be undertaken after the contract award and shall continue until 30 days after final inspection and 
closeout. 



ATTACHMENT B-1

County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 161
Amendment No. 1, Attachment B-1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
Wadell Engineering Corporation

FOR THE PROVISION OF ON-CALL AIRPORT ENGINEERING AND PLANNING 
SERVICES

TERM:
FROM:     April 16, 2019   TO:      April 15, 2024

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

The COUNTY agrees to pay CONSULTANT for services performed under the conditions of this agreement the lump sum 
fixed price amount of one hundred eleven thousand eight hundred seventy five dollars ($111,875.00) for the Construction 
Work Phase. The compensation includes reimbursement for all labor, travel, lodging, meals, supplies, field and laboratory 
testing during the construction phase. 


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGA
	3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGA
	4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	5. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursua

	 Open Session
	6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	7. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	8. PUBLIC COMMENT
	9. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two
	10. INTRODUCTIONS - The following new employees will b
	11. EMPLOYEE SERVICE RECOGNITION - The Board will reco
	12. PROCLAMATION - Eastern Sierra Cancer Alliance - Re
	Agenda Request Form
	Proclamation - Community Pink Day 2019


	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	13. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	14. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	15. Request Board: A) declare CyberScout, LLC of Scott
	Agenda Request Form
	CyberScout Contract - 9.3.19
	HAVA contract #18G27114
	Resolution 2006-33

	16. Request Board approve Amendment No. 14 to the cont
	Agenda Request Form
	Kotin Contract Amendment 14
	Kotin Contract & Amendments 1-4, 6-13

	17. Request Board approve and award the contract for I
	Agenda Request Form
	IT-Improvement-Services-Contract-w-InfoTechResearchGroup-Signed-ITRG-InyoDepts

	18. Request Board award a bid in the amount of $15,041
	Agenda Request Form

	19. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Pestmaster Contract
	Bid Tabulation

	20. Request Board: A) award the contract for the Bisho
	Agenda Request Form
	Bishop Taxiway Rehab contract_Qualcon

	21. Request Board: A) award the contract for the Runwa
	Agenda Request Form
	LPDV Runway Rehabilitation_Granite Contract

	22. Request Board approve the closure of portions of T
	Agenda Request Form
	Parade Route


	 Departmental
	23. Request Board receive a presentation on the Changi
	Agenda Request Form
	Election Changes Presentation

	24. Request Board approve Amendment No. 4 to the Contr
	Agenda Request Form
	PTMS Amend 4 Signed by TR 20190912 - Complete

	25. Request Board receive a presentation regarding the
	Agenda Request Form

	26. Request Board:A) Amend the Fiscal Year 2019-2020
	Agenda Request Form
	Wadell Engineering Contract
	WEC Amendment 1


	 Comment
	27. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports



